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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
EE/EN

Mr. Zhu Weijun (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 47, holds a master degree
of business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business. Mr. Zhu was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Co-Chairman (the “Co-Chairman”) of the board (the
“Board"”) of directors (the “Directors” and each a “Director”)
of CWT International Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the "Group”) in July 2019, and is the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”), and a member of each of the remuneration
committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the executive committee of the Board (the “Executive
Committee”). He also acts as an executive director of CWT Pte.
Limited (“"CWT SG"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Zhu joined HNA Group Co., Ltd.* (M EEHFR 2 E) ("HNA
Group”) in 1998, a substantial shareholder of the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), and served
as senior executives for its certain companies, namely, the chief
financial officer of HNA Group, the chairman of HNA Property
Holding (Group) Co. Ltd.* (BMBXER(EE)BR AT, the
executive vice president of HNA Group and the chairman of Beijing
Yang Zheng Investment Co., Ltd.* (t REEREBRAR]). He is
the chairman of HNA Investment Group Co., Limited* (BfTi% & 5%
E 5B R A F)) (a Shenzhen A-share listed company, Stock Code:
000616) and the vice president of HNA Logistics Group Co., Ltd.*
(B R LB AR AT, both of which are under HNA Group.
Mr. Zhu has extensive management knowledge and working
experience in property, logistic and investment.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Zhu and the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the service agreement, Mr. Zhu is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$30,000 or such higher salary and
discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board from
time to time pursuant to the authority given by the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). Such salary was, and
discretionary bonus will be, determined with reference to the then
prevailing market conditions, the performance of the Company as
well as Mr. Zhu's individual performance.
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Mr. Ding Lei (“Mr. Ding”), aged 41, holds a bachelor’s degree
in Finance and International Finance from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics, a master’'s degree in Statistics
from Leland Stanford Junior University and a master’'s degree in
Financial Mathematics from University of Chicago. Mr. Ding was
appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) in April 2018,
until his roles have been re-designated and ceased to be the Chief
Executive Officer in November 2018 but remains as an Executive
Director. He was appointed as the Executive Vice President of
the Company in April 2019. Mr. Ding was appointed as the Co-
Chairman in June 2019, and his position as the Executive Vice
President of the Company has been ceased accordingly. He was
re-appointed as the Chief Executive Officer in December 2019
and is also responsible for the business development and day-
to-day management of the Group. Mr. Ding is the chairman of
each of the Executive Committee and the investment committee
of the Board (the “Investment Committee”) and a member
of the asset management committee of the Board (the “Asset
Management Committee”), and also acts as directors of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently the vice
president of HNA Group (International) Company Limited (“HNA
Group (International)”), a substantial Shareholder pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO, which is under HNA Group. Mr. Ding joined
HNA Group in 2017, and was engaged with senior management
positions, namely the chief innovation officer of HNA Modern
Logistics Group Co., Limited* (B#IERYREEGRAF]), the
chief innovation officer of HNA Innovation Finance Group Co.,
Limited, the chairman of HNA Import and Export Co., Limited* (/&
f#E H OB R /A 7)) and the chairman of International Innovation
Capital (HK) Limited. He also worked as the vice president of
China clients and marketing services of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, the director of global commodities and futures of
China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the director of global
commodities and futures of BOC International Holdings Limited,
the first vice president of PRC commodities department of
Newedge Financial Group and the product controller of the foreign
exchange derivatives department of Goldman Sachs. Mr. Ding has
almost ten years working and management experience in the field
of commodities marketing.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Ding and the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the service agreement, Mr. Ding is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$168,750 or such higher salary and
discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board from
time to time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders.
Such salary was, and discretionary bonus will be, determined
with reference to the then prevailing market conditions, the
performance of the Company as well as Mr. Ding’s individual
performance.
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Mr. Zhao Quan (“Mr. Zhao”), aged 49, holds a bachelor’s degree
of science in Computer Science Software Management from
Lanzhou University. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board in July 2015, been
re-designated as the Co-Chairman in November 2016, and
subsequently stepped down as the Co-Chairman in December
2017 but remains as an Executive Director. He once acted as
directors of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao
is now the vice president of HNA Group and the vice-chairman of
HNA Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (Mifiz=&E AR 2 7F]), which
is under HNA Group. Mr. Zhao joined HNA Group in 2009, and
was engaged with senior management positions, namely the
chief financial officer and a non-executive director of HNA Group,
the vice-chairman and the chairman of HNA Group Finance Co.,
Ltd.* (SMEEBI AR A7), a director of HNA Holding Group
Co., Ltd.* (M EXELEAEPR A F]), the chairman and the chief
executive officer of HNA Travel Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (/&
MM ZEREESEE AR A F]), and also the chief executive officer
of HNA Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (BfifiZE=E£E AR A F). In
the last three years, he was an executive director of Hong Kong
International Construction Investment Management Group Co.,
Limited (Stock Code: 687), which was under HNA Group, during
the period from December 2016 to December 2017, and a director
of HNA Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (8#IREEBRMHER A )
(a Shenzhen A-share listed company, Stock Code: 000616), which
is under HNA Group, during the period from April 2015 to May
2018. Mr. Zhao has over 20 years of working and management
experience in the areas of airlines, finance, airport investment
and operation etc., and has extensive knowledge and working
experience in corporate management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Zhao and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the service agreement, Mr. Zhao is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$91,800 or such higher salary and
discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board from
time to time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders.
Such salary was, and discretionary bonus will be, determined
with reference to the then prevailing market conditions, the
performance of the Company as well as Mr. Zhao's individual
performance.
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Mr. Chen Chao (“Mr. Chen”), aged 36, holds a bachelor of
arts degree from the University of Massachusetts Amherst. Mr.
Chen was appointed as an Executive Director in July 2019. He is
currently the vice president of HNA Group and the chairman of
HNA Group (International). He was an executive director and the
co-chairman of the board of Hong Kong International Construction
Investment Management Group Co., Limited (Stock Code: 687)
from 2018 to 2019, which was under HNA Group. Mr. Chen joined
HNA Group in 2012. He served as a chief investment officer and
a chief innovation officer of HNA Group as well as the executive
chairman of HNA Innovation Finance Group Co., Limited, amongst
others. Prior to joining HNA Group, he was an associate in the
fixed income division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited and Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, and a vice president at Deutsche
Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch respectively. Mr. Chen is the
nephew of Mr. Chen Feng, the co-founder and the chairman of the
board of directors of HNA Group.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Chen and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Chen is not entitled
to any director’s fee or any kind of remuneration.

Mr. Zhang Can (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 38, holds a bachelor's
degree in accounting from Wuhan University and a master's
degree in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an Executive Director
in December 2019, and is a member of each of the Executive
Committee and Investment Committee. He joined Hainan Airlines
Co., Ltd.* (BmMZER A R]), a company under HNA Group,
in 2004. He has served as senior executives previously within
companies under HNA Group, namely the deputy general manager
of finance department of Yangtze River Express Airlines Co., Ltd.*
(HHFIMmZEREABR AT, the finance director of GC Tankers Pte.
Ltd., the finance director of Hong Kong Airlines Limited and the
deputy finance director of HNA Innovation Finance Group. He is
currently the deputy finance director and the general manager of
finance department of HNA Group, and also a director of Swissport
International Ltd. Mr. Zhang once acted as a non-executive director
of CWT SG. He has extensive knowledge and working experience
in financial management and investment.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Zhang and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Zhang is not entitled
to any director’s fee or any kind of remuneration.
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Mr. Li Neng (“Mr. Li”), aged 39, holds a bachelor’'s degree
of business administration in finance from the University of
Macau and a master’s degree of business administration from
the University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants and a senior international
finance manager of the International Financial Management
Association. Mr. Li was appointed as an Executive Director in
December 2019, and is a member of each of the Executive
Committee and Investment Committee. He has held various
senior management positions previously within companies under
HNA Group, since he joined HNA Group in 2004, including the
chief investment officer of HNA Group (International), the chief
executive officer of China Civil Aviation Investment Group Limited,
and the vice president of Africa World Airlines Limited, etc. Mr.
Li is currently the vice president of HNA Group (International) as
well as the vice president and chief financial officer of Hong Kong
Airlines Holdings Co., Limited. He also served as an independent
director of Azul S.A., a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: AZUL) and the Brazilian Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: AZUL4) from October 2016 to July 2018, and a
non-executive director of Comair Limited, a company listed on
JSE Limited, a stock exchange in the Republic of South Africa
(Stock Code: COM) from August 2015 to August 2018. Mr. Li is
currently an executive director and the chairman of the board of
Hifood Group Holdings Co., Limited (Stock Code: 442), a listed
company in Hong Kong and under HNA Group. He has extensive
knowledge and working experience in corporate management, and
investment, merger and acquisition, etc.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Li and the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Li is not entitled to
any director’s fee or any kind of remuneration.
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Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony (“Mr. Leung”), aged 77, holds a
bachelor's degree of commerce from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a master’s degree in business administration from
New York State University. Mr. Leung was appointed as a Non-
executive Director in April 1993 and has been re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director in November 2018. He is a
member of each of the audit committee of the Board (the "Audit
Committee”), Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Investment Committee. Up to May 2018, Mr. Leung was a
non-executive director of each of Shougang Concord International
Enterprises Company Limited (Stock Code: 697), Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 103), Shougang
Concord Grand (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 730) and Global
Digital Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8271), all of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong. Up to May 2019, Mr. Leung
was also a non-executive director of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 639), which is a listed company in
Hong Kong. Mr. Leung had worked in Citibank N.A. and W.I. Carr
Sons & Co. (Overseas) in his early years and was the managing
director of CEF Group. He has over 40 years of experience in
securities and banking business, investment, financial markets,
corporate strategy and corporate management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Leung and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Leung is entitled
to a director’'s fee as may be determined by the Board from time
to time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the director’s fee
of Mr. Leung was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending
31 December 2020, the director’'s fee of Mr. Leung will be
HK$300,000 for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the
actual length of services provided by Mr. Leung. Such director’s
fees were determined with reference to Mr. Leung’s experience
and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (“Mr. Liem”), aged 39, holds a bachelor’s
degree (honours) in commerce from University of Toronto and
a master’'s degree in taxation from University of Waterloo. Mr.
Liem was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in June 2013 and is the chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Investment Committee. He is a CFA
charter holder and a certified public accountant (USA). Mr. Liem is
a managing director of Masan Capital Limited, a council member
and an investment committee member of the Hong Kong Baptist
University, a pro bono research analyst at HKGolden50 and a
member of the outreach committee of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute (HKSI). Mr. Liem has extensive experience in
securities, financial market and investment.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Liem and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Liem is entitled to
a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, the director’'s fee of Mr.
Liem was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending 31 December
2020, the director’s fee of Mr. Liem will be HK$300,000 for a full
year which will be paid in proportion to the actual length of services
provided by Mr. Liem. Such director's fees were determined with
reference to Mr. Liem’s experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey (“Mr. Lam”), GBS, JP, aged 68,
holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Tufts
University in the United States and was conferred university fellow
of Tufts University and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lam was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in October 2013 and is a member of each of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He is
also an independent non-executive director of each of Analogue
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1977), C C Land Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1224), China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited
(Stock Code: 81), Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1929), i-CABLE Communications Limited (Stock Code: 1097),
Wing Tai Properties Limited (Stock Code: 369) and Wynn Macau,
Limited (Stock Code: 1128), all of which are listed companies in
Hong Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in toy industry and
is currently the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries
Limited which is engaged in toy manufacturing.

In addition, Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the "HKSAR"), a non-official member
of the Executive Council of the HKSAR, the chairman of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints
Committee, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and a honorary member of the
Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a director on the
board of Heifer International — Hong Kong and a director of the
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Lam also holds a
number of other public and community service positions.

Mr. Lam was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong” in 1989 and the “Outstanding Achievement Award —
Hong Kong Toy Industry” in 1999 respectively. In 1996, he was
appointed Justice of the Peace and became a member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire. Mr. Lam was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star in 2004 and the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2011
respectively.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Mr. Lam is entitled to
a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, the director’'s fee of Mr.
Lam was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending 31 December
2020, the director’'s fee of Mr. Lam will be HK$300,000 for a full
year which will be paid in proportion to the actual length of services
provided by Mr. Lam. Such director’s fees were determined with
reference to Mr. Lam’s experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.
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Ms. Chen Lihua (“Ms. Chen”), aged 57, holds a bachelor
of science degree and a master of science degree from Jilin
University of Technology and a doctoral degree in management
science from the City University of Hong Kong and did her post-
doctoral studies at the Institute of Mathematics and Systems
Science of the Chinese Academy of Sciences between 1999 and
2000. Ms. Chen was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in August 2019. She is currently an independent non-
executive director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(Shanghai Stock Exchange ordinary A shares Stock Code:
601998 and preference shares Stock Code: 360025 and Hong
Kong Stock Exchange H shares Stock Code: 998). Ms. Chen is
currently a professor and Ph.D. tutor of the Management Science
and Information System Department of Guanghua School of
Management at Peking University, director of Liantai Supply
Chain Research and Development Center, executive deputy
director of the Center for Research of Circulation Economy and
Management, deputy dean of the Peking University National
Institute for Research of Development Strategy on Hi-Tech
Industry Development Zone, vice president of the China Society of
Logistics, officer of the Supply Chain and Logistics Management
Professional Committee, Society of Management Sciences of
China, member of the Experts Committee of China National
Tourism Administration, and an expert on national high-tech zones
engaged by the Ministry of Science and Technology. Ms. Chen
mainly researches and teaches the following areas: supply chain
and logistics management, management science, supply chain
logistics finance, logistics park management, circulation economy
and management, service operation management, hi-tech park and
industrial management, technological innovation and management,
venture capital investment and entrepreneurial management. In
her fields of research, she has carried out extensive cooperation
and exchanges with relevant international organizations. In
her capacity as leader or research backbone, Ms. Chen has
participated in numerous international cooperation projects and
key research and development projects sponsored by the National
Natural Science Foundation, ministries and provincial governments
in China. She also sits on the review and assessment panels
of multiple domestic and foreign academic journals. She has
published numerous papers on prestigious domestic and foreign
publications in relation to logistics and supply chain, operations
research and management science. Ms. Chen took the lead to
complete many major research reports including the Research on
the Logistics Costs of China, the Research on Interconnection and
Innovation of Logistics Parks and the Research of the Supply Chain
Financial Model for Agricultural Industry, etc.
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An engagement letter was entered into between Ms. Chen and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020. Pursuant to the engagement letter, Ms. Chen is entitled to
a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, the director’s fee of Ms.
Chen was HK$87,500. For the financial year ending 31 December
2020, the director's fee of Ms. Chen will be HK$210,000 for a full
year which will be paid in proportion to the actual length of services
provided by Ms. Chen. Such director’s fees were determined with
reference to Ms. Chen’s experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
% E

REVENUE (HK$'000)
LRE (BBTr)

Year F
2015 336,869
2016 182,546

2017 23,955,863

2018 71,383,936

2019 40,747,512

GROSS PROFIT (HK$'000)
EAM (BT

Year &

2015 53,879

2016 59,5617

2017 811,162

2018 1,730,630

2019 1,536,143

TOTAL ASSETS (HK$'000)
REE (BBTRT)

Year F

2015 6,429,176

2016 6,421,122
2017 31,181,703
2018 25,811,560

2019 24,020,577
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CO-CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
BMEIRHRES

On behalf of the Board, we are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Year 2019 was full of challenges as the Group experienced an
extraordinarily difficult business and operational environment,
where the worldwide economy had been fluctuating and full of
uncertainties. Despite the Company having failed to pay accrued
interests and certain fees in April 2019 pursuant to the Default
(as defined in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”), the Company successfully reached the Loan Extension
(as defined in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”) with the Lenders (as defined in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”) in months following
thereafter. Operations of the Group have also inevitably been
affected by the slowdown of the worldwide economic growth and
the continuous market rumors about our substantial Shareholders,
which dampened confidence and trusts of our banks and
customers.

In this regard, we believed an adjustment in the capital structure
was needed and that maintaining a stable operation should be
of our paramount concern. With arduous efforts, the Group has
successfully disposed of the property investment business in the
second half of 2019 and the sports and leisure related facilities
business in January 2020.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE IN 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
revenue amounted to HK$40,747,512,000 (restated 2018:
HK$48,957,562,000); while the loss attributable to owners
amounted to HK$597,557,000 (2018: loss attributable to owners
of HK$557,289,000). For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group incurred a loss of HK$308,167,000 from its discontinued
operations (restated 2018: HK$463,345,000) and a loss of
HK$243,135,000 from the continuing operations (restated 2018:
HK$123,444,000). Notwithstanding various challenges faced by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the performance
of its continuing operations turned better, primarily as a result of
decrease in staff costs and decrease in legal and professional fees,
which were partially offset by the increase in finance cost mainly
as a result of the Default and the new accounting standard HKFRS
16 Leases. Although the Group recorded a loss attributable to
owners of the Company in 2019, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") for the year ended
31 December 2019 was recorded as HK$1,129,513,000 (2018:
HK$394,210,000).
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THE DEFAULT AND THE LOAN EXTENSION

On 3 April 2019, the Company failed to pay accrued interests and
certain fees under the Facility Agreement (as defined in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis"”) which triggered
the Default and as a result, the Lenders took possession of the
Charged Assets (as defined in the section headed "Management
Discussion and Analysis”) and appointed receivers over the
Charged Assets.

After rounds of tough negotiations with the Lenders, the
Company and the Lenders reached an agreement to enter
into the Supplemental Agreement (as defined in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”) whereby the
total commitment under the Facility Agreement was increased
and the maturity date of the New Borrowing (as defined in the
section headed “"Management Discussion and Analysis”) was
extended. With the extension taking effect on 5 August 2019,
the enforcement of the Charged Assets and the appointment of
receivers were released and terminated.

COMPLETION OF MATERIAL DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of its property investment businesses in the United States and
the United Kingdom. The Group considered that such disposals
were appropriate after taking into consideration negative market
circumstances including macroeconomic downward pressure
in both the United States and the United Kingdom, China and
the United States trade tensions, Brexit, the lack of significant
improvement in the average operational performance of the
disposed assets and the need of the Company to dispose of non-
core assets to increase its liquidity and cash position to enable the
Company to repay the outstanding debt and enhance the general
working capital of the Company.

In addition, in January 2020, the Group disposed 65% of its equity
interest in Dongguan Hillview Golf Co., Ltd.* (REI# =S HAER
72 7)), which in turn holds certain operating golf courses (including
the land use right) situated in Dongguan, Guangdong Province
of the PRC, together with certain related assets (including hotel
buildings and staff quarters).

The foregoing transactions effectually enabled the Group to
increase its liquidity and generate cash for reducing the debt level
of the Group.
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CO-CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
BMEIREREE

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2020 AND
OUR STRATEGIES

As we entered into the year of 2020, the global outbreak of
the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“Covid-19") has increased the
risk of global economic slowdown. We thereby are adopting a
conservative approach towards the performance of global logistics,
financial and commodity markets. The uncertainty and lethality
of the global pandemic virus will jeopardise the confidence in
all industries worldwide, and current economic climate remains
challenging. With the increased threat of a recession, we will
closely monitor the global economic situation and do our best to
minimise its impact on the Group and maintain stable operations
during this downturn.

The Group is still facing serious challenges in many aspects, such
as the potential short-term liquidity issue to repay its outstanding
debt and interests due in the coming year. The management of
the Group is actively taking other financing measures, including
but not limited to maintaining good relationship with the current
finance providers, and negotiating with the financial institutions
in the markets to obtain adequate funding support. Meanwhile,
the Group intends to continue the disposals of certain business
operations to optimise the capital structure of the Group and
maintain a stable operation.

Despite the aforesaid difficulties which we have overcome, we
believe the Group is on its way to a brighter future with our best
endeavours, efforts and cautions.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity
to extend our sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable and
continuous support and trust to the Group. We would also extend
our gratitude and appreciation to all of our management and staff
for their tireless efforts, diligence and dedication throughout the
year.

Zhu Weijun
Co-Chairman

Ding Lei
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

Year 2019 was full of challenges as the Group experienced an
extraordinarily difficult business and operational environment,
where the worldwide economy had been fluctuating and full of
uncertainties. Despite the Company having failed to pay accrued
interests and certain fees in April 2019 pursuant to the Default,
the Company successfully reached the Loan Extension with the
Lenders in months following thereafter. Furthermore, with arduous
efforts, the Group disposed of the property investment business in
the second half of 2019 and the sports and leisure-related facilities
business in January 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
revenue amounted to HK$40,747,512,000 (restated 2018:
HK$48,957,562,000); while the loss attributable to owners
amounted to HK$597,557,000 (2018: loss attributable to owners
of HK$557,289,000). For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group incurred a loss of HK$308,167,000 from its discontinued
operations (restated 2018: HK$463,345,000) and a loss of
HK$243,135,000 from the continuing operations (restated 2018:
HK$123,444,000). Notwithstanding various challenges faced by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the performance
of its continuing operations turned better, primarily as a result of
a decrease in staff costs and decrease in legal and professional
fees, which were partially offset by the increase in finance cost
mainly as a result of the Default and the new accounting standard
HKFRS 16 Leases. Although the Group recorded a loss attributable
to owners of the Company in 2019, EBITDA for the year ended
31 December 2019 was recorded as HK$1,129,513,000 (2018:
HK$394,210,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAE DM

The operations of the four business segments of the Group during
the year are summarised as follows:

Logistics Services

For the year under review, the logistics industry in Singapore
experienced stiff competition and low demand as manufacturing
plants reduced their output significantly, which in turn led to
lesser logistics requirements. Additionally, trade flows were not
forthcoming, diluting the import and export flows of distribution
hubs in Singapore. Amidst the tough environment, we remained
focused on optimising our integrated logistics operations whilst
maintaining market competitiveness with our class leading
solutions. Consequently, Logistics Services business reported
a total revenue of HK$4,709,796,000 and a loss before tax of
HK$12,234,000. The decrease in loss was attributable to non-
recurring items such as expenses in relation to the disposal of
property, plant and equipment and impairment losses recognised
in 2018.

For Warehouse & Integrated Logistics business, our multi-
product warehouses continued to be highly utilised and achieved
better yield than the industrial average. Meanwhile, we are on
track in getting our mega logistics hub's integrated container
depot operationally-ready by the second half of 2019. This added
development will result in higher operating efficiency to better
serve our customers while improving land productivity for land-
scarce Singapore. Furthermore, to supplement our primary
Singapore logistics infrastructure, we are also expanding our
warehouse footprint in Malaysia from current fully-occupied
warehouse space of 340,000 sq. ft. to 560,000 sqg. ft. by end of
2020.

Simultaneously, our measured efforts to cushion the impact of the
ongoing difficult conditions with respect to the freight forwarding
industry have enabled us to maintain our freight market share.
In 2020, we anticipate new disruptions such as Low Sulphur
Surcharge (LSS) recovery, India’s new ruling on local collections,
and political tensions unsettling the Middle East region, which give
rise to a fairly uncertain market. Given this context, our freight
business continues to consolidate its position and exercise prudent
cost control to ride out the storm.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With regard to commodity logistics, we delivered operating
profit growth alongside further margin progression amidst the
macroeconomic headwinds. The business unit’'s operating earnings
largely increased, which was driven by contributions from soft
commodities and improved operating efficiency. Moving forward,
we will continue to refine our business focus and strengthen our
core expertise in the soft commodities warehousing and logistics
services business for long-term growth.

Commodity Marketing

Our Commodity Marketing (“CM") segment is a global supply
chain management services provider which specialises in the
commodity marketing of mainly non-ferrous concentrates and
refined metals for smelters, processing industries and trading
companies.

Year 2019 recorded an improved performance from the CM
segment, notably the concentrates market. Global trade tensions
remained and Europe showed limited signs of improved activity.
Financing costs also remained elevated but with a small decrease
towards the end of 2019. However, the supply/demand balance
for copper concentrates tightened during 2019 due to the lack
of new mines and expansion of smelter production capability
in Greater China. The business segment returned to operating
profitability whilst taking a more prudent stance than during 2018
by taking advantage of moderate physical positions to benefit
from the tighter market. Part of the refined metals business was
constrained by the significantly reduced trade lines. In the fourth
quarter of 2019, we discontinued our energy and refined metals
trading business in Singapore to channel our resources into
growing our core base metals concentrates trading business (see
Note 5(d) to the consolidated financial statements).

In 2019, the CM segment reported a total revenue of
HK$27,253,573,000 (restated 2018: HK$29,192,288,000). Despite
the drop in revenue, the CM segment achieved a profit before
tax of HK$91,600,000 in 2019 compared to a profit before tax of
HK$16,440,000 in 2018. The significant improvement in profit
before tax over 2018 was mainly contributed by substantial
finalisation of copper concentrates deals in 2019 in contrast to the
market disruption in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B AL A AT

Financial Services

In 2019, our Financial Services segment achieved several
milestones against the backdrop of a demanding market. We
successfully executed the first trade orders for the Asia Pacific
Exchange (APEX) 380cst fuel oil futures, Singapore Exchange (SGX)
TSR20 rubber options and Shanghai International Energy Exchange
(INE) TSR20 futures; obtained regulatory approval for the expanded
scope of our Capital Markets Services (CMS) licence to conduct
leveraged foreign-exchange trading; and set up of a new FX desk
to provide 24-hour coverage whilst rolling out of a full suite of FX
leverage products.

During the year under review, we experienced an exit of fund-
type customers but were able to sign up more corporate-type
customers to maintain our Assets Under Management (AUM).
We also observed a drop in trading volumes from higher yielding
products which compromised our commissions collected for the
year in general. Our interest income rose as higher general average
interest rates in 2019 compared to 2018 (more than the decline
in overnight USD LIBOR in second half of 2019). Looking ahead,
we will build on our demonstrated capabilities to provide quick
marketplace access for newly launched products to our clients
while remaining focused on rebuilding brand equity, regaining
client confidence and strengthening client relationships.

Financial Services segment reported a total revenue of
HK$8,057,175,000 and a profit before tax of HK$76,765,000. The
drop in profit before tax as compared to 2018 was due to drop in
trading volumes and the disposal of an associate in 2018.

Engineering Services

We operated our Engineering Services (“ES"”) segment primarily
under Indeco Engineers with two business focus areas:
Engineering Maintenance (“EM") and Design & Build (“DB").

EM deals in essential facility engineering maintenance and
management works and services as well as vehicle and equipment
maintenance. The target market is stable, though competitive for
facility maintenance. The business performed well in 2019 and is
expected to remain steady in 2020 with growth in new areas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DB offers design-and-build infrastructure solutions to customers
in the logistics industry, riding on our specific logistics domain
knowledge. Demand for new build of logistics facilities remained
weak in 2019 and this trend is likely to continue in 2020. To
complement the business, we performed or accepted more
building consultancy services contracts and smaller Addition &
Alteration (A&A) projects for our regular logistics customers and
referral clients.

The ES segment reported a total revenue of HK$776,219,000
mainly contributed by a built-to-suit equipment supply contract and
some contribution from A&A projects. Profit before tax decreased
to HK$34,800,000, which was mainly due to the disposal of a
subsidiary in 2018.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

On 3 April 2019, the Company failed to pay accrued interests and
certain fees in the total amount of approximately HK$63,000,000
(the “Default”) in relation to a borrowing with a principal amount
of approximately HK$1,400,000,000 (the “New Borrowing"),
which was drawn down pursuant to a facility agreement dated
29 September 2018 (the “Facility Agreement”) entered into
between the Company and certain lenders (the “Lenders”). The
New Borrowing was with an original maturity date in October
2019 and was secured by certain charged assets (the “Charged
Assets”) which included the equity interests of the Company's
subsidiaries that hold vast majority of the Group's total assets.
As a result of the Default, the Lenders demanded immediate
payment of the outstanding principal, accrued interest and all other
amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreement and
certain security in relation to the New Borrowing was enforced as
the Group was unable to meet such demand. Consequently, the
Lenders took possession of the Charged Assets and appointed
receivers over the Charged Assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAE DM

On 19 July 2019, the Company and the Lenders reached an
agreement to enter into a supplemental agreement to amend
and supplement the Facility Agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Lenders agreed to increase
the total commitment under the Facility Agreement and to extend
the maturity date of the New Borrowing (the “Loan Extension”).
The Loan Extension became effective on 5 August 2019, pursuant
to which the principal amount of the New Borrowing increased to
approximately HK$1,630,000,000 (the “Extended Borrowing")
and the maturity date was extended to twelve months from 5
August 2019 with interest continuing to be paid quarterly. With
the Loan Extension taking effect, the enforcement of the Charged
Assets and the appointment of receivers were released and
terminated.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of its property investment businesses in the United States (the
“US Operation”) and the United Kingdom (the “UK Operation”,
together with the US Operation, the “US and UK Operations”)
and majority of the proceeds therefrom were used to repay the
Extended Borrowing. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total
borrowing due for repayment in the next twelve months amounted
to approximately HK$5,787,293,000 (see Note 28). Except for
revolving trading facilities of HK$3,980,553,000 which are fully
secured with certain working capital of the Group’s commodity
marketing business, the remaining portion of the Group's total
borrowing due for repayment in the next twelve months primarily
comprises of medium term notes (“MTN") with a principal amount
of S$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$579,040,000)
due on 18 March 2020 and the Extended Borrowing with an
outstanding principal amount of approximately HK$799,967,000
due on 4 August 2020.

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group has further partially
repaid the outstanding principal and interest of the Extended
Borrowing with the proceeds from disposal of its sports and
leisure-related facilities business (the “PRC Operation”) and fully
redeemed the MTN with its internal cash resources. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the outstanding principal
amount of the Extended Borrowing amounted to approximately
HK$655,497,000 which is due on 4 August 2020 with the next
interest payment due on 5 May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will be unable to repay the interest and outstanding
principal of the Extended Borrowing in full when they fall due on
4 August 2020 unless it is able to obtain sufficient cash resources
through refinancing or other arrangements.

The inability to repay the interest and outstanding principal in full
when they fall due may trigger the enforcement of the Charged
Assets and the appointment of receivers, which could result in
significant impacts to the Group's operations. These facts and
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In view of the above, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the Group
and its available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient cash resources to continue as a going
concern and pay its debt as and when they fall due. The Directors
are undertaking a debt restructure plan (the “Debt Restructure
Plan”), which includes the following plans and measures, so that
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern:

(i) Fund-raising from Financing Activities

The Directors have been actively negotiating with
commercial banks and financial institutions for raising funds
to the Group. The Group has been engaging in ongoing
discussions with an independent third party (the “Potential
Lender"”) on a refinancing facility (the “Refinancing
Facility "), specifically used for the repayment of the
outstanding principal and interest of the Extended
Borrowing. As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, negotiations relating to initial terms of the
Refinancing Facility have commenced with the Potential
Lender, which is subject to the internal approval of the
Potential Lender. The Directors expected such approval
process will take up to several weeks from the date of
approval of these financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B AL A AT

(ii) Disposal Plans of the Group

As disclosed above, the Group has completed the disposals
of the US and UK Operations and the PRC Operation and
used the majority of the proceeds to repay the outstanding
debt of the Group including the Extended Borrowing.

The Directors are committed to focus on the provision of
logistic services to optimise the capital structure of the
Group and maintain a stable operation. As a result, the
Group also intends to dispose of certain operations other
than those related to logistic services. The Group has
received letters of intent or expressions of interest from
potential buyers with respect to the disposal of these
operations and the Directors have been actively negotiating
with these potential buyers. The Group intends to use the
proceeds from these disposals to repay the outstanding
debt of the Group, including the Extended Borrowing or
Refinancing Facility (as applicable), and to optimise the
Group's capital structure.

If the Refinancing Facility cannot be obtained in time to
repay the outstanding principal and interest of the Extended
Borrowing, the Group may need to accelerate its disposal
plans to repay the Extended Borrowing as and when it falls
due.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by the management which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2019. Based on such cash flow
projections, the Directors consider that, assuming the success of
the Debt Restructure Plan, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its obligations as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months from 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Certain non-current assets of the Group are classified as
“assets associated with a disposal group and non-current assets
classified as held-for-sale” as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$1,262,861,000 (2018: HK$1,724,847,000). Cash and bank
balances are mostly held in Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar,
Singapore dollar, Euro and Renminbi and deposited in leading
banks with maturity dates falling within one year. Correspondingly,
the Group had loans and borrowings of HK$6,922,182,000
(2018: HK$9,668,978,000), of which an aggregated amount of
HK$5,787,293,000 (2018: HK$7,947,471,000) was repayable within
one year.

Amongst these borrowings, secured loans (from banks and other
parties) amounted to HK$1,991,475,000 (2018: HK$3,790,131,000)
are pledged with the Group's assets as detailed below:

(i) bank deposits of CWT SG Group of approximately
HK$3,474,240 (restated 2018: HK$2,086,000);

(ii) property, plant and equipment of CWT SG Group, including
land and building, of HK$2,009,124,040 (restated 2018:
HK$1,925,583,000);

(iii) floating charges on existing fixed and floating assets of
CWT SG Group;

(iv) all issued shares in HNA International Property Investment
Company Two Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) (“HNA Property Investment I");

(V) inter-company loan made by HNA International Property
Investment Company One Limited (the immediate holding
company of HNA Property Investment Il and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) to HNA Property
Investment Il;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

all issued shares in each of HNA Belt and Road Investments
Company Limited (“HNA Belt & Road"”), HNA Belt and
Road Investments (BVI) Company Limited (“HNA Belt &
Road BVI"), HNA Belt and Road Investments (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. ("HNA Belt & Road Singapore”), and CWT SG (all
of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
which in turn holds the group of entities engaging in
the following business segments of the Group: logistics
services, CM, ES and financial services);

all issued shares in Hillview Golf Development Company
Ltd. (which was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and a holding company of the PRC Operation (this
was released as at the date of this report));

inter-company loans made by the Company to HNA Belt &
Road and HNA Belt & Road BVI;

the assets of the Company;

the assets of HNA Belt & Road, including a security
assignment in respect of the inter-company loan made by
HNA Belt & Road to HNA Belt & Road Singapore;

the assets of HNA Belt & Road BVI, including a security
assignment in respect of the inter-company loan made by
HNA Belt & Road BVI to HNA Belt & Road Singapore;

the assets of HNA Belt & Road Singapore; and
certain shareholder loans made by HNA Group (International)

(an immediate Shareholder) to the Company which is
reflected under equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total debt of
HK$6,371,628,000 (2018: HK$5,329,958,000), comprising of loans
and borrowings and lease liabilities but excluding the revolving
short-term trade facilities amounted to HK$3,980,553,000
(2018: HK$4,339,020,000) (collectively, “Total Debt”). The
consolidated net debt of the Group comprising of Total Debt minus
pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$4,962,768,000 (2018: HK$3,591,992,000); and the total capital
of the Group (measured as Total Debt plus equity attributable to
owners of the Company) amounted to HK$10,538,510,000 (2018:
HK$10,202,700,000). The Group's gearing ratio (net debt to total
capital) as at 31 December 2019 was 47.1% (2018: 35.2%). As at
31 December 2019, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly commodity contracts for hedging the commodity price
exposure. The management monitors the hedging policy closely
and the hedging level of the Group is approximately 100% of the
total commodity inventories.

The Group maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency
borrowings, as determined by management, for natural hedge
to minimise the foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December
2019, the borrowings are mainly denominated in Singapore dollar
and United States dollar.

MATERIAL DISPOSALS

The Group successfully completed a number of disposals, and
it now has a mixed business portfolio comprising four business
segments in total. The Directors believe that the disposals will
enhance the cash flow and commit the available resources to other
uses including to reduce the debt level of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B AL A AT

During the second half of 2019, the Group has entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with Magic Radiance Limited in
relation to the disposal of golf courses in the United States through
the disposal of a subsidiary (HNA International Recreational
Property (BVI) Company Limited) and the unsecured shareholder’s
loan granted to such subsidiary at a total consideration of
US$86,500,000, and the disposal of the US Operation was
completed in November 2019. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 1, 15 and 22 November 2019 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2019 for details.

During the second half of 2019, the Group also entered into
the share purchase agreement with Isabella Properties Limited
in relation to the disposal of a property of the Group located in
the United Kingdom through the disposal of a subsidiary (HNA
International Property Investment Company Three Limited) at an
agreed consideration, and the disposal of the UK Operation was
completed in December 2019. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 11 and 20 December 2019 for details.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and arbitration
matters in the normal course of business. The Group vigorously
defends against these claims and, in the opinion of management,
the resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on
the financial position of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had a total of 6,625 employees as at 31 December
2019. The Group's remuneration policies are to ensure that the
remuneration package as a whole is fair and competitive, and is
able to motivate and retain current employees and attract potential
talents. These remuneration packages have already carefully taken
into account, amongst other aspects, the Group's business in
different jurisdictions. The employees’ remuneration packages
are comprised of salaries and discretionary bonuses, along with
retirement schemes, medical insurance and share options which
form a part of welfare benefits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules"”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the financial year ended 31 December
2019, except for the following deviation:

1. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Xu Haohao was the Chief Executive Officer during the
period from 9 November 2018 to 20 February 2019, and
he also acted as the Co-Chairman. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Co-Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient on overall strategic planning for the
Group. In addition, Mr. Guo Ke, as the Co-Chairman, shared
the role and responsibilities as chairman of the Board
with Mr. Xu Haohao over the relevant period. The Board
considers this structure enables the Company to make
and implement decisions more promptly and effectively at
the relevant time. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operation
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals with a sufficient number thereof being
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Xu Haohao ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer
and Mr. Li Tongshuang was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer, with effect from 20 February 2019.

Note:
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TEEREKE

2.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the
issuer should arrange for the notice to shareholders to
be sent for annual general meetings at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting. On 6 June 2019, a
notice convening the annual general meeting on 28 June
2019 was announced and despatched to the shareholders
of the Company. Given that the 2018 annual report, which
should have been released by the end of April 2019, was
finally released by the Company on 6 June 2019 in order
to provide shareholders with more updated information
on the latest developments with respect to the Group's
defaulted loan, and the auditors’ disclaimer of opinion on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, the notice convening the general meeting
was released on the same day as the annual report.
Although such notice was given less than 20 clear business
days before the annual general meeting, it nevertheless
fulfilled the requirements for giving at least 21 days’ notice
in accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”).

Pursuant to code provision of F.1.2 of the CG Code, a
board meeting should be held to discuss the appointment
and dismissal of the company secretary and the matter
should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The Board decided to approve the
appointment of the Company Secretary on 8 October 2019
by a written resolution as Mr. Cheung Kwok Kuen, Alan
(“Mr. Cheung”) has been supporting the management
team in daily operations since he joined the Company as
General Counsel in October 2018. The Board believes
that Mr. Cheung’s professional qualification as a solicitor
admitted in Hong Kong and extensive experience involving
corporate governance and compliance issues with the
Company enable him to take up the role and responsibilities
as the Company Secretary of the Company. In addition, as
at the date of the appointment of Mr. Cheung, the Board
is familiar with him as he has been supporting the Board
by giving advice on corporate governance and compliance
issues, amongst other legal matters, for more than one
year. The Board believes that he can fulfil his duties as the
Company Secretary properly.
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4. Same as item 1, Mr. Ding Lei was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer on 12 December 2019, and he also acts
as a Co-Chairman. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient on overall strategic planning for the Group. In
addition, Mr. Zhu Weijun, as the Co-Chairman, shares the
role and responsibilities as chairman of the Board with Mr.
Ding Lei. The Board considers this structure enables the
Company to make and implement decisions more promptly
and effectively. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operation
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals with a sufficient number thereof being
Independent Non-executive Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of ten Directors, being six
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The list of Directors is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report. In addition, an updated list of
the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed "Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. All Directors are required to, at the time of their
appointment and annually, disclose to the Company the number
and the nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 4 to 13 of this annual report, the Board
members have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.
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The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are of sufficient number and calibre for their views to
carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

° bringing independent judgment at Board meetings;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company's performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development
of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments. They give the Board and
the committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications
to shareholders.

Note: Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan resigned as a Non-executive Director

with effect from 25 November 2019 and the Board remains
Independent Non-executive Director since then.

Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in August 2013 and revised the same in March
2019, which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
composition with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is published on the website of the
Company.

Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) in March 2019 which aims to set out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors.

Criteria for Evaluation, Selection and Recommendation for
Candidate(s) for Directorships to the Board

(a) character and integrity;

(b) qualifications, including experience in the relevant
industries the Company’s business is involved in and other
professional qualifications;

(c) the Board Diversity Policy, having considered a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
perspectives, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(d) commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest;

(e) contribution that the candidate(s) can potentially bring to the
Board; and
(f) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the

Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

(collectively, the “Criteria”)
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Criteria for Evaluation and Recommendation for
Retiring Director(s) to the Board for Re-appointment

(a) the overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s)
to the Company, including but not limited to the attendance
of the meetings of the Board and/or its committees and
general meetings where applicable, in addition to the level
of participation and performance on the Board and/or its
committees; and

(b) whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
Criteria.

In addition to the Criteria, the Nomination Committee will
evaluate and recommend candidate(s) for the position(s) of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company by giving
due consideration to the factors including but not limited to those
set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13 of the Listing Rules (as amended
from time to time). Where any candidate(s) for Independent Non-
executive Director(s) or any retiring Independent Non-executive
Director(s) will be holding his/her seventh (7th) or more listed
company directorship, the Nomination Committee will evaluate
whether the individual will be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board, and make the recommendation(s) to the Board accordingly.

Nomination Procedures and Process

(a) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from current Directors,
advertisements, recommendations from third-party
recruitment agencies, and proposals from shareholders of
the Company with due consideration given to the Criteria;

(b) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates,
such as interviews, background checks, presentations and
third party reference checks;

(c) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

(d) the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of remuneration package of
such selected candidate;
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(e) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a Non-executive Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package;

(f) the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

(9) all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the Companies Registry
of Hong Kong and updating the Register of Directors of the
Company.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and
senior management within the control and authority framework
set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Investment
Committee and the Asset Management Committee. Further details
of these committees are set out in this corporate governance
report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings
a year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”).
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The Company Secretary assists the Co-Chairmen in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. The draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Co-Chairmen will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in the
agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice of
a regular Board meeting is given and the Company aims at giving
reasonable notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also
aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers,
which are prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the
Board to make informed decisions on matters placed before it, to
all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given if possible.

There have been procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings
and Board committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/committee
member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board (including a
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates,
have no material interest in the transaction should be present at
that Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on
any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which he or any of his associates has a material
interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting.
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Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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eighteen physical Board meetings were held to consider, among ge%E UEREPERASEEET S
other things, various projects contemplated by the Group, and to TEIEH » U R BMMEREB 2P HEEL S

review and approve the interim results and annual results of the

Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendance in 2019 are as follows:

BEERN T NF2HBELEHFBOT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESERRE
EEREEERAH
Executive Directors BITEE
Zhu Weijun (appointed on 1 July 2019) KEEWR=—F—NF+HA—HEZL) 6/7
Ding Lei T% 17/18
Zhao Quan R 13/18
Chen Chao (appointed on 1 July 2019) BREB(R=—F—NF+H—HEZE) 4/7
Zhang Can (appointed on 12 December 2019)  RERZFE—NF+_H+=HEZT) 11
Li Neng (appointed on 12 December 2019) PRV -ZF-NFF+-HA+=—HEZ(F) 11
Guo Ke (resigned on 20 February 2019) BRI ZFE-NFZH =+ HEHE) 2/2
Xu Haohao (not re-elected at the annual general * 2% (R = F—NFNA -1 /NHETA)
meeting held on 28 June 2019) REBFAE FREEE) 7/11
Mung Kin Keung (appointed on 20 February SEBRR-F-NF-_A-1THEZF
2019 and resigned on 28 June 2019) WRZFE—NFNAZ1/HEE) 9/9
Li Tongshuang (appointed on 20 February FRE R=ZF-NF-A=+HEZT
2019 and resigned on 12 December 2019) WRZFE—NF+ZH+ZHET) 13/15
Non-executive Director FiTEE
Mung Bun Man, Alan EmMX(R-ZFE—NF+—HA=+7aH
(resigned on 25 November 2019) BEHE) 12/17
Independent Non-executive Directors B HMITESE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony RIEAE 18/18
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin NS RES 16/18
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey R 16/18
Chen Lihua (appointed on 1 August 2019) BREZE (R -—FE—NFNA—HEZH) 4/4
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Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director
requires more information than is volunteered by the management,
each Director has the right to separately and independently access
to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and review
the profiles of the candidates and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and nomination of
Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until
the next following general meeting of the Company or, in the
case of an addition to their number, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company who shall then be eligible for
re-election at such general meeting. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered
into service agreements or letters of engagement with the
Company for a term of not more than three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors
and one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company represents
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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Any re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who
has served the board for more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company Secretary facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the period from 1 January 2019 or the
date of appointment as a director of the Company to the date of
resignation as a director of the Company or 31 December 2019,
where applicable, a summary of which is as follows:

TEERRE

ARBEFEBENFZBILFATESZE
& RERRIABIRE R AT ATELE -

EESNERBEZEERR
AEECREFRASABEBEABZALER
B - RIS AN B E RS A AR IR HRET

ESRIIRERRRE
BENZENESOERHEBEEEZRZEH
e RRBNFETHAEEEH EHMRA R
REMEEREERZENER  NERKZE
S RERRIFZEEERRER - AARIEEE
E2HEBERERR  BRIUFAREOMER
R - ARWEBDLHETIUNEBRINLREE
BE -

BEEFCAARARKREA T -NF—A
—ARBEZRERARTDEETEHERHIARAE
FEHHS =T -NF+ZA=1+—HI-HM(nE
R EXEzCsk - BT -

Continuous professional development

FEEERRE
Typeoe Subject ol

Directors ) FEIE (Wi R Wi
Zhu Weijun KEE B 1
Ding Lei T% B 1
Zhao Quan i B 1
Chen Chao PR B 1
Zhang Can SRR B 1
Li Neng e B 1
Leung Shun Sang, Tony REE B 1
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T A 1

B 1

C 1
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey VuNEE 2 A 2,3

B 1,3, 4
Chen Lihua PREEZE B 1
Note I: M -
A: Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or  A: HEMRTE - 2% HmE - APENT AR

in-house training b=l

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates B: HERE T EEHER
C: Giving talks at seminars, conferences or forums C: RIFETE - SR AmIBERER
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Note II:

1: Laws, rules and regulations

2: Finance, accounting or taxation

3: Management

4: Businesses relating to the Company

CO-CHAIRMEN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Except for the deviation stated on pages 31 and 33, the roles
of Co-Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence
and accountability.

The Articles and the CG Code have stipulated the duties and
responsibilities of the chairman of the Board. The Board believes
the Co-Chairmen can perform their roles without conflict, and the
Company'’s previous disclosures regarding the roles of the Co-
Chairmen continue to apply.

During the year, Mr. Zhu Weijun and Mr. Ding Lei, being the Co-
Chairmen, held one meeting with the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees
will be reported to the Board at the next Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
and has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the
corporate governance duties as follows:

° to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board,;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’'s
employees and Directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

° to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises the Executive Directors (as
appointed from time to time) of the Company.

During the year, no physical meeting of the Executive Committee
was held. All the work performed by Executive Committee during
the year was passed by resolution in writing.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the
Group performed by the Executive Committee during the year
included but was not limited to the review of the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 1998
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

° overseeing the relationship with the Company's auditor;
° reviewing the interim and annual financial statements;
° reviewing the Company's financial reporting system and

internal control procedures; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain
external legal or other independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the employees
and reasonable resources to perform its duties properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Audit Committee comprises all
Independent Non-executive Directors. None of the members of
the Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor of the
Company.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

ERZECEANERN  IRENERERE

EEE  TAREERREFTERERINRE
RAEMBYERER UETTERE - BAMH

ARAXS - ERZEEMAEREREESER
%8 BUSAREZERAZERBITER

ERZZESIRA—BBUIFRTESRECEZ &
ZEEEMEBEUIFNTESTMAK - IEEX
ZEERBER/ARAZHBEZAEARBA

FAR - BERZREEEHRIT=X
BB B FREEMT

8

8

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESBERE
EEREEESRRH

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin F
(chairman of the Committee) (ZEEF/E) 3/3
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 28 E= 3/3
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey PR 8% 3/3

The major work performed by the Audit Commmittee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

° reviewing the final results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018; and

° reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2019.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit

Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed
and put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be tendered to the Board for approval. In considering the
nomination of a new Director, the Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is one of the Co-
Chairmen of the Board and the Independent Non-executive
Directors constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, two physical meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance of the members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

RBEZEBCERREED Thﬁzﬁﬁﬁkﬂiﬁ%@ll‘ﬂ%
BHCKIENMBER  UEREEHA/AS
EROINRBYERER @ ABETTERE -
ZAYNCIF S

%FHEE

REZEGIFHESSET BB FEIFEE
- BIUFATESFHREZZEEGNAZE -

FR - RELZECUEITMALSH  REZEE
BEREMHEREENOT

i3S

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESBERE
SEREFEBARE

Xu Haohao (chairman of the Committee and =2 (ZEEFEIR —F—NFNHA
ceased on 28 June 2019) = ‘/’/1 H T BHET) 2/2

Zhu Weijun (appointed on 1 July 2019 and REER-ZFE-NF+HAHEZHL

chairman of the Committee) YREEETE) -/~
Leung Shun Sang, Tony ZREAE 2/2
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 2/2
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey WEEEE 2/2

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the year included, amongst other things, the following:

° assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

° considering and making recommendations to the Board on
the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;
and

° considering and making recommendation to the Board for

the appointment of Mr. Mung Kin Keung, Mr. Li Tongshuang,
Mr. Zhu Weijun, Mr. Chen Chao, Ms. Chen Lihua, Mr.
Zhang Can and Mr. Li Neng as Directors.

Note: The Nomination Committee performed the following work in

February 2020:

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:
° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s

policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Group;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and
objectives;

° determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration

packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct; and

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Co-Chairmen
and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority
to seek any necessary information from the employees within its
scope of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are aligned with the market and reward for performance.
The Company reviews the remuneration package annually, taking
into consideration of the market practice, competitive market
position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year, two physical meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

FR - FHZESLRITMAEHE  FHZES
BB MHFREERMT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESBERE
EEREEERRHE
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin WF(ZEgFE)
(chairman of the Committee) 2/2
Guo Ke (ceased on 20 February 2019) A (R=ZF—NF_A=THTH
#EE) 2/2
Xu Haohao (ceased on 28 June 2019) BEER=ZZFE—NFNA=F+NBTH
JEIF) 2/2
Leung Shun Sang, Tony a4 2/2
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mg 2/2
Zhu Weijun (appointed on 1 July 2019) KEBRZF-NF+H-HEZE) -
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during HMZE@NFABITZ2EETE(EF )W
the year included, amongst other things, the following: ™
. considering and approving the terms of the service e ZRENENHTERLAE  FRELLE XK
agreement and the remuneration of Mr. Mung Kin Keung, BELAE - BRBLE RERE TR
Mr. Li Tongshuang, Mr. Zhu Weijun, Mr. Chen Chao, Mr. A 2 BT ih e IRk S S B
Zhang Can and Mr. Li Neng;
. considering the salary adjustment of Mr. Zhu Weijun, Mr. e ERADNFINTESAEEELEE - T&E
Ding Lei and Mr. Li Tongshuang (Executive Directors of the ERFRERENAT K&
Company); and
. making recommendation to the Board on the terms of e MRBEZ T REBEUIEFNITESTHZE
engagement letter and the remuneration of Ms. Chen Lihua ExRFEFHRNESSREER -
as an Independent Non-executive Director.
Note: The Remuneration Committee performed the following work in ~ ffit : FMEZEE @R T -_ZTF -~ ABITA N IIE:

February 2020:

o considering and determining the bonus of the Executive
Director for the year 2019;

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration
of the Executive Directors for the year 2020;

o making recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fee of the Independent Non-executive Directors for the
year 2020; and
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o considering the service agreement/engagement letter of
the Executive Directors and making recommendations to
the Board on the engagement letter of the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management
for the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established in July 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

Pursuant to the terms of reference, the Investment Committee
comprises the Executive Directors (as appointed from time to
time) and two Non-executive Directors (amongst the two Non-
executive Directors, at least one must be an Independent Non-
executive Director).

Asset Management Committee

The Asset Management Committee was established in July 2019
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

Pursuant to the terms of reference, the Asset Management
Committee comprises two members from the Company and one
member from the financial advisor of the Company.

The Asset Management Committee is responsible for reviewing
and researching of the disposal plan of the Company's fixed assets,
including assets in Singapore, golf courses in United States, golf
courses in Dongguan, building in London, United Kingdom, and
other assets of the Company and its member companies. During
the year 2019, the Asset Management Committee reviewed and/
or recommended to the Board for the disposals of the golf courses
in the United States, the building in London, United Kingdom and
golf courses in Dongguan.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policies
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Co-Chairmen and/
or the Chief Executive Officer on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group's affairs.
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The Company Secretary reports to the Co-Chairmen and the
Chief Executive Officer. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
are followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In compliance with the requirement set out in code provision
E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Board adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) in March 2019. According to the Dividend
Policy, in proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account the following criteria, including:

° the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
° general business conditions and strategies;
° distributable profit of the Company and each of the other

members of the Group;

° the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

o the Group's indebtedness level, debt to equity ratios,
liquidity position and future commitments at the time of

declaration of dividend;

° any contractual restrictions on payment of dividend (may be
imposed by the Group's lenders or other third parties);

o taxation considerations and legal and regulatory restrictions;
° general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control and risk
management systems will contribute to the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations of the Group and to the safeguard of the
Group's assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board is responsible for ensuring, maintaining and overseeing
the overall internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Executive Committee assists the Board in discharging
its responsibilities of ensuring and maintaining sound internal
control and risk management functions by continuously reviewing
and monitoring the internal control and risk management systems
and processes so as to ensure that they can provide reasonable
assurance against material errors and potential risk of the Group.

The internal control and risk management systems are embedded
within the business processes and function as an integral part
of the overall operations of the Group. The systems comprise a
comprehensive organisation structure with assignment of definite
accountabilities and delegation of the corresponding authorities to
each post. Based on the organisation structure, an accountability
system has been developed, which includes a reporting system
from division head of each principal business unit to the Executive
Committee.

Business plans and budgets are prepared by the division head of
each principal business unit annually. In preparing the business
plans and budgets, the management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place with an aim to
ultimately managing, controlling or lessening such risks.

The business plans and budgets are subject to review and
approval by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee
reviews monthly management report on the operational and
financial results of each principal business unit and measures the
actual performance of the Group against the business plans and
budgets concerned. In this course, the Executive Committee also
reviews and assesses the effectiveness of all material controls
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budgets of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function. The Executive Committee holds
periodical meetings with the senior management of each principal
business unit to, amongst other matters, address the issues
in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.
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The internal control and risk management systems of the Group is
documented and if any revision is required, such information will
be submitted to the Audit Committee for evaluation.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is required
to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules. The regulation
has included in the Company’s Internal Control Policy with a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information. This ensures, through its own internal reporting
processes and the consideration of the outcome by senior
management, the appropriate handling and dissemination of inside
information.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role
over the Group's internal control and risk management functions
by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the overall
internal control and risk management systems.

For the purpose of better implementing the Debt Restructure Plan
during the year under review and after reviewing the practice of
the business operation of the Group, the internal audit functions
are performed in two folds since then, whereby (i) the Company
level has a specific focus on the monitoring and improving the
internal control of the Group as a whole, and (ii) the CWT SG and
its subsidiaries ("“CWT SG Group") level are responsible for the
internal control and risk management of the specific business of
CWT SG Group.

The internal audit function of the Company level is independent
from the operational departments in the Company level, and
assists the Board and the Audit Committee in consistently
monitoring the internal control and risks of which the Group
encounters during operation and ensuring that all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as
risk management, are in place and functioning effectively.
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The internal audit function of CWT SG Group level is performed
by an audit controller of CWT SG Group, who is an independent
qualified person, reports to chief financial officer of CWT SG
Group, the Board and the Audit Committee with findings and
makes recommendations to improve the internal control and risk
management systems of CWT SG Group.

Internal Audit Functions

During the year under review, the Board has been, through the
Executive Committee and the Audit Committee, continuously
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
systems by way of internal audit reports submitted by the
internal audit functions, and considers the systems effective and
adequate. The Board also considers that adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function have
been provided.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of
the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Company's code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in shares
of the Company during the relevant period.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor are set out as follows:

BB =

FAB IR F AR RIZEAD A B S #5110
™

HK$'000
Services rendered P12 AR 75 BT T
KPMG ESHSTTMERAM
- Audit services - FBETRTE 16,174
- Non-audit services - IEEFTARTS 4,808
Other External Auditors H bR A B AT
- Audit services - BT RTE 1,474
- Non-audit services - IEEET RS 393
Total st 22,849

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and
in presenting the annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group's position and prospects.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.cwtinternational.com.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful AARMBRRBFAEARRREHEESTEES IR
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All ZBRE2ERAF4 - 2R EEHEE ML
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditor will also & @ MNEZEEIMHEERRBF AL ERE 2
attend the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’ 2 o AL EREER Sl T EBEIBL
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected MREHEZXZFZREAS | BUEEEEES
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent A% B Ji& 55 A s 2 H fE [0 £ A% 51 AV 3RRT -
shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board

committee will also make an effort to attend to address

shareholders’ queries.

During the year, one general meeting was held, which was the RFR » KRBT T —AKREXRE @ IR -
annual general meeting held on 28 June 2019 (the “2019 AGM"). —hERNAZTN BRI ZERAEFRKg (2%
—NERFRBERE) -

The auditor of the Company, KPMG, attended the 2019 AGM. AARKHBAIESHEHMEEMEET =2 —
Details of the Directors’ attendance at the general meeting of the HNFERBBEEAE - EENFERNBITZ AR AR

Company held during the year are as follows: BAEMHELHFBOT
Attendance
at the
2019 AGM
HE
—E-NF
Directors E= BRAFAE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Zhu Weijun (appointed on 1 July 2019) KEER=—F—NF+H—HEZ) -
Ding Lei T% v
Zhao Quan izt v
Chen Chao (appointed on 1 July 2019) BREB(R=ZF—NFLA—HEZ(F) -
Zhang Can (appointed on 12 December 2019) KRR =ZFE—NFF+ AT =HEZ) -
Li Neng (appointed on 12 December 2019) TR —F—NFF+_A+=—HEZ(E) -
Guo Ke (resigned on 20 February 2019) BRI (R =ZF—NFZHAZ1HEFHE) -
Xu Haohao (not re-elected at the annual general 1HEZ (R =FE—NFNAZ+/NAETRIREA v
meeting held on 28 June 2019) BFXG [ REEE)
Mung Kin Keung (appointed on 20 February 2019 5258 (R - FE—AF_-H -+ HEZT -
and resigned on 28 June 2019) WR=ZF—NFNA=+/HEFL)
Li Tongshuang (appointed on 20 February 2019 FRE (R -FE—AF_-H -+ HEZT v
and resigned on 12 December 2019) WRZFE—NF+ZH+ZHEHE)
Non-executive Director HNTEF
Mung Bun Man, Alan ESMX(R=ZF—NF+—H=+AHEE) v
(resigned on 25 November 2019)
Independent Non-executive Directors B HHITESE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony RIEAE v
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin RFL£E v
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey hrNES = v
Chen Lihua (appointed on 1 August 2019) BREZER-F-NFNA—HEZH) -
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As disclosed in this corporate governance report, during the year,
all notices of general meetings despatched by the Company to
its shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual general
meeting less than 20 clear business days before the meeting.
Separate resolutions were proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, and all resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
were taken by way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman
of the meetings explained the procedures for conducting a poll
and answered questions from shareholders on voting by poll, if
any. The results of the poll were published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can request the Directors to call a general meeting
pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making
it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote at a general meeting can request
the Company to circulate to the shareholders of the Company a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt
with at that meeting pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses
shall be borne by the shareholder(s) making the request unless
the meeting concerned is an annual general meeting and the
statement is received by the Company in time for sending with the
notice of the meeting. The request must identify the statement
to be circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at least
7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders who
have a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting
can request the Company to give to the shareholders of the
Company notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting pursuant to Section 615
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The request must identify the resolution of which notice
is to be given, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary no
later than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate, or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting
is given.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set out on
page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company
principally engaged in integrated logistics services and related
engineering services. The Company is also engaged in the
affiliated business of commodity marketing and financial services.
The Company disposed of its business of property investment,
management and development, and operation of sports and
leisure-related facilities in November/December 2019 and January
2020, respectively. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the financial status of the Group as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 81 to 299 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of
the performance for the year ended 31 December 2019 and an
indication of likely future development in the business of the Group
are provided in the Co-Chairmen’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular Notes 2, 3 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group since the end of the year 2019 can be found
in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. An analysis using financial key performance indicators
is provided in the Financial Highlights and the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, there were no relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. An
indication of likely future development in the Company's business
can be found in the Co-Chairmen’s Statement.
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The Company is committed to promote environmental policies,
during the year:

Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business and its employees
operate the business in accordance with its Code of
Ethics and Business Conduct Policy and Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. Those policies state that the company
strives to minimise detrimental environmental issues
and is committed to meeting all environmental laws and
legislation in the countries and regions in which it operates.
There have been no reported environmental issues that the
operating company is aware of during the year 2019.

Logistics Services

We strive to be environmental friendly in the way we work
and operate the business. Our efforts are focused on
minimising emissions and improving energy efficiency of
our warehouse buildings and trucking fleets. We actively
promote a safe and green workplace while adopting green
features such as the use of solar energy, motion sensors
and eco vehicle engines, which reduce the environmental
impact of our operations. We continue to maintain
conformity with the related regulatory and governing bodies
and there were no deviations from our environmental and
safety policies and practices in 2019.

Financial Services

Due to the nature of its business, financial services
business does not have any environmental policies in place.

Engineering Services

Engineering services business consistently carries out best
practices that are locally and internationally recognised
to protect and sustain the environment. We are ISO
14001:2004 certified and conform to the international
environmental management system standards. We also
support environmental sustainability among service firms
in the building industry, armed with regulatory certifications
for Singapore Green Building Services as well as Singapore
Green and Gracious Builder.
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Note:

The Company disposed of its business of property investment,
management and development, and operation of sports and
leisure-related facilities in November/December 2019 and January
2020, respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 300
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 87 to 90 of this annual
report and in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
purpose amounted to approximately HK$193,479 (2018:
HK$578,809).
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETEHEE

RARES

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual REARBEEAFHRAL  S=0T :

report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Zhu Weijun (appointed on 1 July 2019)

Ding Lei

Zhao Quan

Chen Chao (appointed on 1 July 2019)

Zhang Can (appointed on 12 December 2019)

Li Neng (appointed on 12 December 2019)

Guo Ke (resigned on 20 February 2019)

Xu Haohao (not re-elected at the annual general meeting
held on 28 June 2019)

Mung Kin Keung (appointed on 20 February 2019 and
resigned on 28 June 2019)

Li Tongshuang (appointed on 20 February 2019 and
resigned on 12 December 2019)

Non-executive Director
Mung Bun Man, Alan (resigned on 25 November 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Chen Lihua (appointed on 1 August 2019)

In accordance with Clauses 95 and 104(A) of the Company's RIBEARRQF ZMEIFEISR104(AVE » KEFE &L
Articles, Mr. Zhu Weijun, Mr. Ding Lei, Mr. Zhao Quan, Mr. Chen 4 ~ T &5 4 « #ELR 4 BRBE4 - RESL
Chao, Mr. Zhang Can, Mr. Li Neng, Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
and Ms. Chen Lihua will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

HITES

REEMR -—F-NFLA-HEZET)
TEE

1

B -FE-NFLtHA-HEZT)
RER-F-NF+ AT -HAEZE)
FRR-_F-NF+ AT -HEZE)
BAIR—FE-AF—H =1 HEHE)

BREMW -F-NFANA-FNARTHRE

BFARE FAEEE)

SRRW -E-NF-_A-F+HEZIY
R-E—NFNA -1/ HET)

TR (R-F-—NF-A=+HEZTL
RZFE—NF+ZA+ZHEF)

FHITES
SmX(R=F—NF+—A=1TLART
BYFHTES

ZlasE

7N

AN eSS

REER -—F-NFNA-HEZL)

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the ZEHFTABBIFEER Ll K& FERET -

Company.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

A list of names of the directors who held office in the
Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date

MEBARIZES

of this annual report is available on the Company’'s website  (www.cwtinternational.com)& ] °

(www.cwtinternational.com).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service agreement with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors who held office as at 31 December 2019 had the
following interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code:

BEEZRBHE

BRI BIT 2 RRBEFAE LEREEE
% BmEADR ST R ARTR—F
R TIBZA R B E CRE BB 90) 2 RS 3

N
=%
R °

EEEYN

FA ARARYEFT I FEEBAEELLEERN
RERHHEMEZHOER AL -

EERBRSTRAERKRG - HEE
BRI REER 2 EZRAR

RZF-NFH-A=1t—0 HEEFAZA
EARRB Z iy RABERO BE AL ARIERES
KB GAIFEIL2GATREFZELM - HRIE
RESTRIBEBAANR R R B APz s an T

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company REQXBRMBZFRE

Total interests

as to % of the

issued share

capital of the

Company as at

31 December 2019

Numbers of BRERMARLAT

Capacity in which shares in R-E-NF

Name of Director interests were held the Company +=-BA=+—H

RAEQFZ ERITRA

BESER BEERZEH REOHAE ZBETH

Zhu Weijun Beneficial owner 4,106,000 0.03%
KEE EmEB A

Leung Shun Sang, Tony Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.18%
2 g% EnlEAA
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives or their respective associates had any other personal,
family, corporate and other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December
2019.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes”
herein, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the holding companies of the Company, the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, no Director has been recorded as having interests
in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.
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EEERES

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF BRERELERPEROAATHEZRR
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER BERKR

THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Company RZ-Z—NF+_A=+—8  BEARRFZF
and according to the information as shown only in the register %1+ RIBFA R GHEL TS & B EIEHIE33615:%
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following FZZERMAIRZER » THRREATRAR
companies and persons had interests in the shares and/or  BIRXD N, SHBERMZEREZ - MAREES
underlying shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to the K& EFE &M ZEEXVERE2 K 35 SF A AN A B HFE
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares of the RAEDTRG HEERDZHE

Company
Interests as to %
Number of of the issued
shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of shareholder interests were held shares 31 December 2019 Note
BEREARDTF
R=E-hF
37 +t=HA=+-H
RERER BERBZZ5H HERGBE CERTREZEIHL ffsF
HNA Group (International) Beneficial owner 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
781 5 B (BURR) EnEAA
Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited Beneficial owner 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
(“Hong Kong HNA")
BEEEMEXERARLR(ERER)) EnlEAA
HNA Logistics Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
(“"HNA Logistics”) (formerly known as corporations
Hainan HNA Holding Co., Ltd.)
BRMASERRA A (TERWR]) XREE
(RIfEEmEMmEEERERAF)
HNA Holding Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
(“HNA Holding Group”) dcorporations
BMEXEEERAR(EHEXER]) XEEE ER
HNA Group Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
corporations
EmEE XREE R
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
(“Hainan Traffic Administration”) corporations
BEXEERERAR(CEERE] RPEE R
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co. Ltd. Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
(“Sheng Tang (Yangpu)”) _ corporations
BEERCODBRAR(EECER) ) XEEE ER
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Interests as to %

Number of of the issued
shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of shareholder interests were held shares 31 December 2019 Note
BREEAT
R=-B—-IF
B3,/ +t=HA=+-H
RERER BEERZZEM HERGBE CERTREIZEIHL k=3
Tang Dynasty Development Company Limited Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
(“Tang Dynasty Development”) icorporations
BREZEERAR(RERE] REEE 2w
Hainan Province Cihang Foundation Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
corporations
BHEEMLRESS XREE S
Cihang Sino-Western Cultural and Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
Educational Exchange Foundation Limited corporations
(“Cihang Sino-Western")
EMEAAXHIRESEERAA RPVEE R
(T&MRAES )
Note: Btat
1. As at 31 December 2019, HNA Group is a company established 1. RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—08 BMEER—

in the PRC with limited liability which directly owns approximately
91.09% of HNA Group (International) and directly owns more than
95% of HNA Holding Group. HNA Holding Group and HNA Group
directly own approximately 51.38% and approximately 21.61%
respectively of HNA Logistics. HNA Logistics directly owns 100%
of HNA Holding International Co., Limited, which in turn directly
owns 100% of Hong Kong HNA.

HNA Group is held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration,
which is in turn held as to 50% by Sheng Tang (Yangpu). Sheng
Tang (Yangpu) is held as to 65% and 35% respectively by Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation and Tang Dynasty Development, and
Tang Dynasty Development is in turn 98% held by Pan-American
Aviation Holding Company, which is wholly held by Cihang Sino-
Western.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is a sufficiency
of public float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

REFBEKLZBRAR  EEESSMER
(BB #91.09% B ENEERESMNEES
EBB5%iE - BMEEEE R EMEE Y
RIEZBEE451.38% K 4121.61% B RK
e BMYREERESMELERIR AR AR
100% /%4 - MEBMEBEXBRE AR AR EEE
BEEBM100%HE

BMEBHEEIEFFI0ONRE - MEHE
REBNABECEHFEL0%EE - BECF
WO BHEEEAEMATESEREERE
B 65%M35% A M akE R Pan-
American Aviation Holding Company(E &M
REEH2EWE)IFEI8% A -

DBFRE
REAATARFAESZENEREENA - R
RERTIEEE  ADRZESHFA LDRBIA
RE 2 RADBHRERT «
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 7 June 2002, the Shareholders adopted the share option
scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) which would be valid for a period
of ten years. On 25 May 2012, the Shareholders approved the
termination of the 2002 Scheme (to the effect that no further share
option shall be granted by the Company under the 2002 Scheme)
and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”), which became effective on 29 May 2012 upon the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting its approval to
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the Company
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme. The share options granted under
the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of each of the 2002 Scheme and
the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

(a) The 2002 Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Company and/or
its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies. The 2002
Scheme was adopted on 7 June 2002 and terminated on
29 May 2012 (the date on which the 2012 Scheme became
unconditional and effective).

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their
discretion, offer directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), executives, officers, employees or
shareholders, of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any of its associated companies, and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, advisers, agents, partners or
business associates who will contribute or have contributed
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its
associated companies, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Scheme is 3,072,000, which
represents approximately 0.03% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. Since
the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no
further options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme.
However, the share options granted under the 2002
Scheme prior to its termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.

Each of the grantees was required to pay HK$1 as a
consideration for the grant of share options in accordance
with the 2002 Scheme. The offer of share options must be
accepted within 60 days from the date of the offer.

Save as disclosed above, there is no material difference in
the terms, which shall be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.09
of the Listing Rules, between the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme.

No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled, and a
total of 8,960,000 share options were lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Scheme during the year. Details
of movements in the share options under the 2002 Scheme
during the year are as follows:

Options to subscribe for
shares of the Company
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REHSTERE-_STE _FrEMEH 2
MARITEEREMY TEITZARTRNG
4L 53,072,0000% ¢ A RQ B R AF I
Tl HEBEEITRM40.03% - B
ZFFER - E——FRA-TNBKILE
% BTEBRE-_STE_FirEE—2
BHERE - R T T ZFar 84 LR
RIBEZATEIR N 2 BREBEESS - I
AR T F 58 T AT ©

RIE-TT_F518 SARAAINNE
BITIERER THBREZRE - RHE
T2 BREANRY B SR N T ARE

Br LT ETEEN TS - FitElE
T-—FHERNBRELETRBIE17.09
BIERIEBE Z GRTEBERER -

FA-BEERERE_FT_Filz
IR~ 173kt 8E - B & 3£8,960,000
ARBERY - £ RE_FZT_F5
R BB FELT

ARBRARRM 2B RE
At the Lapsed At the Exercise
beginning during end of price per
Category or name of grantees of the year the year the year Date of grant  Exercise period share
ARAERSHE £4) FEREH % RUBRH CEcd: BRTERE
Other participants 8,960,000 (8,960,000) - 16.12.2009 16.12.2009-15.12.2019 HK$0.582
Htt28% 05827
3,072,000 - 3,072,000 14.12.2010 14.12.2010-13.12.2020 HK$0.410
04107

12,032,000 (8,960,000 3,072,000
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(b)

The 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002
Scheme and to continue to enable the Company to grant
share options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25
May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company,
and ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers
or directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of
the Invested Entities, and any advisers, consultants, agents,
suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the
Invested Entities, share options to subscribe for shares of
the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share
options which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
is 224,214,117, representing approximately 1.97% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual
report. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share
options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
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person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of the offer of such grant (a) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in
excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of each grant), such
further grant of options shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and Shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting by a poll at which all connected persons
of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour of the
resolution concerning the grant of such options, and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time. A connected person of the Company will
be permitted to vote against the grant only if his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant of
share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder, or to any of their associates, is required to
be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors
(excluding any Independent Non-executive Director who is
a grantee of the options).

The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme.
There is no requirement that a share option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised but the
Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any such
minimum period at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required to
pay HK$1 as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant
of share options in accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The
offer of share options must be accepted within 30 days
from the date of the offer.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEXEHREE

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do
not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2019,
there was no share option outstanding under the 2012
Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether
on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance.

The Company's capital reserve represents a non-distributable
reserve.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, MAJOR
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales from
continuing operations for the year. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
purchases relating to continuing operations for the year. None of
the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.

Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business operates its business with
integrity, fairness and openness, guided by its Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct. We treat all employees, customers and
suppliers equitably, honestly, and with good management in order
to ensure a harmonious and safe working environment. There
were neither significant infringements nor deviations from our
usual practices that the Company is aware of during the year of
2019.
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Logistics Services

We are committed to maintaining a conducive working
environment and treating all our stakeholders with fairness and
integrity. We engage with employees, customers and suppliers to
review processes and improve performance while forging strong
relationships. Our active interactions with stakeholders keep us
on top of things and help shape our business plans and strategies.
No anomalies with regard to our stakeholder management and
business conduct were brought to our attention during the year
under review.

Financial Services

We are committed to the ethical treatment of all our stakeholders.
For our employees, we are committed to honesty, just
management and fairness, providing a safe environment and
respecting the dignity of every employee. For our customers,
we value them as our business partners and are committed to
providing them with value for money services. For suppliers, we
value them as our business partners and are committed to fair
competition and the sense of responsibility required of a good
customer and partner.

Engineering Services

Engineering services business values its employees, customers
and suppliers. Our success depends on them. We treat our
employees fairly and offer competitive salaries and benefits to
attract and retain talents. We practise open communication in the
workplace and encourage constructive feedback. We expect our
employees to conduct the business with integrity in an ethical and
professional manner. We strive to get certified to ISO 37001: Anti-
Bribery Management Systems by 2021.

We value our customers as our business partners and provide
a high level of service performance at the best price in order to
retain them. Many of our customers have been cooperating with
us continuously for many years.

Our suppliers are our business partners. We treat them fairly and
work with them closely to provide the same level of quality service
we deliver to our customers.

Note:

The Company disposed of its business of property investment,
management and development, and operation of sports and leisure-related
facilities in November/December 2019 and January 2020, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Saved as disclosed above, no related party transaction in Note
41(a), (b) and (d) of the consolidated financial statements which
took place during the year constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 57 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

On 4 December 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and
KPMG was appointed as auditor of the Company on 19 December
2017 to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, until the conclusion of the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company. KPMG was appointed and re-
appointed as auditor of the Company at the 2018 and 2019 annual
general meetings respectively. Save as disclosed above, there was
no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three years.

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting, at
which, a resolution for re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company will be proposed.

By order of the Board
Ding Lei
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
CWT International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CWT
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 81 to 299, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which describes that the Group is required to repay a
borrowing with outstanding principal amount of HK$799,967,000
as at 31 December 2019 in August 2020 and the Group’s ability
to meet this liquidity requirement depends on its ability to
obtain sufficient cash resources through refinancing or other
arrangements. These facts and circumstances indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related To Going Concern section, we
have determined the matter described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(bb) and Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter
BRETEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A% BT RS

AmESNERARE

BRI E RN T2(0b) 2 BT E R A6

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEEZSE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised total revenue from continuing operations of
HK$40,747,512,000, of which HK$34,861,722,000, or 86%,
was attributable to the commodity marketing activities with
high volume of individual transactions.
REBEE_ZE-NWFT_A=+—HIEFE > EEEHERX
BRECEEBNBIKNGE®40,747,512,0007T © HR A
34,861,722,0007Tk86% BN EmE HEE - BEEERNHE
MEBEIEBIWNEBEEACEETSE -

Certain of the Group's revenue from the commodity marketing
activities related to sales of metal concentrates. For such sales,
at the point of transfer of control of the commodity, the Group
estimates the fair value of the consideration under the sales
contract with reference to the forward price for the month of
settlement, and provisionally estimates the quality and quantity
of the commodity. These estimates are provisional as they are
subject to a final assay and weight certificates carried out by
an independent third party. At settlement, the amount of the
receivable is fixed based on the spot price of the commodity at
certain dates and the confirmed metal contents and quantities
with any differences between the actual and provisional sales
amounts being recognised in revenue.
EXERENERESEINE THEHEECBREEEA -
HRUEFHEMS NEEFmOEGREZEK - SXE2Z4HE
HEANEHERMEAHESNE TREZALBEL LR
SAEmEERHNE - AZEMTETHEULE = A &&FA
NEEFEME @ AMZEGARERGET - NEER - BIK
FENSEDRBEEARE TEHHNREEERERNEES
ERMEET  ERHEREYTHERA I ANEANEENK
AP HER o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition and
measurement of commodity marketing revenue
included the following:
BMARTAERE S RaER R ENRETEIEN
&I :

° evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls which govern the recognition and
measurement of commodity marketing
revenue;

. HEERMES WanBRRAENFTERN
RIS - AT EERET - B RE R

° inspecting the sale and purchase agreements,
on a sample basis for each type of commodity
marketing transactions, to understand the
terms and evaluate the appropriateness
of revenue recognition, measurement
and presentation with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. LHEAR  BEEHRAnEHIRINE
B ATHREBRRIEZ2ZERITEAE
Bl MERT IR ER - 5t 8 RII|A X
BE M
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Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue (continued)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(bb) and Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETEER

AmE S WERRA R E(E)

BRI E I BHENT2(bb).2 5B EKHTE6

(&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEEZSE

We identified recognition and measurement of commodity
marketing revenue as a key audit matter because the volume
of transactions increases the risk of error in the recognition of
revenue and significant judgement is involved in estimating the
price adjustments of affected commodities

BN 58 GG IR R KR  AREEHER R E
Hm BRFAREL REXRHE Eﬁ(ﬁﬂ ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ:%ﬁ%uﬁz &2
REABRERETEE -
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° comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year with
the underlying sale and purchase agreements,
bills of lading, invoices and bank-in slips
for settled balance and assessing whether
the related revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the Group’'s revenue
recognition policies;

. AT R - R F AR SR 5 EE
HEEWE  RE  BFERDEERIENR
TEREETHR  WAHEEREER
BiE ESEEKEERBR T ARR

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the financial year end date with the
underlying sale and purchase agreements
and bills of lading to determine whether the
related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period; and

. RHEAR - B BRFEEFER 2R 2E
M EIERERZSHEEEE RS &%E”“
EITHE  UBREEBARSEEEERNEE S
BT AR N RERR.

° evaluating the accuracy of the inputs adopted
by management in valuing provisional sales
amounts by agreeing, on a sample basis, i)
the provisional prices to the forward prices
provided by brokers; and ii) quantities and
qualities of commodities to underlying
documents such as sale agreements and the
final assay and weight certificates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen, Derek Man Ching.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeEalHEME2ERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

(Note)
(Hte)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat BT T JEMETF T
(Restated)
Cc=l))
Continuing operations BEEEER
Revenue Was 6 40,747,512 48,957,562
Cost of sales SHE R A (39,211,369)  (47,456,377)
Gross profit EA 1,536,143 1,501,185
Other income HAb A 8 202,541 203,644
Other net gain H Wz 5 58 9 33,363 33,085
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHEMA (399,205) (377,522)
Administrative expenses THAX (851,308) (1,204,700)
Finance costs B AN 10 (763,922) (686,861)
Share of profits less losses of DG &N ) s AR e 1E
associates, net of tax (F0BRFLIR) 23,253 25,141
Share of profits less losses of DiEEE R R FRE R
joint ventures, net of tax (FOBRFRIE) 2,332 14,859
Loss before taxation R A ES 18 11 (216,803) (491,169)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTis®i (%) e 12 (26,332) 367,725
Loss for the year from continuing RECEEK 2 FEBR
operations (243,135) (123,444)
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEHR 2 FEEE
operations 5 (308,167) (463,345)
Loss for the year FEEE (551,302) (586,789)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBREREMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

(Note)
(Hte)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
(Restated)
=)
Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2 E W -
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEN T HEERBZHEE -
profit or loss:
Defined benefit plan remeasurements EHATEFETE (9,506) 2,707
Tax on other comprehensive income Hih 2K TRIE 1,632 (287)
(7,874) 2,420
Items that may be reclassified REENEE A EEEm2HA
subsequently to profit or loss, (HIBHE) :
net of tax:
Exchange differences arising from BREBINTBRARTBIRREEZ
translation of financial statements of EHZ=R
overseas subsidiaries (62,354) (17,519)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit REERNBARRENSEZER
or loss on disposal of subsidiaries ZIEH =R 4,240 (8,839)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of Rensf PN AR BEESHFTH
cash flow hedges B Eh (205) 200
Share of other comprehensive income of SIEBE R REEREZ Hit
associates and joint ventures 2EKE (10,014) (8,879)
(68,333) (35,037)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEMEEMNE (76,207) (32,617)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEMEETE (627,509) (619,406)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBREREMEEKEX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

(Note)
(Htat)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BT B F T
(Restated)
(EE=7))
Loss for the year attributable to KAREE ANELFEESE
owners of the Company
- from continuing operations - REFELEER (287,191) (154,348)
- from discontinued operations - REERILERS 5 (310,366) (402,941)
Loss for the year attributable to KARHEE ANELEFEESE
owners of the Company (597,557) (557,289)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to IR S (R m F
non-controlling interests (E518)
- from continuing operations - REBEREEL 44,056 30,904
- from discontinued operations - REBKRILER 2,199 (60,404)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to IR EREILFE
non-controlling interests swm Al (E518) 46,255 (29,500)
Loss for the year FREEE (551,302) (586,789)
Total comprehensive income LWTATEGEEKGEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZINNGIE7Z =N (666,802) (567,138)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR 39,293 (52,268)
(627,509) (619,406)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 15
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREECEN) (5.24) (4.89)
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREECEN) (2.52) (1.35)

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

Kt

AEER - T-NEF-HA-BHERERATEY
BRELRFE 165 - REPTEEBIBETE

LERERITEET - BHIE2(00) -

FIZE299R L MEBRZEHFEMBHER 2 —
BB

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B AR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 ¥ —~F— A4+ —-H=1—H

84

(Note)
(Htat)
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
KtaE BT BT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BEREE 16 3,931,375 4,353,433
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 3,310,925 =
Land use rights T+ b F - 996,948
Investment properties REYHE - 840,413
Intangible assets mEE 18 292,652 335,159
Interest in associates R &R R RS 19 193,006 198,719
Interest in joint ventures NG &R 20 270,558 276,444
Other financial assets HEhemErE 21 170,723 153,050
Prepayments, deposits and FEMFUE - e REAER
other receivables FIE 24 33,494 70,815
Other non-current assets Hi3EmBEE 19,270 19,579
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 40(e) 689 53,649
Deferred tax assets BEETIBEE 34 25,084 26,331
8,247,776 7,324,540
Current assets REEE
Land use rights T b A - 42,423
Other financial assets Hit o R & E 21 991,618 1,648,843
Inventories FE 22 2,912,560 2,755,562
Trade receivables FEWE 5 iR1E 23 3,279,513 4,910,431
Prepayments, deposits and FERFRIE -« e REAER
other receivables FIE 24 5,500,934 4,776,127
Contract assets ABHEE 25 75,310 75,758
Warrantable LME commodities EERZLMER @ 40(e) 21,303 67,322
Derivative financial instruments MTEEMIA 40(e) 270,782 1,255,379
Tax recoverable AT B T 18 13,746 10,161
Pledged bank deposits B PRITIFR 145,999 13,119
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEIER 26 1,262,861 1,724,847
14,474,626 17,279,972
Assets associated with a disposal SERFBIELE 2 HEHERZ
group and non-current assets HHEEERERBEE
classified as held-for-sale 4 1,298,175 1,207,048
15,772,801 18,487,020

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under

wizt -

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B IR &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 # ~F— M4+ —-H=1—H

(Note)
(Hta)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —FE-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 BEFT BT
Current liabilities REBAE

Contract liabilities SHAE 25 120,133 148,797
Trade and other payables ENESRBERAMENZKE 27 6,984,443 8,870,232
Loans and borrowings BERRER 28 5,787,293 7,947,471
Lease liabilities HERE 31(a) 373,173 =
Employee benefits EEREF 32 - 13,253
Derivative financial instruments PTEESMTA 40(e) 540,667 693,003
Current tax payable FEAE ARSI 68,803 142,967
Deferred gains PRI W = - 17,707
Provisions B 27,510 32,235
13,902,022 17,865,665

Liabilities associated with PEABELEZHEHRR 2

a disposal group classified HEEaE

as held-for-sale 4 896,035 -
14,798,057 17,865,665
Net current assets REBEEFE 974,744 621,355
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 9,222,520 7,945,895

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under ~ #af - AKER T NF—A - HERXEREFEY

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not EMEERIFE 165 « RIBFTRIZNAE HX -
restated. See Note 2(c). LB S o BHTEE2(c)

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated S593ZE299E 2 I BZEH A M B MK Z —
financial statements. E1p -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B RO &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 ¥ —~F— A4+ —-H=1—H

(Note)
(Cirz)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 BEFT BT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Contract liabilities EHEE 25 - 140,650
Other non-current liabilities EmIERBEE 27 20,058 6,120
Loans and borrowings BERRER 28 1,134,889 1,721,507
Lease liabilities HERE 31(a) 3,056,826 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEESMTAE 40(e) 46,167 86,488
Employee benefits EERA 32 54,094 43,425
Deferred gains PRI W = - 42,155
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIERE 34 289,495 590,599
4,601,529 2,630,944
Net assets EEFE 4,620,991 5,314,951
Capital and reserves BARG#E 35
Share capital [N 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves ke (564,598) 141,262
Equity attributable to owners of RAREER AR
the Company 4,166,882 4,872,742
Non-controlling interests eI e 454,109 442,209
Total equity MR 4,620,991 5,314,951

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 299 were F81E 2998 v G A MK RED R _—_E —_ZFF Y
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 B —+H BESZ S e it & MIEET% Wi 5

April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREKEE

Ding Lei Chen Chao

TE& BR

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EF

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under it AEBR -_Z—hNF— A —HEXEREBY
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not HEREERIFE 165 - RIBFTIREBMNBERE -
restated. See Note 2(c). LEERERW ST o RHTEE2(c)

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated $593%F 2998 v Wit B X ZH A M EHRER 2 —
financial statements. i o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRERRRRES
Attributable
Share Perpetual tonon-
Share Capital ~ Translation Hedging  Statutory option - Accumulated capital controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ instruments Sub total interests Total
Bl XABK FERER
BR  EABE ENRE  HNEE  iTRB WE  ZHER I8 gt [l Rt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
A¥Tr  E¥Tr  BEFr E¥Fr B¥Tn B¥Tr BEfr B¥Fn BT BETr BETr
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\£-A—H 4,731,480 223929 (135,445) 289 214 19912 (1218706) 1,819,390 5,441,063 527200 5968263
Total comprehensive income FERENEAR
for the year
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (57,289 - (57289 (295000 (686,789)
Other comprehensive income 2 EHE
Fxchange differences arising fom ~ RENHBAAIHER
translation of financial statements K ZEREE
of overseas subsidiaries - - 5,249 - - - - - 5,249 (22,768) (17,519
Fxchange differences reclassified ~ INHENBAREEFH
to profit or loss on disposal of BERRERER
subsidiaries - - (8.839) - - - - - (8839) - (8839)
Effective portion of changes in ReREHINALEA
fair value of cash flow hedges okl - - = 200 = = = = 200 = 200
Share of other comprehensive MBERERAELE
income of associates and joint LEMRENE
ventures - - (8,879) - - - - - (8,879) - (8,879)
Defined benefit plan EfR e RS
remeasurments - - - - - - 2,707 - 2,707 - 2,107
Tax on other comprehensive Lt 2ERERE
income - - - - - - (287) - (287) - (287)
Total other comprehensive At2EHEAE
income - - (12,469) 200 - - 2420 - (9,849) (22,768) (32,617)
Total comprehensive income FERENEAR
for the year - - (12,469) 200 - - (554,869) - (567,138) (52,268) (619,406)
The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated 5593%F 2998 7 Wi B XSG A M EHREK 2 —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mAEDmEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E ~F — W41~ H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KATEEHRRER
Attributable
Share Perpetual tonon-
Share Capital ~ Translation Hedging  Statutory option - Accumulated capital controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ instruments Sub total interests Total
Bz KAER FERER
BR  EABE ENRE  HNEE  iTRB WE  ZHER If gt [l Rt
HK$000  HKSO00  HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKSO00 - HKS000  HK$000
A¥Fr  B¥Tn BEFr BT BEFr B¥Tn B¥Tn BEFr BB BEFr BT
Capital contribution from FrhER A
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 116 116
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - - - (10532 (10532
Dividend paid to non-controling miERERS RS
interest - - - - - - - - 16,963) 16,963)
Transfer to statutory reserve in BRABNERZER
compliance with foreign entities RATERZERRE
statutory requirements - - - 4109 - (4,109) - - - -
Change innoncontroling interest ~~ FEFER RS (925) (258) - - - - - (1,183 (5,344) (6,527)
Share option lapsed BIRERK - - - - (16501) 16,501 = = = =
(925) (258) - 4109 (16,501) 12,392 - (1,183) (32723 (33,908)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=8-NF+ZR
=t-Azkl 4,731,480 203,004 (148172) 489 4323 3411 (1761183) 1819390 4872742 442,209 531491

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERERBEX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAIRERRES
Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
relating to
a disposal Attributable
Share Perpetual group to non-
Share  Capital Translation  Hedging Statutory option Accumulated capital ~ classified as controlling
capital  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses instrument  held-for-sale  Sub-total interests Total
PERKELE
ZHEARIR
2 EhE
BhRE XAER  BRRWER FERER
REx  EAEE ERGE HhEE  iERE fie  EHER I8 ZitvHBeE gt Pt fit
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
BETr  BETL  BETL  BEFn BEFn EBTn BRFn EEFR BETr  EETL BETL EETR
Balance at 31 December 2018 W=%-NE+=8
(Note) St-AEBME) 4731480 223,004 (148172) 489 4,323 3411 (1,761,183) 1,819,390 - 4812142 442209 5,314,951
Impact on initial application of B REREAHBRS
HKFRS16 EEZ 165072 - - - - - - (38799) - - (38,799) (29)  (38,828)
Adjusted balance at 1 January H=E-AE-A-A
2019 MERRLER 4731480 223,004 (148172) 489 4323 3411 (1,799982) 1,819,390 - 4,833,943 442180 5,276,123
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (597557) - - (B97557) 46,255 (551302)
Other comprehensive income {2 EkE
Exchange differences BEBNERELL
arising from translation of EiER
foreign operations - - (55,453) - 61 - - - - (552392 (6,962)  (62,354)
Exchange difference reclassified (L EHBAREER
to profit or loss on disposal of ~ HEEEHZ
subsidiaries EXEE - - 4,240 - - - - - - 4,240 - 4,240
Share of other comprehensive ~ HABERFR
income of associates and ﬁ%ZHK%EU&ﬁu
joint ventures - (1,004) (9,010) - - - - - - (10014) - (10014)
Fffective portion of changesin~ B&REHRHALE
fair value of cash flow hedges ~ BEETHERHH - - - (205) - - - - - (205) - (205)
Defined benefit plan EEAERTE
remeasurements - - - - - - (9,506) - - (9,506) - (9,506)
Taxon other comprehensive ~ Ett2EREHE
income - - - - - - 1,632 - - 1,632 - 1,632
Total other comprehensive A2EbagE
income - (1,004) (60,223) (205) 61 - (7.874) - - (69,245) (6,962)  (76,207)
Total comprehensive income ~~ FE2ERHEE
for the year - (1,004) (60,223) (205) 61 - (605,431) - - (666,802) 39293 (627,509)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under ~ Mfit © AEER-Z-NAF-A -—HERXKEAEEY
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ']%%?ﬁ o IRIRFTIE BAAE 7% -

LR ERWEET - BHIFE2(0) -

restated. See Note 2(c).
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The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERZEDHX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KO RRERRES
Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
relating to
a disposal Attributable
Share Perpetual group to non-
Share  Capital Translation  Hedging Statutory option Accumulated capital ~ classified as controlling
capital  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses instrument  held-for-sale  Sub-total interests Total
PERKELE
ZHEARIR
2 EhE
BhRE XAER  BARNEER FERER
RE  EAEE  ENRE WMEE  GERE i ZHER I8 ZitvHBeE gt Pt fit
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
B¥Fr  EEFn EEThL BMTn BMTnL BMTn BRTn BRR B¥Fr  EEFL BEThL EETa
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - (259) - - - - - - - (259) 397 138
Share option lapsed BREXN - - - - - (2,675) 2,675 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR - - - - - - - - - - 2397 2397
Transfer to amounts SEEAEREELE
recognised in other ZHERRREH 2
comprehensive income and YRR RN ER 25
accumulated equity relating LEESE
to disposal groups classified
as held-for-sale - (222,.247) 81,854 - - - - - 140,393 - - -
Dividend paid to noncontrolling ~ F3EFRIER 2 e
interests - - - - - - - - - - (30,158)  (30,158)
Transfer to statutory reserve i~ AHABHER T
compliance with foreign REBAELEEEE
entities' statutory
requirements - - - - 3753 - (3,753) - - - - -
- (222,506) 81,854 - 3,753 (2,675) (1,078) - 140,393 (259) (27,364)  (27,623)
Balance at 31 December 2019 W=E-AFT-A
=t-HzE&4 4,731,480 (506)  (126,541) 24 8,137 736 (2,406491) 1,819,390 140,393 4,166,882 454,109 4,620,991

FI3E299R L MEBRREHFEMBHRR 2 —

15 -

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEaRERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

(Note)
(Hte)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
KtaF BT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETTE
Cash generated from operations KEEREZIRE 26(b) 883,728 1,951,876
Interest paid B A 26(c) (662,945) (588,729)
Income tax paid EAfTEREHL (123,973) (90,703)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETBHABZRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEE 96,810 1,272,444
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition W B A TS, (FTH) 2
of subsidiaries W& F5 2,925 (11,303)
Capital expenditure =N (162,776) (495,841)
Net (increase)/decrease in pledged bank = #EIFRITFEZR GEAN) 52
deposits HEE (131,850) 23,742
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E¥ZE - R KR 2 P53
and equipment KIE 120,050 4,210,485
Purchase of other financial assets EEEMERERE (1,512,079) (2,174,564)
Net proceeds from disposal of other HEHEMERMEE 2 MSRIA
financial assets SRR 2,181,467 1,280,278
Receipt/(placement) of guarantee deposits [A] 4% & A BIUER ~ (44R) 72 1%
to clearing corporation EEN 17,427 (10,672)
Loans to related parties mREgEF B - 3,909
Interest received B U F 8 154,984 150,248
Dividend received from joint ventures and UERA & 10 2 I B & N B AR B,
associates 43,481 37,838
Dividends received from financial assets ~ WER & @& EMK B 305 12,223
Net proceeds from disposal of investment HERE WS 2 iS5k I8% 58
property - 1,754
Net proceeds from disposal of HEXBEZER 2
the US Operation FriSsRIE 558 5(a) 660,791 =
Net proceeds from disposal of SR E S 2 FRIS 5RIE
the UK Operation it 5(b) 275,095 =
Deposit received in connection with & R B E RS FT IR AR
disposal of the PRC Operation 20,000 -
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & &R &) 2 FT1S B F58 - 146,867
Net proceeds from disposal of joint HEAGEDEMEHIEFE
venture - 171,790
Acquisition of joint venture WEE & (11,283) =
Loans made to joint venture AE AP EENR (60,430) =
Repayment of loans from associate N REENE R 874 =

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

(Note)
(Hez)
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEFBZREERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,598,981 3,346,754
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Net proceeds from borrowings raised {8 RFTSFIEF 58 26(c) 14,787,107 20,659,473
Repayments of borrowings BEER 26(c) (16,502,093) (25,721,799)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaRE 26(c) (417,186) (6,539)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests S {v JE32 B A2 25 A% 2. (30,158) (16,963)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FE1ZAZHERS )T &
interests 397 116
Acquisition of additional equity interest in U EEIR A B A 7 2 5B SN HE
an existing subsidiary - (6,527)
Loan from non-controlling interests REFFERERNER 26(c) 16,260 =
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BEEEACRESFE
ACTIVITIES (2,145,673) (5,092,239)
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReR\LEEBEBARDFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (449,882) (473,041)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT H{zH&sRBESEEEEB
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,720,582 2,129,974
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE /MN&EREE) 2 &
CHANGES 4,789 63,649
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT H#&AzHSRBESEEHEEB
END OF THE YEAR 26(a) 1,275,489 1,720,582
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under  ffit : ZAEBR _Z—NF—A—HEXEAEHH

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 299 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oS B R M AL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited
(“Hong Kong HNA"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, is the immediate parent of the
Company. HNA Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Group”), a company
registered in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
is an intermediate parent of the Company. Hainan Province
Cihang Foundation, a foundation registered in the PRC, is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”). These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS and a number
of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

FOR

2.

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F W41~ H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- other investments in debt and equity
securities measured at fair value (see Note

2(9));

- derivative financial instruments (see Note
2(h));

- investment properties (see Note 2(j));

= inventories held under broker-trader
exemption (see Note 2(0));

- warrantable LME commodities (see Note
2(p)); and

= trade receivables and payables containing

provisional pricing features (see Notes 2(s)
and 2(u)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held-for-sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see Note
2(ee)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

2. EESHBE®

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

On 3 April 2019, the Company failed to pay accrued
interests and certain fees in the total amount of
approximately HK$63,000,000 (the “Default”) in
relation to a borrowing with a principal amount
of approximately HK$1,400,000,000 (the “New
Borrowing”), which was drawn down pursuant to
a facility agreement dated 29 September 2018 (the
“Facility Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and certain lenders (the “Lenders”). The
New Borrowing was with an original maturity date in
October 2019 and was secured by certain charged
assets (the “Charged Assets"”) which included
the equity interests of the Company’s subsidiaries
that hold vast majority of the Group's total assets.
As a result of the Default, the Lenders demanded
immediate payment of the outstanding principal,
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued
or outstanding under the Facility Agreement and
certain security in relation to the New Borrowing
was enforced as the Group was unable to meet
such demand. Consequently, the Lenders took
possession of the Charged Assets and appointed
receivers over the Charged Assets.

On 19 July 2019, the Company and the Lenders
reached an agreement to enter into a supplemental
agreement to amend and supplement the Facility
Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Lenders agreed to
increase the total commitment under the Facility
Agreement and to extend the maturity date of
the New Borrowing (the “Loan Extension”). The
Loan Extension became effective on 5 August
2019, pursuant to which the principal amount of
the New Borrowing increased to approximately
HK$1,630,000,000 (the “Extended Borrowing")
and the maturity date was extended to twelve
months from 5 August 2019 with interest continuing
to be paid quarterly. With the Loan Extension taking
effect, the enforcement of the Charged Assets and
the appointment of receivers were released and
terminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed of its property investment businesses in
the United States (the “US Operation”) and the
United Kingdom (the “UK Operation”, together with
the US Operation, the “US and UK Operations”)
and majority of the proceeds therefrom were
used to repay the Extended Borrowing. As at
31 December 2019, the Group's total borrowing
due for repayment in the next twelve months
amounted to approximately HK$5,787,293,000 (see
Note 28). Except for revolving trading facilities of
HK$3,980,553,000 which are fully secured with
certain working capital of the Group’s commodity
marketing business, the remaining portion of the
Group's total borrowing due for repayment in the
next twelve months primarily comprises of medium
term notes (“MTN") with a principal amount
of S$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$579,040,000) due on 18 March 2020 and the
Extended Borrowing with an outstanding principal
amount of approximately HK$799,967,000 due on 4
August 2020.

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group has
further partially repaid the outstanding principal
and interest of the Extended Borrowing with the
proceeds from disposal of its sports and leisure-
related facilities business (the "PRC Operation”)
and fully redeemed the MTN with its internal cash
resources. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the outstanding principal
amount of the Extended Borrowing amounted to
approximately HK$655,497,000 which is due on 4
August 2020 with the next interest payment due on
5 May 2020.

The Group will be unable to repay the interest and
outstanding principal of the Extended Borrowing in
full when they fall due on 4 August 2020 unless it
is able to obtain sufficient cash resources through
refinancing or other arrangements.

2. EBEESHBE®

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The inability to repay the interest and outstanding
principal in full when they fall due may trigger
the enforcement of the Charged Assets and the
appointment of receivers, which could result in
significant impacts to the Group's operations.
These facts and conditions indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In view of the above, the Directors have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to continue as a going
concern and pay its debt as and when they fall due.
The Directors are undertaking a debt restructure plan
(the “Debt Restructure Plan”), which includes the
following plans and measures, so that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern:

(i) Fund-raising from financing activities

The Directors have been actively negotiating
with commercial banks and financial
institutions for raising funds to the Group.
The Group has been engaging in ongoing
discussions with an independent third party
(the “Potential Lender”) on a refinancing
facility (the “Refinancing Facility"),
specifically used for the repayment of the
outstanding principal and interest of the
Extended Borrowing. As at the date of
approval of these financial statements,
negotiations relating to initial terms of the
Refinancing Facility have commenced with
the Potential Lender, which is subject to the
internal approval of the Potential Lender. The
Directors expected such approval process will
take up to several weeks from the date of
approval of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

(ii) Disposal plans of the Group

As disclosed above, the Group has completed
the disposals of the US and UK Operations
and the PRC Operation and used the majority
of the proceeds to repay the outstanding
debt of the Group including the Extended
Borrowing.

The Directors are committed to focus on the
provision of logistic services to optimise the
capital structure of the Group and maintain
a stable operation. As a result, the Group
also intends to dispose of certain operations
other than those related to logistic services.
The Group has received letters of intent
or expressions of interest from potential
buyers with respect to the disposal of these
operations and the Directors have been
actively negotiating with these potential
buyers. The Group intends to use the
proceeds from these disposals to repay the
outstanding debt of the Group, including the
Extended Borrowing or Refinancing Facility
(as applicable), and to optimise the Group's
capital structure.

If the Refinancing Facility cannot be obtained
in time to repay the outstanding principal
and interest of the Extended Borrowing, the
Group may need to accelerate its disposal
plans to repay the Extended Borrowing as
and when it falls due.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by the management which
cover a period of not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2019. Based on such cash flow
projections, the Directors consider that, assuming
the success of the Debt Restructure Plan, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its obligations as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months from
31 December 2019. Accordingly, the Directors are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEESHBE®

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) HBEBRRZEHEE(E)
statements (continued)
The consolidated financial statements do not include RAEPRRRIAD S EAEEE
any adjustments relating to the carrying amount and ERFBELENBER T & EL MR
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be HEMNTHEEAZRREEMAR
necessary should the Group be unable to operate as MEFH D -

a going concern.

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BFBEREH
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 186, BEREHMASERMOREAERE
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs et E RERNFE] T
that are first effective for the current accounting EREER - FAEMEHRE LRSS
period of the Group. 165 B R Z BB B 5 HRE 2]

ZABETAN o

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the BREAVBMELNEZ16RHE
developments has had a material effect on how the SN ZEBEHERBEKEINZE
Group's results and financial position for the current Aok B BN A S B 48 R BiR
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. A FEE K E - NEBWARER
The Group has not applied any new standard or KA E AR E B ERFTR]
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current R R 2E -
accounting period.
HKFRS 16, Leases BEBUBHEEERE165  HE
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the BB B RELERNE16FMAEE
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining SRERE17TREERE@EZEE
whether an arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) ar(EEMERERELZE®)R
15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, EBRIRETLHELBIFHE -
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving BB (RBREEZES)REE15%
the legal form of a lease. It introduces a single HEHE - BERERE(BKEE
accounting model for lessees, which requires a EEE)REE2INTELREE
lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease FEREARZHAE - gt A
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a SIAE—gFHER - WHEEAEA
lease term of twelve months or less (“short-term RTEHERRERAEEEREE
leases”) and leases of low value assets. The lessor BE - HEEAATZEAKATH
accounting requirements are brought forward from HE((RHAE) REEBEEEN
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. THERIN - AN EFERR A

REMABRER B G ERIE 17
SREVARRE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2019. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

(a) Changes in the accounting policies
(i) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a
lease mainly relates to the concept
of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer
controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition
of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to
contracts that were entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
For contracts entered into before 1
January 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are or
contain leases.

Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under
HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under HKFRS 16.

2. EESHBE®

(c)

B EREREE(E)

BBUBHEERIE16%;  HE(E)
rEBERZZT-NF—A—HE
REMB M RELERNE165E
AEBDERKETEWS AR
MEREXERNRAZEELY
R-F—hF— A Bz
BREOTAR - LEER KRB B
BREBEFEGTEMENTRER -

BRBE ST BRES RFTEMA
BEMEEENEERTENE—F
AEEIIT

(a) B EE)

(i) HENTEE
HETENEHED
BTGB SE
B8 - BEAEUIEHRELE
Bl 16 IR IER P
RO ERL A
HIE B & E R R
(B @mEEFERA=
EE)MEBEEEL
T cERFP AR
RNEHMBIEEMAR
ARz AR RES
BRI OB F &
B BIRREBEEIES
T o

NEBEBE B

HERIE 1655 H
HEZHEERAR
EZE—NF—H—
EE WA SN
ZEK R ZE—
HhE—FB—BHRI&I
ZEHME AEE
EEABEEAI TR
FERMARBLTHE
KB EHEZ LRI
f& o

Bt - ERIRBEEE
A RIS 17 IR T
HAMEEZEORE
BAEMBREERSE
165 AEIERTEEA

CWT International Limited / 2019 Annual Report

101




102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(a) Changes in the accounting policies
(continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement
for a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by HKAS

7. Instead, the Group is required
to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

Where the contract contains
lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
For the Group, low-value assets are
typically laptops or office furniture.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(a) Changes in the accounting policies
(continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(a) Changes in the accounting policies
(continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting (continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured
when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EFFBER2H®E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BRBUBHREERFE165;  HEE)
(a)  Changes in the accounting policies (a)  EEIEEREE(E)
(continued)
(i) Lessor accounting (i) HEAGFEERE
The Group leases out a number of AEEERKEEHE
items of machinery as the lessor of B A BT 2 A RS
operating leases. The accounting HE - BARASE
policies applicable to the Group as a EAEBAANSETI
lessor remain substantially unchanged RABUSHB B
from those under HKAS 17. ZERIE1 758 E T HRZ
LR o
Under HKFRS 16, when the Group BIBEBBYBEREE
acts as an intermediate lessor in a AIZE165% - WA E
sublease arrangement, the Group is RO BLZHFIEATF
required to classify the sublease as REAATE A&
a finance lease or an operating lease BE/E2EZEXHEME
by reference to the right-of-use asset R AEEEMIE
arising from the head lease, instead 2ERBEEB M
of by reference to the underlying S RRMERE K
asset. The adoption of HKFRS 16 does ZHE -ptmsE
not have a significant impact on the RNB B RS %
Group's financial statements in this Bl 165 ¥ A& E
regard. B mRIWEERNFT
g o
(b) Transactional impact b) ARETE

As at the date of transition to HKFRS 16
(i.e. 1 January 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases
previously classified as operating leases at
the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the relevant
incremental borrowing rates as at 1 January
2019. The incremental borrowing rates used
for determination of the present value of the
remaining lease payments ranged from 3.57%
to 7.72%, depending on various factors such
as the length of the leases and jurisdiction in
which the leased properties located.

RBEE BB RS £
F16HER BT —NF
—HB—R8) AEERLH
DHEAKEHENHEE RS
THEMNFBEEETHTE
HERrEHEaE  WEH
R-_ZE—NF—A BN
B 15 2 8 BRI RETTREER o
ARETH THENZIRE
RIS ERFENTF3.57%
£7.72% * BEEZEREM
EcnmAEHREEEYE
FRfE Rl =R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEgTEHE®
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) SEFFBER2H®E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB B EERE16%E - HE(E)
(b)  Transactional impact (continued) (b)  BEFEE)

106

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends
within twelve months from the date
of initial application of HKFRS 186,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or
before 31 December 2019;

payments associated with short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis
as lease expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEESTHBX®
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BEBEREE(E)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) EBBHEERE16%  HE (B

(iii) in applying HKFRS 16 for the first
time, the Group has accounted for
operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than twelve months
as at 1 January 2019 as short-term
leases as permitted under the practical
expedients in the standard.

There is no material impact on the Group's
financial performance due to the adoption of
this new accounting standard.

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018.

(b) Transactional impact (continued) (b)  BEFEGE)

(i)  REXERBBYS
R 1657/ 1B
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R R AN ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(b)

Transactional impact (continued)

So far as the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on leases previously classified as
finance leases is concerned, the Group is
not required to make any adjustments at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, other
than changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, instead of “obligations under
finance leases”, these amounts are included
within “lease liabilities”, and the depreciated
carrying amount of the corresponding leased
asset is identified as a right-of-use asset.
There is no significant impact on the opening
balance of equity.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property in “other property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position. As at 1 January 2019, none
of the Group's right-of-use assets meet the
definition of investment property.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 16
in relation to capitalisation of operating leases
where the Group is lessee and classification
of certain lease-related account balances.
Under the transition methods chosen, the
Group recognises cumulative effect of
the initial application of HKFRS 16 as an
adjustment to the opening balances at 1
January 2019. Comparative information is not
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEgTEHE®
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EFFBER2H®E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB B EERE16%E - HE(E)
(b)  Transactional impact (continued) (b)  BEFEE)

The following table gives a summary of the TREPI B ERE MBI R
opening balance adjustments recognised for PEBEBTHEIREERZE16
each line item in the consolidated statement SRR B RS I8 B R EY)
of financial position that has been impacted AR - TREFHTEN
by HKFRS 16. Line items that were not HEWEBIELA - Bt -
affected by the changes have not been F ¥ B8 10 /N et AR AT SR AR
included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals BATHE3 M8 TEN
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the HSH -

numbers provided.

Reclassification

Carrying of accounts and Carrying
amount at capitalisation of amount at
31 December operating lease 1 January
2018 contracts 2019
R=Z-N\F KEEHIER R=Z-NF
TZA=t-H KEHESY —A-AH
HEREE - %N MEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Line items in the consolidated FERBRARAZTENEE
statement of financial position MRHREERE16H T E
impacted by the adoption of MIER :
HKFRS 16:
Property, plant and equipment I ER & 4,353,433 (13,856) 4,339,577
Right-of-use assets FRERE = 4,802,146 4,802,146
Land use rights T A 996,948 (996,948) -
Interest in joint ventures ReE&bEES 276,444 (247) 276,197
Deferred tax assets BERNBEE 26,331 1,609 27,940
Total non-current assets FRBREE 7,324,540 3792704 11,117,244
Land use rights Tl A 42,423 (42,423) -
Prepayments, deposits and BIHE - ke REMmEK
other receivables FUE 4,776,127 (14,013) 4,762,114
Total current assets REBEE 18,487,020 (56,436) 18,430,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEgTEHE®
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) SEFFBER2H®E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB B EERE16%E - HE(E)
(b)  Transactional impact (continued) (b)  BEFEE)

Reclassification

Carrying of accounts and Carrying
amount at capitalisation of amount at

31 December operating lease 1 January
2018 contracts 2019
RZB-N& KREEHIER R-FT-nF
+TZA=t-A KEAEEY —-A-H
HEREE 2[4 HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT ERTT EETT

Trade and other payables ENESEBERAMENTE (8870232 3,115 (8,867,117)
Loans and borrowings ERRER (7,947,471) 5,195 (7,942,276)
Lease liabilities HEaE = (426,077) (426,077)
Deferred gains B e (17,707) 17,707 =
Provisions e (32,235) (19,465) (51,700)
Total current liabilities hBEaE (17,865,665) (419,525)  (18,285,190)
Net current assets RBFEE 621,355 (475,961) 145,394
Total assets less current liabilities 2ZERTEEE 7,945,895 3,316,743 11,262,638

Loans and borrowings ERRER (1,721,507) 10,603 (1,710,904)
Lease liabilities HEaE = (3,408,329) (3,408,329)
Deferred gains B e (42,155) 42,155 =

Total non-current liabilities ERBAEE (2,630,944) (3,355,571) (5,986,515)
Net assets FEE 5,314,951 (38,828) 5,276,123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

(c)

Impact on the financial result and cash flows
of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. This will result in front load effect to the
Group's total expenses in early years of lease
arrangement. The adoption of HKFRS 16
does not result in a significant impact on the
reported loss from continuing operations in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the Group as a lessee is required to split
rentals paid under capitalised leases into their
capital element and interest element. The
capital element is classified as financing cash
outflows, similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17
were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash
flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS
16 therefore results in a significant change
in presentation of cash flows within the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
Group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(u), (v), (w) or (x) depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(n)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see Note 2(ee)).

2. EESHBE®

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Fale)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held-for-sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held-for-sale) (see Note
2(ee)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or
joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(f) and (n)(ii)).
Any acquisition date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note
2(n)), unless classified as held-for-sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held-for-sale)
(see Note 2(ee)).

(e)

BENARGELE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(if) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or Groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set
out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see Note 40(e). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective
interest method (see Note 2(bb)(x)).

= fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) —
recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of
ECL, interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

(g)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity (g) EERBRAFZSZZHMBEE

securities (continued)

RRERELIIIRE (E)

(i) Investments other than equity (i)

(ii)

investments (continued)

- FVPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purpose and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to accumulated losses. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2(bb)(x).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedges of net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see
Note 2(i)).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and
variable rate borrowings (cash flow hedges). Some
borrowings are designated as hedges of the foreign
exchange risk of a net investment in a foreign
operation.

i Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that is
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in
the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognised in the same
line of profit or loss relating to the hedged
item.

2. EESHBE®

(h)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedging instrument in a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of any gain
or loss on the derivative financial instrument
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset such as inventory, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost of the
non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the
hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such
as when a forecast sale occurs or interest
expense is recognised).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Hedging (continued)

ii.

ii.

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting (including when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively.
When hedge accounting is discontinued,
but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been
accumulated in the hedging reserve remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer
expected to take place, the amount that has
been accumulated in the hedging reserve
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Hedge of net investments in foreign
operations

The effective portion of any foreign
exchange gain or loss on the borrowings is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity in the exchange
reserve until the disposal of the foreign
operation, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. The ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2. EESHBE®

(i)  EHC

1.

iii.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(j)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2(m)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in Note 2(bb)(ix).

In the comparative period, when the Group held
a property interest under an operating lease and
used the property to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the Group could elect on a
property-by-property basis to classify and account
for such interest as an investment property. Any
such property interest which had been classified
as an investment property was accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see Note 2(m)),
and the same accounting policies were applied to
that interest as were applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments were accounted for as described in Note
2(m).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(n)):

= right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note
2(m)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(dd)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated

KA SERE T 1P T EE

Hotel and buildings for golf business

mRRKER 2 BERIETF

Leasehold land and buildings

ME Tt REF

Plant, machinery and equipment

B - #as R B

Furniture, fittings, computers and
office equipment

R RE - BERRPAERE

Motor vehicles and trailers

YT R HE

Leasehold improvements

HEMERE

3FFE 254

1EZF104F

3FE104F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(1) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see Note 2(n)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

o Computer software

Computer software which is acquired by
the Group, where it is not an integral part
of the related hardware, is treated as an
intangible asset. Computer software is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Computer software is amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

o Customer contracts

Customer contracts relate to the estimated
value of contracts acquired in a business
combination; and have finite lives and
are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Customer contracts are amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over the
customers' contract periods of 1 to 5 years.

o London Metal Exchange (“LME”) license

The license relates to the estimated license
value acquired in a business combination and
has finite life and is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

LME license is amortised to profit or loss
using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 30 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

N

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Business Relationships (“BRS”)

BRS relates to the estimated economic
benefits from business relationships arising
from a business combination. BRS refers to
business relationship between suppliers and
customers. BRS is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BRS is amortised to profit or loss using the

2.

EESHBE®

n

BREE(RFEERS®

EBBE ([ RBEBE])

EGRRREEBAHES
E 1 L ALY s
Mo XBREEREREAS
PRz EBREF - X%
RIAEH B A Bl E BRI AR
AR R 58 55 KO B B BT

=
E°

EERRRIRAE A E R FH

straight-line basis over its estimated useful AFEEEFHAEGA#ES
life of 4 to 5 years. B o
. Brand (“BD”) ke ([t ))

BD relates to the estimated economic
benefits from brand arising from a business
combination. BD refers to the acquired
company's good reputation and name known
in the market. BD is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BD is amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
years.
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Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains
lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

2. EESHBE®

(m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(k)
and 2(n)(ii)), except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with Note 2(j).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

Bt 7% R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

The lease liability is remeasured
when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in ‘other
property, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in
the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(m)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee
the Group classified leases as finance
leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating
leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an
investment property was
classified as investment
property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified
as investment property, was
accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see Note 2(j));
and

- land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which could not be measured
separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease,
was accounted for as being
held under a finance lease,
unless the building was also
clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease was the
time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous
lessee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Bt 7% R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019 (continued)

Where the Group acquired the use
of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges,
were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the
cost or valuation of the assets over
the term of the relevant lease or,
where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life
of the asset, as set out in Note 2(k).
Impairment losses were accounted
for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in Note 2(n). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments
were charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEESTHBX®
(continued)
(m) Leased assets (continued) (m) HEEE®)
(i)  As alessee (continued) (i) EEEABEA(E)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January B RZF-—AF—H—
2019 (continued) H BT FF BB (48)
Where the Group had the use of A BHE AL
assets held under operating leases, HEREEEZER

(ii)

payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis was
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2(bb)(ix).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESTHBX®
(continued)
(m) Leased assets (continued) (m) HEEE®)
(ii)  As a lessor (continued) (i) EBHBEAGE)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(m)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables
and other receivables, including loans
to associates and joint ventures,
which are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal
and interest);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS

15 (see Note 2(r));

= debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity and
debt securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan
and (i) the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive if the loan is drawn down.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHBEX®)
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) KELMTE SHEER
contract assets and lease receivables FERHEENENEEERE
(continued) (#&)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and

FERHIEEEE(E)
HRRIR T EE A - RIFAHIR
& EEFERAIATREE KBS
g

- EEERMEE - B

other receivables and contract assets: S5 RARAEK
o ZAN 2 o 3

effective interest rate determined at '\TAIE&T:'\%@QE PR
MTERAREETNE

initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECL are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

= lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial assets, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial assets since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is significantly past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal

or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant

deterioration in a financial asset’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) KREZBITH  BHEER
contract assets and lease receivables FERHEENENEEERE
(continued) (#&)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) 1= EERAIE_LH (&)
= an actual or expected significant = BEALEEENTE
deterioration in the operating results Rk TEERE =1t
of the debtor; and &
= existing or forecast changes in the = B - mig - sk
technological, market, economic ERIRIER B RIS TR
or legal environment that have a HE B HEHABIT
significant adverse effect on the HEHAEEE TR

debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
assets, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECL are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(bb)(x) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

= significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

2. EBEESHBE®
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(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) KELMTE SHEER
contract assets and lease receivables FERHEENENEEERE
(continued) (#&)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

AT E S WA B E ()

- fERARE A BEHE R
WESETHEMIP T
B4

- R TB AR
FRBEHBEAR
8 HEBAETH

B/ 988 .
TR

= the disappearance of an active market = AR ETAHBRH
for a security because of financial N2 EEH KA

difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESTHBX®
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (i) HiFEneEERE

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

= investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EMFERBEERMEE)
(continued)

142

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHBEX®)
(continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets (n) FEEBEEREEREGE)

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EMFERBEERMEE)
(continued)
= Reversals of impairment losses = 7 (215 18 fE5 18

In respect of assets other than ?ﬁﬁ??&ﬁ%%?\\ZﬁE
goodwill, an impairment loss is - W AR E ]
reversed if there has been a favourable 1451@ > B8 2 {dET IR
change in the estimates used to BAES - BEARE
determine the recoverable amount. An BESTRED B8
impairment loss in respect of goodwill ZBEEEATE R
is not reversed. [@ o

A reversal of an impairment loss is BB 1B B A fE R
limited to the asset’s carrying amount FFETERRBE
that would have been determined had BEZERATRES
no impairment loss been recognised EZEEREAER
in prior years. Reversals of impairment IR o BESEREE
losses are credited to profit or loss MR E 2 FEFA
in the year in which the reversals are B o

recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) HEIEIRER EE
Under the Rules Governing the Listing BIBEBBBERIMBRA
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of E?%tm%ﬁ% AEEA
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required BRE BT ERE 3457 F

to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(n)(i) and 2(n)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Fale)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories where the Group acts as a broker-trader
include metals and energy commodities acquired
with the purpose of selling them in the near term
and generating a profit from fluctuations in price, and
are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

All other inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis
and includes the full costs of materials, freight and
insurance and all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Due to the provisional pricing of the purchase of
the concentrate inventory and the subsequent price
adjustments on the basis of the quotational period
and the short inventory turnover period, cost of
concentrate inventory represents fair value of the
inventory.

Inventories allocated as hedged items in a fair value
hedge relationship are adjusted for the change in the
fair value attributable to the hedged risk component
(commodity price risk).

Allowance is made where necessary for obsolete,
slow moving and defective inventories.

Warrantable LME commodities

Warrantable LME commodities comprise highly
liguid commaodities with the intention of selling them
in the near term, where the Group acts as a broker-
trader. These are measured at fair value less costs
to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or the
costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which are
not capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(0)), other
property, plant and equipment (see Note 2(k)) or
intangible assets (see Note 2(l)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to
be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; generate
or enhance resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are expected to
be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are
not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.

2. EBEESHBE®

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(r)

Other contract costs (continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the
asset relates is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in Note 2(bb).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(bb)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(n)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see Note 2(s)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(bb)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 2(s)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(bb)(x)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see Note 2(r)).

Except for trade receivables containing provisional
pricing features which are measured at FVPL,
receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 2(n)(i)).

(r)

(s)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(n)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for trade payables containing
provisional pricing features which are measured at
FVPL, trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see Note 2(dd)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(w) Perpetual borrowings

Perpetual borrowings repayable upon an event not
controllable by the Group are stated at cost and
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(x) Convertible bonds

i. Convertible bonds that contain a debt
component and an equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted into
ordinary shares at the option of the holder,
where the number of shares to be issued
is fixed, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments, i.e. they contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component
of the convertible bonds is measured at
fair value based on the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar
non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the
initial fair value of the convertible bonds as a
whole and the initial fair value of the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

(w)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

Convertible bonds (continued)

i.

ii.

Convertible bonds that contain a debt
component and an equity component
(continued)

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the notes are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying amount
of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed,
the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Convertible bonds that contain a debt
component and derivative components

Convertible bonds which do not contain
an equity component are accounted for as
follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair
value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see Note 2(h)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the host liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible bonds are allocated to the
host liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to the
host liability component is recognised initially
as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x) Convertible bonds (continued)

ii.

Convertible bonds that contain a debt
component and derivative components
(continued)

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(h).
The host liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the host liability
component is calculated using the effective
interest method.

If the bonds are converted, the shares issued
are measured at fair value and any difference
between the fair value of shares issued and
the carrying amounts of the derivative and
liability components are recognised in profit
or loss. If the bonds are redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and
the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in profit or loss.

(y) Employee benefits

i.

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (continued)

ii.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit retirement plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine the present value and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the
Group, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense/income
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognised in profit or loss and allocated by
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling
and distribution costs” or “administrative
expenses”. Current service cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a plan are changed, or
when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the
changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
at the earlier of when the plan amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits
are recognised. Net interest expense (income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset). The discount rate is the yield
at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations.

CWT International Limited / 20194 4 #k

2.

EESHBE®

ly) REE®EN®

1.

TRE 18 FIB K5 BIASE

AEESBUFESAME
B FR KT & 2 A IEFER -
ARG EERERAH
Ko BAFE] AR 755 P ER 2 R
KB EER - 2B T A
BB AEERE - MEME
EEEZAREERTIAM
e B ERIGEA AR R
ERANBEARETAIHE - B
AEERMAREEN B
HRCEEQBBAEZE
] R AR R AT B 2 R AR
IR RR Z LA A PR TS
ZEBENRBERR

REBNAEBEE)FELZ
RIS A ROFF S
ARBmARER - LIRA®
DERBIHERAK]  THE
KoHERIKRTTHRFAX]
Z— &b o BB RBRAR
AERRERBAEEZF
E AR A AYEIRAE 2 B IR At
B o frist 8l 2 @A IR E B
et 4R - ERESBER
BHREZERNEZEBS RO XE
B AR < W s B B AT
B (E B AT AR i S B
R EEK AR L1EF
RME P ZBREERERA
R - HIRFENER
(AN BBRRERNE
B(BE)FHEEATENT
SHERAASE 2 BER
RYUETE - BRXRIH
AEAEEETAE 2R
HEZBECEBESFRRE
IR Z Wt & o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Employee benefits (continued)

ii.

ii.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations
(continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed,
or when a plan is curtailed, current service
cost for the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the
gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of
when the plan amendment or curtailment
occurs and when related restructuring costs
or termination benefits are recognised.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement plans are recognised in
other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in accumulated losses.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (continued)

iii.

iv.

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the
shares issued) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Other employee benefits

The Group operates other employee benefit
schemes. Every year the Group calculates the
amount to be debited/credited to the bonus
pool under the schemes. Such amounts are
recognised in the profit or loss. Payments
to beneficiaries are dependent on certain
conditions such as minimum service period
and long-term profitability. Payments within
12 months to beneficiaries after the service
period are reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

CWT International Limited / 20194 4 #k

2.

EESHBE®

(2)

FRG® (%)
BRETAERZAISMERIN - fHRE
AIREA ERTOR M BUE AT BB &
R0 - ABECEHRBABRAME
SZEFRERAEEDS T AER -
A XFHER B AR E R E R E
2 ERERBIRE E 2 R K ERB
NEERBEDRERARAV LR ZH
MELZ S : L EFZH VAR
[l — R M [ — EsR TR B B8
B WIRHIE R S Z R TR AT
Bm 2 F— AR ER IR R EM
AT IR E R ] A AT kiR B
ZHIRARED - EEERA RRY
EREZHEAXHRREABAMR
HEBRMEREL 2 ELHRBEE
B MEXRAR—ER - %EE
B B[R] — A5 R e [F) — P AR AR
ERAR  YFRMAENERBRILIE
A BAZHMARD - BITAE
= o

EREEREEEMBE AR
SMERBBEBHE N E AR E A
BEACZEREZR  THEGHH
ERBR A2 EERRB I THE
RARRELTBEBAHZ—
MOEBARKMBRAR ZREZ
ERZH(BERBEE - QIR
RRAEE A ZESED R -
mEER AR AR 2=
B BRI ER - RIRRIER
RIRA RS R B 2 £ 5) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2(j), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHBE®
(continued)
(z2)  Income tax (continued) (z) FIEHE)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BUEATH TE 45 84 SR RE T TR s e I
movements therein, are presented separately from ¥ RaoRERE T TE o
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are A A B A& B A AR BT
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax e ) LA B BR 5 18 & A 4K S B HA A
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company HAE  WARKE A TH G
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set BIBNEATR B B E n R EH BN AR B &
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities & URIBRLEFI T E E R IR T
and the following additional conditions are met: MIBEE :

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, = i BEVEATRIBEE R BE -
the Company or the Group intends either to AR S AN B R SRR
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset BEE  KENERZEE

and settle the liability simultaneously; or FEEZARE %
= in the case of deferred tax assets and - WRRCHBEERAE -
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied MzEEERBEHER—/
by the same taxation authority on either: TSR A T B —IBEUK

HIFTISHI AR -
= the same taxable entity; or - A —ERTTERE : X
= different taxable entities, which, in = TR ERTERE -
each future period in which significant ZEEBHEESA
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BIBERERLERIE
assets are expected to be settled or BERkE XERE
recovered, intend to realise the current ERMIBE E 2 & B
tax assets and settle the current tax NIRRT
liabilities on a net basis or realise and BHAfRIEE E KRB E
settle simultaneously. BNHATRIB & & - 3k[A
RERZEEREE
ZBE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa) Provisions and contingent liabilities

i.

ii.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.

2. EBEESHBE®

(aa) BERIRER

i

ii.

RERAAEE

EAEEREBEEHUANE
EEREERT - METZ
B REZE B BULCE R &0
- BHEBEAA SEALET - Al
WREE - MEBNRHEE
BEEEX  BEARETE
R TE AR IR B ER o

il 45 775 Al 2 7 HE = AT R
IEZE BRI EM
R ZAETERERIA
BE - BRIELEN /ﬁH:'IEI’J

AIBE IR B S 1ERIR © Rl AE
EE‘EEEE*IEYyIE*X$
HREBEEUERERT
£ - BRIELBE Rz 2 7]
BEME - DRI EBEEE AL
NEE -

BRIEEH
EARERETANAELEM
B2 ARl S 2 PR R 8
R e & MR 2
Meihs - A SFERBENE
BH - BRESOBBIRK
Rz RHRAEEES
# 2 AR R EREE
At -

CWT International Limited / 2019 Annual Report

159




160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)
iii. Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can
be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the
amount that would be determined in
accordance with Note 2(aa)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with Note 2(aa)(i).

(bb) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from commodities trading, provision of various
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEETEHX®

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued) (bb) WFER )

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

i. Freight services

Freight services include air, sea and land
freight forwarding services and handling
of cargo across countries and handling of
documentation. Revenue from outbound
freight forwarding is recognised over the
transit time from the departure of shipments
from port of disembarkation, whereas
revenue from inward freight forwarding is
recognised when shipments arrive at port of
arrival.

Revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract. Customers are
required to pay for the services rendered
immediately or within 14-60 days from the
date of invoice according to the agreed credit
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued)

ii.

Provision of logistics services
Warehousing services

Warehousing services refer to the provision
of warehouse space for storage of the
customer’s products. Revenue is recognised
over time as services are being transferred
to the customer, based on the time elapsed.
Services are normally billed in advance on a
monthly basis or such other shorter interval
as agreed with customers.

Container services

Container services refer to the container
storage, repairs and handling. Revenue is
recognised over time for container storage
as services are being transferred to the
customer, based on the time elapsed. For
repairs and handling, revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services are
billed for each completed job but are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Transportation services

Transportation services include local delivery
of goods or transfer of containers/cargoes
from warehouse/storage yard to the port/
customers’ premises. Revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services
are billed upon completion and are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Inventory management services

Inventory management services include
rendering of import clearance, documentation
and trucking services for inbound shipment
and performing inventory stock-take and
other related services over a specified time
period. Revenue is recognised when services
are completed. Services are usually billed on
a monthly basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued)

ii.

ii.

Provision of logistics services (continued)
Record management services

Record management services include
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
of document over a specific time period.
Revenue generated from providing document
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
services is recognised over time as services
are being transferred to the customers, based
on the time elapsed. Revenue generated
from collection, retrieval and disposal services
is recognised when services are completed,
services are billed on a monthly basis.

For bundled packages, the Group accounts
for the individual services as separate
performance obligations as they are distinct,
i.e. the service is separately identifiable
from other items in the bundled package
and a customer can benefit from it. The
consideration receivable under the contract
is allocated to the separate services in a
bundle based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices
are stated in the contract. Customers are
required to make payment within 30-60 days
from the date of the invoices.

Commodity trading

Commodity trading includes structured trade
services, physical trading and supply chain
management of base metal non-ferrous
concentrates with predominant focus on
copper, lead, zinc and other minor metals and
energy products like naphtha and distillates.

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has control over the commodities upon the
transfer of title according to the terms and
conditions of the sales contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

The sale price of certain commodities is
initially recorded based on the provisional
prices depending on the contracts. Until
final settlement occurs, adjustments to the
provisional sales prices are made to take
into account metal price changes, based
upon the month-end spot price and metal
quantities upon receipt of the final assay
and weight certificates, if different from
the initial certificates. The Group marks to
market its provisional sales prices based on
the forward price for the estimated month
of settlement. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, such mark to market
adjustments are included within “trade and
other receivables”.

Payments of certain deals especially metal
concentrates and energy products are due at
sight or extended payment terms according
to contract terms and are secured by letter of
credit or documentary collection. Payments
of other deals are due as per the credit terms
stated in the invoice and most of them are
secured by credit insurance or approved by
an internal credit committee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued)

iv.

Equipment and facility maintenance
services

Equipment and facility maintenance services
include management and maintenance of
facilities, vehicles and equipment. Revenue
is recognised over time for services that are
transferred to the customer, based on the
time elapsed. For services that are rendered
over a period of six months or less, revenue
is recognised upon completion of the
services which is expected to approximate
revenue to be recognised over time, based
on the time elapsed, due to the short service
period. Customers are required to pay for the
services rendered within 30—-60 days from
date of the invoice.

Design-and-build

The Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date. Revenue is recognised over time,
with reference to percentage of completion
of design-and-build services per the price
agreed under the contract. The percentage
of completion is measured by reference
to the quantity surveyor's certification and
customer's acknowledgment of the value of
services transferred to date, relative to the
total contract price or milestone payment as
set out in the contract (“Certified Value of
Completion”).

Progress billings to the customer are based
on Certified Value of Completion and payment
is based on credit term (normally 30 days) set
out in the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued)

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

ix.

Broking services

Revenue is recognised when services are
rendered to customers for clearing and
brokerage services (brokerage fee income)
and when trades are executed by customers
and the company acts in the capacity of an
agent (clearing commission and brokerage
fee).

Revenue from golf club operations

The initial membership fee is amortised on
a straight-line basis based on the remaining
period to the expiry date of business
license of the golf club of the Group and
the unamortised initial membership fee is
recognised as contract liabilities. The monthly
membership fee and the service income
related to the usage of golf club’s facilities
are recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from hotel and leisure operations

Revenue from hotel and leisure operations
comprising hotel accommodation, food and
beverages are recognised when the services
are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Revenue recognition (continued)

(cc)

X. Investment and dividend income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(n)(i)).

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established and dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income (see
Note 2(i)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(cc)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
Dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(dd) Borrowing costs

(ee)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets classified as held-for-
sale and discontinued operations

I Non-current assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available-for-sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fale)

2.

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ee)

Non-current assets classified as held-for-
sale and discontinued operations (continued)

i.

Non-current assets held-for-sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held-for-sale when the above
criteria for classification as held-for-sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held-
for-sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held-for-sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if classified as held-
for-sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ee) Non-current assets classified as held-for-
sale and discontinued operations (continued)

i.

ii.

Non-current assets held-for-sale (continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held-for-sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held-for-sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held-for-
sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held-for-sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group's business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned or ceased.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ee) Non-current assets classified as held-for-
sale and discontinued operations (continued)

ii.

Discontinued operations (continued)

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

(ff) Related parties

a.

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(ff) Related parties (continued)

b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a Group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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174

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHX®
(continued)
(ff)  Related parties (continued) (f) EBER®)
b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the b. RATERIBAERESR A
following conditions applies: (continued) HAEEBRE - (B
(viil a person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) E/\\(a)(I)FﬁLZ/\iﬁT
significant influence over the entity or ZEBRBERATEN
is a member of the key management NBZER(IZE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent BOSAREEE
of the entity). B8 °
(vii)  the entity, or any member of a Group (vii) ZEBIZERBRA
of which it is a part, provides key F—B ZEEREM
management personnel services to B B AR AN E 5k
the Group or to the Group's parent. AEEGRARRMEE
ZEBABR ©
Close members of the family of a person are those EIAZEHRREKRE BEEEE
family members who may be expected to influence, SRR B ZEA LT R ZIE
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings AFEZREKE o
with the entity.
(gg) Segment reporting (gg) ZHHRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made critical accounting
judgements in determining whether revenue is
recognised over time or at a point in time, as set out
in Note 2(bb).

Source of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources at reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
next financial year are described in the following
notes:

B AR S

(a)

(b)

ERASEESTHERNEE
SR
REAAEESTHRRBIET &
BENEE W2 B RER RN K
—RHEERAREFELEIEGAH
B - aABTEE2(0b) FREL ©

At P RERR 2 KIR
REEBS BHAREEER
HEBRR(LAEHEERE
B R 5 T — BB B R
ERBEZ EARR) M TN
it

Lease term: whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise

Note 31(a) -
extension or termination options
Ff5E31(a) R ANEEERAEREE BT EE R R L
Note 33 - defined benefit obligations
Ff5E33 REBMEE
Note 40(b) - measurement of loss allowance for receivables
B 5E40(b) FEWGRIER E R B BT B
Note 40(e) - fair value measurement of financial instruments.
FizE40(e) ERMIANDAEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

4. A DISPOSAL GROUP AND NON-CURRENT 4. 72 EAREHEHEANIR
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE kREBEE
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group BHE_T-NFF+A=T—HILFE -
committed to disposing of the PRC Operation, which AEEAFLETHER T2/ EL
represented a reportable and operating segment, namely BN BB RKBEEBERESEL] - WH
“sports and leisure-related facilities business”, and BE—RNESEMKIONBRAFESR
commenced negotiation with Hillview Holdings Limited, a EREMARETER - RZTE—NF+
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. ZA=t+—H HEEBESBEARFE
The PRC Operation was classified as a disposal group HE 2B EHBW f)\E”HJ:%ﬂW(EJﬁ
held-for-sale and included in a discontinued operation as 7I5) c HEFREEBR T _TF—HA%x
at 31 December 2019 (see Note 5). The disposal of the B - R (E A8 744,000,0007T °
PRC Operation was completed in January 2020 at a total
consideration of approximately HK$744,000,000.
The assets and liabilities associated with the disposal group RZBE-—NWFRZE—NF+ZA=1+—
and non-current assets classified as held-for-sale as at 31 HESBEARIELE 2L EAR 2 HEE
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: ERABEBUARIERBEENT
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat BT T BT T
Assets associated with a disposal Z2EBIFEHEZHE
group classified as held-for-sale ARz EEEE
PRC Operation AR 5(c) 1,298,175 -
Non-current assets held-for-sale BEHEZERBEE
Investment properties held by REEBRB ZIREME
the UK operation - 1,198,824
Interest in an associate, Westford 7 — & & A 5]Westford
Trade Services Ltd. Trade Services Ltd.Z
P - 8,224
- 1,207,048
Liabilities associated with a disposal 7 EAFEHEZHE
group classified as held-for-sale ARz HEAaE
PRC Operation RIS 5(c) 896,035 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 5. BARIEEK
As disclosed in Note 2(b), the Group has completed the A EE2(b) c AREBEEREE=Z— N
disposals of the US and UK Operations during the year F+=-R _+*E¢¢f%}ﬂ2uﬂ’§%l)§i
ended 31 December 2019 and the disposal of the PRC RHER  WR-ZFT_TF—HAZTKEHE
Operation in January 2020. The US Operation and the UK PRI o EREIEBRABEKSE LER
Operation together represented a reportable and operating £ i&&%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ%f% ifn A B
segment, namely the “property investment business” and EBEESRMEED BB RKE
the PRC Operation represented a reportable and operating Eﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ% °
segment, namely “sports and leisure-related facilities
business”.
In addition, the Group has ceased its energy and refined o BEZE-NAF+A=+—H81t
metals trading business under the commodity marketing ir AEBERIEEEMBESDEET
segment (the “Energy and Refined Metals Trading EREEREBEEZIEBR((HERRERS
Operation”), which represented a separate major line of E%%%fﬁﬂ) C ZEBERAEE IR
the Group's business, during the year ended 31 December N2 EBER -
2019.
All the operations disclosed above are classified as FIE EXHEENEBREBEET_A="1—
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December HIEFEHNESEAERILER  EXEE
and their results are as follows: wn
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat BT B F T
(Restated)
(& E7)
Profit/(loss) of US Operation EREHK =T, (EBB) (a) 59,683 (243,828)
Loss on disposal of US Operation HEXHEBER (258,237) -
Loss of UK Operation REEEE (b) (68,971) (86,705)
Loss on disposal of UK Operation & R R TS E 1R (5,684) -
Profit/(loss) of PRC Operation FREEE R, () (c) 6,317 (68,438)
Loss of Energy and Refined Metals RN IEREBE S
Trading Operation ¥(%EE (d) (41,275) (64,374)
Loss for the year from discontinued 24 1L ¥#% 2 FEEIE
operations (308,167) (463,345)
Profit/(loss) for the year from T ALZRGERIEER
discontinued operations ZEERF,(EB)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ DN (310,366) (402,941)
Non-controlling interests FEFER M 2,199 (60,404)
(308,167) (463,345)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

US Operation

On 1 November 2019, HNA International
Recreational Property Company Limited, which is
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Magic Radiance Limited, an independent
third party, in relation to the disposal of the US
Operation through the disposal of HNA International
Recreational Property (BVI) Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group holding the US Operation (the
“US Disposal”).

Upon the completion of the US Disposal on 15
November 2019, Magic Radiance Limited had
acquired the entire issued share capital of HNA
International Recreational Property (BVI) Company
Limited. Details of the US Disposal are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 1, 15 and 22
November 2019 and the Company’s circular dated
28 November 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK )
(a) US Operation (continued) (a) EEHEB®E
(i)  Results of the US Operation (i) EEXEKZEE
Profit/(loss) for the period/year from the EERER CERIEER
discontinued operation in respect of the US 28/ FRmF S (BER)D
Operation is analysed as follows: MR
Period from
1 January
2019 to
15 November Year ended
2019 (date 31 December
of disposal) 2018
BE-Z-h#F
—A—HRZE
—E-hF BE
+—A+#&H —E-N\F
(HERH) +t=A=+—8
1EHARS LFE
HK$'000 HK$000
BB T BT T
Income Was 48,533 55,769
Expenses 2 (20,632) (287,216)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrRELATEF, S (B518) 27,901 (231,447)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (FAx) 31,782 (12,381)
Profit/(loss) for the year and FREERARNEHEB AENL
attributable to owner's of the wm Al (E518)
Company 59,683 (243,828)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. BRLEEK®
(a) US Operation (continued) (a) EEEB®E
(i)  Results of the US Operation (continued) (i) EEEBZFEE)
Profit/(loss) for the period/year from REBBEREB 2EKIE
discontinued operation in respect of the US 2B FREF,(E
Operation has been arrived at after charging/ BEHRGtA) T3EE
(crediting): 1BIER
Period from
1 January
2019 to

15 November
2019 Year ended
(date of 31 December

disposal) 2018
BE-Z—-h#fF
—B-RE
—B-NF Bz
+—A+HH —2-N\F
(HERH) +t=—A=+—H
1EHA R ILEE
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Exchange gain R (195) (11)
Auditor’s remuneration BEETEN S 1,500 280
Gross rental income from WEME RS BKA
investment properties (48,533) (55,769)
Credit loss on trade receivables Z o RNREEEEE = 6,952
Fair value loss on investment REMER R BEEE
properties 1,960 257,322
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK @)
(a) US Operation (continued) (a) EEEB®E
(ii)  Cash flows from the US Operation (i) EEEXEZEERE
HK$000
BT T
For the period from 1 January 2019to B -ZE—-hF—HA—HBZ=-ZF—h&
15 November 2019 (date of disposal) @+—A+HZB(HEHH) ILHME
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFTA RS F58 4,063
Net cash outflows WETHFE 4,063
(i)  Effect of disposal on the consolidated (i) HEBEHLEEGESHE
financial position of the Group MERZE
The following are the assets and liabilities in UWTAER=ZZE—NF+—A
respect of the US Disposal disposed of on the +HBGIEKBEHHE 2
date of completion on 15 November 2019: ERLEEE2EERE
f& :
HK$'000
JEMETF T
Investment properties B Y 841,616
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRIE 63,545
Tax recoverable AR B FEIR 7,652
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 1
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR T8 N Eo b FE AT 5K IE (8,114)
Net assets of the US Operation disposed of ZHEEXEBR¥Ky EEFE 904,700
Cash consideration received, less transaction ZUWIRERE @ B ML ZKA
cost paid 660,792
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHERE RIRITER (1)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMS 2B RAFRE 660,791
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)

UK Operation

On 10 December 2019, HNA International Property
Investment Company Two Limited, which is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into the a share purchase agreement with
Isabella Properties Limited, an independent third
party, in relation to the disposal of the UK Operation
through the disposal of HNA International Property
Investment Company Three Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group holding the UK Operation (the “UK
Disposal”).

Upon the completion of the UK Disposal on 20
December 2019, Isabella Properties Limited had
acquired all the entire issued shares capital of HNA
International Property Investment Company Three
Limited. Details of the UK Disposal are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 and 20
December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5.

(b) UK Operation (continued)
(i) Results of the UK Operation

(b)

Loss for the period/year from the
discontinued operation in respect of the UK

Operation is analysed as follows:

(i)

R IEERK @
HEEK(E)
ELES 8T |
BRERERZCRIEES

2B/ FABEBANET

Period from

1 January
2019 to
20 December Year ended
2019 (date 31 December
of disposal) 2018
B-Z—h#F
—BA—HBZ%
—E-hF 8=
+t=A=+H —E-N\F
(HEAH) +t=—A=+—H
1EHARS LHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue e 61,559 67,030
Expenses fl 2 (121,110) (144,989)
Loss before taxation FRELAIESE (59,551) (77,959)
Income tax expense FriSHiA X (9,420) (8,746)
Loss for the year and attributable & R AR BB AJENL
to owners of the Company &8 (68,971) (86,705)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK )
(b) UK Operation (continued) (b) EEIFEBE)
(i)  Results of the UK Operation (continued) (i) HEEBXEE)
Loss for the period/year from discontinued KEBBEBERL 2B K
operation in respect of the UK Operation has LHEBHES  FRAEBEEE
been arrived at after charging/(crediting): Mg,/ GEA) T H&EERE
B
Period from
1 January
2019 to
20 December Year ended
2019 (date 31 December
of disposal) 2018
B=ZE-—h#F
—H—A%
—E-hF Bz
+t=A=+H —E-N\F
(HERH) +t=—A=t+—H
1EHARS ILEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Exchange gain TR (179) (1)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ERR BN = 209
Gross rental income from WEME RS BKA
investment properties (61,559) (67,030)
Finance costs BB A 17,496 17,920
Fair value loss on investment REMERRBEEBE
properties 98,133 125,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK @)
(b) UK Operation (continued) (b) EEIFEBE)
(ii)  Cash flows from the UK Operation (i) REEHEZEERE
HK$000
BB F T
For the period from 1 January 2019to B -ZE—-hF—HF—HBZ=-ZF—h&
20 December 2019 (date of disposal) +TZA=-+R(HEBH) LA/
Net cash generated from operating KETEBFE IR F5E
activities 28,387
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTA R FE (72,163)
Net cash outflows RE M FEE (43,776)
(iii)  Effect of disposal on the consolidated (iii) HEEBEHAEFIGZEHKE
financial position of the Group MR T2 HE
The following are the assets and liabilities in UWTAERZZE—NF+=A
respect of the UK Disposal disposed of on the Z+HENVERBEEEZ
date of completion on 20 December 2019: EREEEEC EERE
f& :
HK$'000
BT T
Investment properties HEYE 1,138,432
Cash and bank balances e RiRITHET 7,353
Trade and other payables FENE 5 BRI K EAth FE 1~ 5RIE (7,353)
Bank borrowings RITRE (773,978)
Net assets of the UK Operation disposed of = HERBESK 2 EEFE 364,454
Cash consideration received, BB ERE  BENRHEA
less transaction cost paid 345,268
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERS RIRTTER (7,353)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMSZRESRAFRE 337,915
Paid in 2019 —E-NFRNEHE 275,095
Paid in 2020 —T_TFEHRNER 62,820
337,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Fale)

5.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(c)

PRC Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
committed to the disposal plan of the PRC Operation
and commenced negotiation with a potential buyer.
On 13 January 2020, San Tai Investment Company
Limited, which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Hillview Holdings Limited,
an independent third party, in relation to the disposal
of interest in certain operating golf courses through
the disposal of Hillview Golf Development Company
Limited, which was a subsidiary of the Group holding
such golf courses (the “PRC Disposal”).

Upon the completion of the disposal of the PRC
Operation on 15 January 2020, Hillview Holdings
Limited had acquired all the issued ordinary shares
of Hillview Golf Development Company Limited
held by the Group. Details of the disposal of the
PRC Operation are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 and 15 January 2020 and
the Company’s circular dated 24 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5.
(c) PRC Operation (continued)
(i) Results of the PRC Operation

Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued
operation in respect of the PRC Operation is

AR IEER @
B ()
CES g T

(c)

(i)

BRATBER 2 ERIEER
ZEREF (BE) S

analysed as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Income e 163,038 162,490
Expenses 53 (156,643) (226,335)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF,(EB18) 6,395 (63,845)
Income tax expense FriSfiMA X (78) (4,593)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF(EB) 6,317 (68,438)

Attributable to: LA ARG -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESZEDN 4,118 (8,034)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIR 2,199 (60,404)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHRHM,(BE) 6,317 (68,438)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. BRLEEK®
(c) PRC Operation (continued) (c) HEEBK®E
(i) Results of the PRC Operation (continued) (i) Bz & (E)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued REEMPREER 2B &KIE
operation in respect of the PRC Operation EBNFEN=N(BEE
has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): Mg,/ GEA) T H&EERE
B
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE BHE
—E-hE —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +t-A=+—H
IHEE IEFE
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Staff costs 8 IR
Salaries, wages and other benefits #& ~ TE&E M EMEF] 42,703 39,714
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFIGT B 3K
contributions 2,579 4,090
45,282 43,804
Interest income FLEUA (198) (981)
Finance costs A& KA 34,394 36,703
Exchange (gain)/loss & 5 (), E5iE (112) 496
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEEN € 79 45
Credit loss on trade receivables FEWE ZERBEEEE - 43,034
Depreciation of property, plantand #3% - BE k&R ETE
equipment 5,601 10,767
Amortisation of land use rights = Hb {5 P A i 5 - 42,423
Depreciation of right-of-use assets f# FiE&E T E 42,292 -
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5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) PRC Operation (continued)

(ii)

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

BRIEEKE

(c) HEXRB®E

Assets and liabilities associated with the (ii)
PRC Operation and classified as held-for-

sale as at 31 December 2019

For presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, the amounts due from
Group entities amounting to HK$568,855,000
has been excluded from the total assets
associated with the PRC Operation classified

as held-for-sale.

R-E-NF+ZA=1+—
HEIHE BRI 75
HEHEZEERERE
BR_ZE—NF+=-A=+
—BZEEBRARZE
7 ENASEEEBRIES
¥ 568,855,000 2 D 4A
AREBERE 2P EER 218
BEEESR -

2019
—E-NEF
NOTE HK$'000
Hiat BETT
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BE KRR 232,556
Right-of-use assets EREEE 999,389
Other non-current assets Hip3EmnsEE 1,347
Inventories FE 7,218
Trade receivable e E 5 BR 1A 25,966
Prepayments, deposits and other A - e REMmER
receivables A 14,091
Amounts due from the Group e AN BTk IE 568,855
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITIER 53
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEERE 17,555
Total assets associated with the PRC ~ 2 EAIFEHEZHHAEK 2
Operation classified as HRAEE
held-for-sale 1,867,030
Less: Amounts due from the Group B AR E B FRIE (568,855)
Assets associated with the PRC PEABELHEZHEAEKZ 4
Operation classified as HREE
held-for-sale 1,298,175
Trade and other payables e~ 2 5 BR1E I B At FE I 5138 40,806
Current tax payable FEf & HiTR IR 14,466
Contract liabilities ABHAE 147,310
Loans and borrowings ERRER 458,421
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIERE 235,032
Liabilities associated with the PRC DERBEELHEZPEERZ 4
Operation classified as HEAE
held-for-sale 896,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. BRLEEK®
(c) PRC Operation (continued) () HEEBK®E
(iii)  Cash flows from the PRC Operation (iii) HEEHEZEERE
HK$000
BT T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-Z—hF+=-A=+—H
IHEE
Net cash generated from operating KETEBFIE IR F5E
activities 13,081
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFTA R FE (71)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBFTA R 55 (14,195)
Net cash outflows RE M FEE (1,185)
(d) Energy and Refined Metals Trading (d) BEERREREBEZXEL
Operation
In September 2019, the Group decided to RZZE—NFNA  AEERELK
discontinue its energy and refined metals trading IEHEFMENEREEREBE
business in Singapore to channel its resources into B WEEERARBELRS
growing the Group's core base metals concentrates EMzLeBRREESER - K&
trading business. The Group will continue to fulfil EEERTTEEREERCER
its existing committed contracts of its energy and SEBHEBAFBENEE-_T =
refined metals trading business until 2020. The TF - AEENREREREER
Group's energy and refined metals trading business SEBRETREMESHHBET
was formerly reported under Commodity Marketing 5
segment.

190 CWT International Limited / 20194 4 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(d) Energy and Refined Metals Trading
Operation (continued)

(i) Results of the Energy and Refined Metals

5. BHAIXEBH®

(d)

RERREREBE S FH(E)

(i) BERRERZBEZF:HEZ

Trading Operation ES
Loss for the year from the discontinued REEBERLEREBE
operation in respect of the Energy and PEBZERIEEB 2 FE
Refined Metals Trading Operation is analysed EEIWT
as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
8= HE
—E-NF —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
ILtEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Income Woas 12,418,436 22,172,060
Expenses 2 (12,464,332) (22,238,885)
Loss before taxation FRILATESE (45,896) (66,825)
Income tax credit FriS i e 4,621 2,451
Loss for the year and attributable & RARAHEE AJENL
to owners of the Company E518 (41,275) (64,374)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK )
(d) Energy and Refined Metals Trading (d) BEREREREBESZXEK®)
Operation (continued)
(i) Results of the Energy and Refined Metals (i) BEERIERETBE S EHK>
Trading Operation (continued) ¥EE)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REBHEEREEEREBE
in respect of the Energy and Refined Metals SEG R IEEBHNFA
Trading Operation has been arrived at after BREMNR,GTA) T
charging/(crediting): TRI1BIER :
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
8= HE
—E-NF —T-N\F
t=RA=+—-B t=A=+—H
ILtEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Staff costs B IR
Salaries, wages and other benefits & + TE& M EMEF 34,302 60,915
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFIET B K
contributions 1,397 1,557
35,699 62,472
Interest income LB A (35,882) (29,859)
Finance costs B E R A 43,101 78,186
Exchange loss bE W 18 103 749
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN < 1,104 668
Credit loss on trade receivables EWE ZERBEEEE 11,662 =
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - BE MR EITE
equipment 477 529
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# AEEEITE 11,763 =
Amortisation of intangible assets & E#E 21,572 21,803
Cost of inventories sold EHEFENA 12,284,742 22,007,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. SR IEEK )
(d) Energy and Refined Metals Trading (d) BERREREBESXEK®)
Operation (continued)
(i)  Cash flows from the Energy and Refined (i) BERRBELBEZXKEZ
Metals Trading Operation BERE
HK$'000
JBEEF T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #BE—-ZE—h&E+=-HA=+—H
LLFEE
Net cash generated from operating LETEBFR 2R F5
activities 550,245
Net cash generated from investing HEEBFB 2T FR
activities 38,982
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTA R eF5E (585,671)
Net cash inflows WEMAFRE 3,556
6. REVENUE 6. W #=
The Group is principally engaged in integrated logistics AEEFERESEYRRIERAEHEIIE
services and related engineering services. The Group is also R - AEET N EERE S LSRR
engaged in the affiliated business of commodity marketing 2 BT o
and financial services.
Disaggregation of revenue Wiz 85
Continuing operations FFEAEER
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers REZEMERBEE D 2EFE N
by major products and service lines as follows: NN
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BB F T
(Restated)
E=l))
Disaggregated by major products and RIEXrEERKBREEE S
service lines
Freight services ER R 2,673,031 2,842,686
Logistics services Y AR 7% 1,812,828 1,839,181
Commodity trading HmE S 34,861,722 42,986,320
Equipment and facility maintenance FA R R HERE R
services 473,125 445,676
Design-and-build AR RS 215,955 179,748
Broking services 4t IR 7 448,985 404,826
Others Hith 261,866 259,125
40,747,512 48,957,562
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

6.

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 7.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, as the remaining
performance obligations of the Group are either from
contracts that have original expected durations of one year
or less or from contracts where the Group has a right to
invoice a customer in an amount that corresponds directly
with its performance to date, the Group has applied the
practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose information about the transaction price
allocated to its remaining performance obligations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the most senior executive management
of the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments.

Logistics services

Include warehousing, transportation, freight forwarding and
cargo consolidation, supply chain management services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Commodity marketing

Include physical trading and supply chain management of
base metal non-ferrous concentrates with predominant
focus on copper, lead, zinc and other minor metals and
energy products like naphtha and distillates. This segment
formerly includes the Energy and Refined Metals Trading
Operation which was discontinued in 2019 (see Note 5(d)).

Engineering services

Include management and maintenance of facilities, vehicles
and equipment, supply and installation of engineering
products, property management, and design-and-build for
logistic properties.

Financial services

Include financial brokerage services, structured trade
services and assets management services.

Sports and leisure-related facilities business

Include the operations of golf club and the operation of
sports and leisure-related facilities which was discontinued
in 2019 (see Note 5(c)).

Property investment business

The leasing of office properties and golf courses which was
discontinued in 2019 (see Notes 5(a) and 5(b)).

The segment information reported below does not include
any amounts for the discontinued operations, which is
described in more detail in Notes 5(a) and 5(b), and the
comparative figures in the segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been restated.

7.

DEERE @)

BRES

B 8 BREMAESERAE
ERAKGNBLEY AT 24BA
CRECENE S REEESIE - 155
THBEER-TE—NERIELHE
BREGRCBE SEL(HEELMNE
5(d)) °

IR

BIERGE c EWARIECEIRHEEE T
BRERIEERLE MESEUARDR
W7 R EE -

= b AR 75
ERSHMELRTY  EBUEEZIRBELE
EEERE

BERAFMEERERS
BRELESARRGRELEE RKEMN
R HER -ZE-NFRIEEFS
A2 HM L)

MEREEK
EHERAEDERSBARRE  EER -
T-NFRIEEE(FBELHN L@ &
5(b)) °

TXERNDHERATBRED K IERD
MEM TSR ERLEEBFBHNHE
5(a)k5(b) BBE-_ZE—-NF+-A=
T—HLEFENDBEMLBRBFELE
5I) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment profit/(loss) before taxation represents operating
revenue less expenses. Segment assets represents assets
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
inventories, receivables, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. Segment liabilities represent liabilities
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
payables, loans and borrowings and lease liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. Segment profit/
(loss) includes the Group's share of profit arising from the
activities of the Group's associates and joint ventures.
[tems not managed by or derived from the operations of
reportable segments are classified as “unallocated” in the
segment reconciliations.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/(loss) is
profit/(loss) before taxation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEHER@
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or Ao HNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEXREEHHER
items
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T JBEEEF T
(Restated)
(s E5)
Reportable segment profit or loss A 27 2hiE %
Total profit for reportable segments ~ A] 2R 0@ A 428 200,570 298,768
Unallocated amounts: RO ESEE :
Gain on fair value change ARRESZITET A
of the derivative components of Rz AR BEE
convertible bonds ek - 41,988
Gain/(loss) on fair value change of HEHtEmEEZARE
other financial assets B (Ei8) 17,948 (2,288)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment 2 (E518) W (13) 36,424
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 Uz (B518) %58 73,265 (173,852)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (11,763) =
Unallocated income and gains ROBEWA R U 10,400 45,820
Unallocated expenses RAOBEFAX (161,707) (335,535)
Finance costs BB R AR (345,503) (402,494)
Loss before tax (continuing operations) KBl E1E (FHEK L 275) (216,803) (491,169)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or

DEERE @)

AE2FoERE EEHABEREM

loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEXREEHE®
items (continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —\F
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
HteE BT BB F T
(Restated)
(&%)
Reportable segment assets A2|IWBEE
Continuing operations RECEER
Logistics services Y AR 1% 8,604,224 5,965,210
Commodity marketing e 5 7,446,190 8,324,229
Engineering services TR 407,510 447,578
Financial services © R AR TS 5,996,260 7,166,157
Discontinued operations BRIEFT
Sports and leisure-related facilities A RIKEERERE
business E7 - 1,378,695
Property investment business VIR B X - 880,702
Elimination of inter-segment assets 7> 50 & & & 4 £ (495,867) (363,417)
Total reportable segment assets A2 D EEELTE 21,958,317 23,799,154
Assets associated with a disposal SEAFHELE 2 HER
group and non-current assets Bl ABRE & E R IE M ED
classified as held-for-sale BE 4 1,298,175 1,207,048
23,256,492 25,006,202
Unallocated assets: ROWMEE :
Investments in associates and REERRI G EDSE
joint ventures Y& 463,564 475,163
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEEHR 21,984 123,196
Other financial assets HtemEE 170,468 152,797
Other unallocated assets HEmARDIEEE 108,069 54,202
Consolidated total assets AR EE 24,020,577 25,811,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SDETER@
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or Ao HNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEREEHER®E

items (continued)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT BT T
(Restated)
=)
Reportable segment liabilities A2 HEaE
Continuing operations B R LT
Logistics services i AR 1% 6,690,739 3,903,870
Commodity marketing e 5,913,796 6,790,397
Engineering services Ti2AR% 207,880 277,105
Financial services & Bh AR 4,959,750 6,177,144
Discontinued operations B4R E
Sports and leisure-related facilities BB RIKHEIE R G
business E s - 461,888
Property investment business MEREE - 24,597
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities 2> 2B & & ¥ £ (496,249) (366,102)
17,275,916 17,268,899
Liabilities associated with a disposal ~ DEADKRILEK
group classified as discontinued HEHER 2 AEAE
operations 4 896,035 -
18,171,951 17,268,899
Unallocated liabilities: RAMETE :
Perpetual notes KARIE 358,492 360,309
The Extended Borrowing/The New KCIEHAME IR B 3K
Borrowing 768,334 1,381,873
Other loans and borrowings HEmERMERK - 1,226,039
Tax liabilities HEaE 2,080 28,836
Other unallocated liabilities HEMAoiEaE 98,729 230,653
Consolidated total liabilities memaE 19,399,586 20,496,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SDETER@

Geographic information HEER

The logistic services and commodity marketing segments Rk kEmE Sy iR REEER
are managed on a worldwide basis and the Group operates B AEEEXERFEAM - FTINE K
principally in Mainland China, Singapore, other parts of Asia B E I RE - BUM - dEEM - FEM
Pacific Region, Europe, North America, Africa continent ABERFEEMNESE - TRRBEEEEHIN
and South America. Engineering services are primarily in ¥ MEBRBAEZRFHAM - #7i0
Singapore. Financial services operate mainly in Mainland WRIEEMNES -

China, Singapore and North America.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical i@ o S EE 2 RE R - DUk EER
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical AEERSKEZMEBRTE - 9303
locations from which the Group derives its revenue. MEBEBERREBGIE - SRUEE MR
Segment non-current assets (other than loans and ERIEEERINREEMEMETH o

receivables, financial assets and deferred tax assets) are
based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEFE 2 W BEFRRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AFE —F-N\F ZE-hF —ZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
(Restated)
C<=dl))
Mainland China B A 24,435,251 24,781,042 70,533 1,283,044
Singapore 0k 3,868,998 3,120,691 6,011,530 3,367,340
Hong Kong Special B E BRI TR
Administrative Region
of the PRC 2,686,956 9,490,101 18,213 4,463
Korea EE 1,490,150 1,148,085 243 201
Other Asia Pacific Efbon K RIA#E R
jurisdictions 4,128,400 4,585,522 538,947 274,822
Europe BOM 2,261,723 3,525,538 1,285,192 1,216,513
North America =M 969,307 1,039,410 20,446 859,631
Africa continent FEIM AR e 904,854 1,167,208 69,219 65,692
South America =M 1,873 99,965 4,152 2,638

40,747,512 48,957,562 8,018,475 7,074,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. D EE R @)
Information about major customers EREXEEZEFZER
No single customer contributed over 10% or more to the RZZE-—NFRERZZT-N\F  HEE—F
Group's consolidated revenue from continuing operations FAAEBZHBEREEBERGE W
for both 2019 and 2018. #10% A L ©
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 Met: AEBR-ZZ—hF—A—AEAK
using the modified retrospective approach, comparative BRI EWEE NERE BT SRS E
information is not restated. See Note 2. BIZE165% @ LLERE R W EES o B
5E2 °
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Haw A
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations FRERSEEK
Interest income on financial assets HEERAGTECSREET S
measured at amortised cost WA 143,840 137,714
Dividend income from other financial HEthemEERBWA
assets 305 12,223
Others Hitb 58,396 53,707
202,541 203,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

9. OTHER NET GAIN 9. HWzFE
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFrT BT T
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and &Y « 5 Kk 2 W
equipment i 2,988 2,173
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) & 5 Uezs (&518) /35 67,858 (181,327)
Credit loss on trade and other receivables JEUXE 5 BRIE K H b g Uy 0B
EEEBR (35,738) (31,626)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BERFEREBRE
equipment (1,356) (16,742)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERE (2,236) (35,053)
Net gain on financial instruments BEARBEFABGZHESHIA
carried at FVPL Was F 58 17,626 18,281
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRARZ (BB, (920) 140,084
Gain on disposal of associates and joint  [HEBE AR KA S E 2 K
ventures - 160,311
Loss on disposal of financial assets carried {H&ZE#HEAG|RE 2 S REE
at amortised cost pd it - (8,876)
Others EAh (14,859) (14,140)
33,363 33,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE KA
2019 2018
—E-nE  —F)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BB TFT
(Restated)
C=7l))
Continuing operations FRERSEER

Interests expense on: FERZRE -
Bank borrowings and other facilities IRITERMEMHE 427,500 237,111
Senior secured notes BEBELETER - 240,249
Convertible bonds AR ES - 56,269
MTN hEIRIR 36,371 52,068
Lease liabilities HEAE 137,229 720
Others EHAmh 10,070 5,960
Other finance costs Hibgh & A 90,327 26,847
701,497 619,224
Bank charges WITFEE 62,425 67,637
763,922 686,361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 11. REFEKEELEZBRAEH
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RIE#E
Loss before taxation from continuing operations has been REFELEER 2BRATETRATEEE
arrived after charging/(crediting): B (GTA) :
2019 2018
—E-nE  —F)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
(Restated)
(&E=7)
Continuing operations FERSEER
Staff costs, including Directors’ BEIA(BREESHE)
emoluments
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - IERHMEAR 1,283,320 1,368,703
Retirement benefit scheme RIREAIFT B 5K
contributions 86,700 90,962
1,370,020 1,459,665
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 254,961 389,208
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 464,427 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | EERE 33,146 39,422
Auditor’s remuneration =% HE BN 5 20,066 20,756
Gross rental income from investment WEME A BKA
properties (304) (12,223)
Cost of inventories sold EHETENA 33,948,843 43,721,427
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e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX 12. Fi8#H
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current tax B AT IE
Provision for the year — Hong Kong FREE - BEFEH
Profits Tax 42 2,174
Provision for the year — Overseas FARE - BINTISH
income tax 66,167 138,706
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (26,876) (19,969)
39,333 120,911
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR LB R
differences (Note 34)* (Kt 5E34) * (44,849) (469,288)
Withholding tax T 4,943 3,921
Total income tax credit Frigfisaif e (573) (344,456)
Attributable to: PN
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEK 2 EE 26,332 (367,725)
Loss from discontinuing operations REBRIEER 2 EE (26,905) 23,269
o Included deferred tax credit for the year ended 31 o BE-Z— ) \G+-_A=1T—RHILFE
December 2018 is derecognition of deferred tax liabilities of FIABREBIBE R AR LR A S EE
HK$388,255,000 arisen from certain warehouse properties BREEERESTREEMEMEED
acquired by the Group through the Acquisition. During the IE R T8 & {575 ¥388,255,0007T ° R
year ended 31 December 2018, such warehouse properties BE-_T—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
with carrying amount of HK$4,109,153,000 were sold and B ZERMEEABE4,109,153,000
leased back by the Group (see Note 16). THEEYHEEASRELE REEHER

(RFEE16) -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is T NFEEFESHRIELNEBEZ
calculated at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated AR HEFAN165%(ZT— NF :
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of 16.5%)5HiR - EAEEN—HHMB AR A
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two- FST MR EIE TS EEEEBRIN

tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

Taxation outside Hong Kong is calculated on the estimated BARBIN 2 BIERIE (G 5T F A B R T i T
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation TR AR A AR 2 RITH R E o

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

12.

INCOME TAX (continued)

12.

Reconciliation between income tax and loss
before taxation from continuing operations at

applicable tax rates:

FEH@
FremaREAREtERERER
EER KRB A2 B R

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBEEEF T
(Restated)
(&E=7))
Loss before taxation from continuing REFELEEK ZBRHATER
operation (216,803) (491,169)
Less: Share of profits of associates and & @ D {hEEE R A AL
joint ventures, net of tax i M (FER T IE) (25,585) (40,000)
(242,388) (531,169)
Notional tax on loss before BREAIEIR . B
taxation, calculated at the rates WIE - B REER 2
applicable to loss in the EREARETE
jurisdictions concerned (27,324) (65,233)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PR 2 BT E 74,864 248,775
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMBAZ MG E (2,736) (118,097)
Tax incentives s 128 (1,523) (15,365)
Tax effect of utilisation of previously not  Eh B SE AT AFER 2 T IEE1E &
recognised tax losses and allowances BlEo BB E (9,610) (15,940)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and RIER AR AT IAE B RS
allowances not recognised 2RISR 13,689 4,769
Over-provision in respective prior years — i81F EE HBEERME (26,876) (22,232)
Derecognition of temporary difference EEEETEA R E X IR E)
upon change in expected manner of R IR ERER
recovery of related assets - (388,255)
Withholding tax TEH0EL 4,943 3,921
Others EAh 905 (68)
26,332 (367,725)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

13. EERBSTRAEME

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EEZERBEESTHAEMS
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the HE—_Z-—\FE-_ZE—NF+=
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 are set A=+T—HIFE EFEk&S17
out below: BABZHMESHIAT

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments

HeR RAKER
e HiE A TR BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BB BB

2019 ZB-hE
Zhu Weijun (Note i) REE (Hzt) - 91 - 91
Ding Lei T& - 1,521 7 1,528
Zhao Quan e - 3,685 108 3,793
Chen Chao (Note i) Wi (W 2i) - - - -
Zhang Can (Note iii) KR (W) - - - -
Li Neng (Note iv) e NI - - - -
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2Ea 300 - - 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mg 300 - - 300
Chen Lihua (Note v) BB (i) 88 - - 88
Guo Ke (Note vi) 2a] (HaEvi) - 376 - 376
Xu Haohao (Note vii) ®BEE (Wiztvi) - 26,094 63 26,157
Mung Kin Keung (Note vii) SRR (I vii) - 650 - 650
Li Tongshuang (Note ix) ZRE (H i) - 2,434 98 2,532
Mung Bun Man, Alan (Notex) S @ (Hztx) 275 - - 275
1,263 34,851 276 36,390
2018 —E-N\E

Guo Ke EiE) - 2,286 = 2,286
Xu Haohao HhER - 24,493 126 24,619
Zhao Quan it - 3,904 126 4,030
Ding Lei (Note xi) T&Wf7tx) = 1,621 74 1,695
Mung Bun Man, Alan SEmX 300 = = 300
Leung Shun Sang, Tony (Note xii)  INE4 (7 a#xii) 231 = = 231
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mg 300 = = 300
Zhu Chunijie (Note xiii) EENW ztxii) = 340 = 340
Leung Kai Cheung (Note xiv) 2B (Hiztxiv) 258 = = 258
1,389 32,644 326 34,359
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

Mr. Zhu Weijun was appointed as an Executive
Director on 1 July 2019.

Mr. Chen Chao was appointed as an Executive
Director on 1 July 2019.

Mr. Zhang Can was appointed as an Executive
Director on 12 December 2019.

Mr. Li Neng was appointed as an Executive
Director on 12 December 2019.

Ms. Chen Lihua was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 August 2019.

Mr. Guo Ke resigned as an Executive Director on
20 February 2019.

Mr. Xu Haohao was not re-elected at the annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2019.

Mr. Mung Kin Keung was appointed as an
Executive Director on 20 February 2019 and then
resigned on 28 June 2019.

Mr. Li Tongshuang was appointed as an Executive
Director on 20 February 2019 and then resigned on
12 December 2019.

Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan resigned as a Non-
Executive Director on 25 November 2019.

Mr. Ding Lei was appointed as an Executive
Director on 13 April 2018.

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony was re-designated
from a Non-executive Director to an Independent
Non-executive Director on 9 November 2018.

Mr. Zhu Chunjie resigned as an Executive Director
on 13 April 2018.

Mr. Leung Kai Cheung resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 9 November 2018.
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13. EERESTHAEMES®)

(a)

EERBSTHRAEME (@)

Hiat -

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

KEBELEER-_T—NFLA
—BEZERRTES -

REEER-_Z-NFLH—
REZERNITES -

REEER -_ZT-NE+_H
ToHEZERNTESE -

FREER_ZE-NF+R
TOHEZERNITES -

REBEZLTHR-_ZT—IFNA
—HEZERBILFATE
=.

BAXER-_ZE-NF_A=
THBEHEMITES -

BREEEERNR-ZT-AFR
AZ+N\B#EITHBRERBEX
gLEE-

SEBREAN-_ZT—HAE_A
“t+HEZEANTES &
BR=ZZE—hAFENA=ZF+N\H
BHE ©

FREEER_ZE-NF_H
“HREZERNTES  H
BR-_ZF-AF+-_HA+=H
BHE -

ERXEERZE-NF+—
AZ+HHABHEFITES -

TEEER-_Z-N\FOA+
—REZERPTES -

ZIEESRERZTE—NF+—
ANBHIRNTEETRERSE
TIMITES -

FEREER=_ZT—NFHNA
T=ZHEHERTES -

REEEER =B —NF+—
AARBEBIFNTES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

13. EERESTHAEMES®)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as Directors of
the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors of the Company.

Five individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments
in the Group, two were Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above (2018: one).
The emoluments of the remaining three (2018: four)
individuals are as follows:

(a)

(b)

EERBSTHRAEME (@)

EXARZATEEHS TR ERK
FEEARNRARANEEER 2 R
BEE -

EXFARZFRTESHEEESR
REEEARRESTZRGARA -

EXFARZBIIFRITESME X
EHRBERERARDNEETZREE
78

ZTEEEHFMAL
RAEBRAZERHMA LS X
EMEZ(CZTZE—N\F: —R)AARQ
REE FEZMeHN L3 - &
BEZHB(CE—N\F  WBH)ALTZ
BT

2019 2018

—®-hE —TNE

HK$’000 HK$000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMmER 40,382 88,589
Contributions to retirement benefit RG22 7R

schemes 100 700

40,482 89,289
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five individuals with highest emoluments

(continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

BEERERSTHAEMES®

(b) HEBRSHMALE

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000

HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000

HK$19,000,001 to HK$19,500,000

HK$24,500,001 to HK$25,000,000

HK$55,000,001 to HK$55,500,000

7B #£3,500,001 T E
7 #4,000,0007C
756,500,001 E
75 #7,000,0007T
75 #8,500,001 T2
75#9,000,0007T
7B5111,500,0017TE
75112,000,0007T
75%19,000,001TE
719,500,000
724 500,001 T E
75 #25,000,0007T
7855 000,001 7T E
755 5600,0007T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as
compensation for loss of office or as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group.

14. DIVIDEND

14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed after the

end of reporting period.
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BEHESHERNT :

2019 2018
—EB-hF —T-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

EEHA EE#E
1 _
- 1
- 1
1 _
- 1
1 _

AEBEYE|AEFTRA LR
ATZNME - ERBEREE K (E
RIMAKIARE B R 2 528 -

R E
ARAREBE_E—NER_TE—N\F+
A=t HUIEFETERTEBRKES
ek Em T MERKRE - BREHREL
EEFHRLMEARE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts
from continuing and discontinued operations is
based on:

(i) the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

e M HRME

15. BRERE

(a)

BEREXERE
REFBELEEB RO RIEEBR
BRERNEBRESER NIRRT

At

=

(i) ARAEEAELFEER

2019 2018

—E-nE T )\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT B F T

(Restated)

(&&E5)

Loss attributable to owners of RARHEE AEGLEE

the Company

— from continuing operations - FECEERS (287,191) (154,348)

- from discontinued operations - BARIEERK (310,366) (402,941)

(597,557) (557,289)

(ii) the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 11,399,996,101 (2018:
11,399,996,101) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic losses
per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 as share options
subsisting during the years had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

(b)

(i) FRNBEITEREBIMNEFS
#411,399,996,101 0% (=
Z— )\ : 11,399,996,101
%) °

BRBEER
HRFEATFENBERESZIINE
BEAEEBRAEREETE -
BIARHBEE_T-NFR_FT—
NEFE+-_A=T—HLEFEENZ
SRENBESBEHIE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - BERKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant, Motor fittings, Hotel and
land,  machinery vehicles  computers, Assets buildings
buildings and and and  and office under for golf
improvements  equipment trailers  equipment  construction business Total
B 2E.
gL BT HE B2 EKR BEARER
UELT] R REAEE  BOERE HREE CEERET fit
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
E¥Ffr  B¢Tr B¥Tn BETn BETr BETn BETr
COoST HA
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-f-H 8,196,369 112,222 75,869 41,758 51,274 275,515 8,753,007
Additions HE 95,382 45,965 3,096 13,830 359,974 - 518,247
Disposals e (4,354,682) (19,318) (11,246) (15,220) - - (4,400,466)
Exchange realignment EREE (125,772) (10,114) (3,719) 3,899) (6,853) 14,002) (164,449)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+=A=1-A 3811,297 128,755 64,000 36,469 404,39 21423 4,706,339
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 16 MeRAEEHBREENZ 165
Fe - (22,115) (4,695) - - - (26,810)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A-A 3,811,297 106,640 59,305 36,469 404,395 261,423 4,679,529
Transfer to disposal group classified as ERENBARENE LN EAR
held-for-sale (3.231) (15,801) (146) - - (258,688) (277,866)
Transfers and reclassifications ERRENIE 120,936 10575 - 316 (131,827) - -
Additions AE 546 20,554 4,995 1,826 117,975 - 151,896
Disposals e (114,530) (38,287) (16,071) (9,981) (6) - (178,875)
Exchange realignment R % 20,767 750 436 (612) (455)_ (2,735) 18,151
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF+ZA=1-A 3,835,785 84,431 48519 34,018 390,082 - 4,392,835
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHTERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-H-H 127,740 710 1,688 1,94 - 31,801 163,880
Charge for the year ERmiR 322,683 38,330 17,062 15,128 = 731 400,504
Impairment WE 16,742 = = = = = 16,742
Disposals e (154,916) (7,752) (8,178) (9,597) - - (180,443)
Exchange realignment % (33,424) (6,784) (2,224) (3447) - (1,898) (47,777)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\Ft-A=1-A 218,825 24,504 8,338 4,025 - 31,214 352,906
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 16 M RAEEHBREENZ 165
7 - (9,609) (3,345) - - - (12,954)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A-A 218,825 14,895 4,993 4,025 - 31,214 339,952
Transfer to disposal group classified as ERENBARENE LN EAR
held-for-sale (740) (2,164) 107 - - (42,513) (45,310)
Transfers and reclassifications ERRENIE - 29 - - - - 29
Charge for the year Eitie 23611 25,801 1295 13,071 - 5,601 261,039
Disposals 5 (52,113) (30,385) (15,039) (9.981) - - (107,518)
Exchange realignment ERE% 13,056 615 283 (384) - (302) 13,268
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A 442,639 8791 3,299 6,731 - - 461,460
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZR=1-H 3,393,146 75,640 45,220 21,281 390,082 - 3937
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A 3532472 104,251 55,662 30444 404,39 24209 4353433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, certain motor vehicles and
equipment of HK$14,885,000 was held by the Group under
finance lease arrangement under HKAS 17. These assets
were reclassified to right-of-use assets upon initial adoption
of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019.

During the year, the Group capitalised interest expenses
of HK$7,748,000 (2018: HK$3,511,000) in assets-under-
construction, with a capitalisation rate of 2.75% (2018:
2.75%).

Included in the disposals of property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is disposal of
certain warehouse properties with carrying amount of
HK$4,109,153,000. Upon completion of the disposal in
2018, the Group leased back these warehouse properties
under operating lease arrangement which was capitalised
upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019.

16.

ME - BERRKE®

R-ZBE-N\F+-A=+—8 ~&£ERE
BEAGHENF 172 mEAHE L HE
BETRERZRFEE®14,885,0007T ° A
—ZT-hE— A BVARMNE BT R
SHERIE165RE  REEECETHER
FREEE -

FAN - RNEBE T EFHZERT,748,000
TT(ZZT—/\F : B#¥3,511,00070) EAME
REREE  ERMEEEERE275%(ZF—
J\EF : 2.75%) ©

HE—_ZT—N\E+-_A=+—HILtEE
HEYE  BELAXEEEHEREES
7&14,109,153,0007t 2 & TERWZE - 1
—E-)\FEKEEER  AEBERERE
MELTHADZSERDE  ETHER
—ZT-hE— A BVARNEETER
AR FE1657F T IAE AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FEREEE
Furniture,
Office, Plant, fittings,
buildings  machinery Motor  computers
and and vehicles  and office
Land warehouses  equipment and trailers  equipment Total
A -
2B
BRZ- BE- £ )

i BFREE HERRE NEREE HOERRE ait
HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000 — HK$'000  HK$'000
E¥TT  E¥Tr  ERTr EMTr BRTn BRI

Group p:3-oc|
Cost RA
At 1 January 2019 R=F-NE-A—-H = = = = = =
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 16 LR RE AR BRERE
F16% T2 1793626 3,049,269 41,448 16477 4902 4905722

Adjusted balances as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—FR

e 1,793,626 3,049,269 41,448 16,477 4902 4,905,722
Transfer to disposal group classified EREHBARELEL
as held-for-sale HEAR (1,041,681) - - - - (1,041,681)
Additions NE - 23,298 17431 3,949 1,052 45,730
Retired/terminated $% /K = = = (178) = (178)
Lease modification REBET (50,056) 7,213 (1,190) (75) - (44,108)
Lease remeasurement REEM 2 (10,765) (138) 6 6 - (10,891)
Effect of movement in exchange rates EXZEHNYE (3.282) 20,185 (319) 70 10 16,664
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=1-H 687,842 3,009,827 57,376 20,249 5964 3,871,258
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERRESR
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H = = = = = =
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 16 TRFRE AR BRE RS
16 T2 32,046 58,576 9,609 3,345 - 103576

Adjusted balances as at 1 January 2019 R=ZE-NE-H—-HH

mRELE 32,046 58,576 9,609 3,345 - 103,576
Transfer to disposal group classified BRENEARELEL
as held-for-sale HEET (42,292) - - - = 42,292)
Depreciation charge for the year ERfTESH 82,157 401,038 15,064 6,983 1477 506,719
Retired/terminated BE/ K1 = = = (155) = (155)
Lease remeasurement REEHHE (649) (11,248) - (6) - 11,903)
Effect of movement in exchange rates EXZHHTE 440 4,018 (186) 11 5 4,388
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+ZA=1-H M2 452384 24487 10218 1482 560,333
Carrying amounts REE
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-H = = = = = =
Adjusted balances at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—HfH
RRER 1761,580 2,990,693 31,839 13,132 4902 4,802,146
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AE+=A=+-R 616,140 2,647,443 32,889 9,971 4482 3310925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEMBERRHE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ — & — 4+ _H="+—HIL#E
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Customer LME Computer  Business
contracts Licence  software relationships Brand Total
EFEH LMEFTUR  EEEBH  EREE miE B3
HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BYFr BETT  E¥FT BETr  E¥TT BEFn
CoST KA
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\F—F—H 24,873 37,251 10,502 109,677 253,556 435,859
Additions NE - - 15,627 - - 15,627
Disposals e - - (441) 6,321) = (6,762)
Exchange realignment AR (414) (622) (655) 2,201 (1,674) (1,164)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+ZAZ+-Ak
1 January 2019 “Z-N\%—f-H 24,459 36,629 25,033 105,557 251,882 443560
Additions RE - - 10,880 - - 10,880
Disposals ﬁ% - - (299) - - (299)
Exchange realignment R AR 184 276 (456) (1,649) 21 (1,374)
Acquisition of subsidiary =N - - 6 - - 6
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 24,643 36,905 35,164 103,908 252,153 452,773
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ~ Z3ri#s
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\F—F—H 1,658 660 467 3,658 8,447 14,890
Charge for the year FRGHE 4,945 1317 4,339 25,437 25,187 61,225
Disposals hE = = (279) 6,320) - (6,599)
Impairment e - 35,053 - - = 35,053
Exchange realignment R AE (81) (401) (367) 2,539 2,142 3,832
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\F+ZA=+-8k
1 January 2019 “Z-NE—A-H 6,522 36,629 4,160 25,314 35,776 108,401
Charge for the year FREHR 4,892 - 3,334 21,572 24,920 54,718
Disposals HE - - (86) - - (86)
Exchange realignment ER AR 86 216 (374) (1,727) (1,173) (2912)
At 31 December 2019 “E-A%F+=-A=1-H 11,500 36,905 7,034 45,159 59523 160,121
NET BOOK VALUE FHEEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-NE+ZA=1—HR 13,143 - 28,130 58,749 192630 292,652
At 31 December 2018 —F-\E+=A=+-AH 17,937 = 20,873 80,243 216,106 335,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QT 2R
2019 2018
—E-hAEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Share of net assets IS EEFE 190,916 196,616
Quasi-equity loan to an associate B¥—EBERE 2 BURA
=EA 2,090 2,103
193,006 198,719
Quasi-equity loan to an associate is interest-free and forms By HBERARZEURAER AR
part of the Group's net investment in that associate. The B WK ASEEREE QR ZIRE T
loan is unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor Z—EBD o R ERAEMIR - WESEIT
likely to occur in the foreseeable future. DARATBER A RARREES o
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all associates are RZE-—NFERZE—N\F+ZA=1+—
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant A ABBEARYRIELT  AEEY
financial impact on the Group's results and financial REB s EZERVBRAEBERV BT
position. Aggregate financial information of associates that 2. JFERERBERR 2 BEHEER
are not individually material is as follows: NN
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT JBEEEF T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirE B ETHRE 2 REE
financial statements 193,006 198,719

Aggregate amounts of the Group's share ANEBE(RZEBE N F Z2E
of those associates’

— Profit from continuing operations —FECE R R 23,253 25,141

- Other comprehensive (expense)/ -Hi2mFExR), M
income (148) 2,201
Total comprehensive income 2HEREEAREE 23,105 27,342
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REELEERS
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all joint ventures are RZE-—NFERZE—NF+TZA=1+—
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant A ABeEECEIRIELT  A5EY
financial impact on the Group's results and financial REB s XZERVBRAEBERY BT
position. Aggregate financial information of joint ventures 2 ERREREELE I BEUBTER
that are not individually material is as follows: (U
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirE M EHRE 2 REE
financial statements 270,558 276,444
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AEBEEZEGELEBE
share of those joint ventures’
— Profit from continuing operations - RFEEEES R 2,332 14,859
— Other comprehensive expenses -HEermAx (9,866) (11,080)
Total comprehensive income 2R EAREE (7,534) 3,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. HttE&mEE
2019 2018
—g-nE - NF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 BEFT BT
Non-current: FERE :

Financial assets measured at BAREBETABRFTEN

FVPL SRMEE
- Unlisted equity securities - EEMRAFES 170,723 153,050
Current: E -

Financial assets measured at REBERITENESREE

amortised cost

- Quoted treasury securities - BEBRES (i) 989,610 1,647,119

Financial assets measured at BAREBETTABRTEN

FVPL TRMEE
- Listed equity securities - FRAES 2,008 1,724
991,618 1,648,843

Note: Hiat -

(i) The treasury securities are quoted with yield ranging (i) BEANT1.46%22.26% (=T — N\
from 1.46% to 2.26% (2018: 2.13% to 2.57%) that F:213%%E2.57%) 2 WERRE -
mature between 1 to 12 months (2018: 1 to 9 months). WMMZE1I2BRA(ZZE—NF: —ZEh
The treasury securities are purchased using customer BA)NEE - BEARFERAFIER
segregated funds held and are either pledged as margin PEESEER  URZINTEmR I
deposit with the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME") ([Z 3 Arl) K Options Clearing Corporation
and the Options Clearing Corporation, pledged as margin BHARES  RARMNAEKLEAZ
deposit with one of the firm's carry brokers or held in a —EHRARBS IR ARIMNBEHRITR
safekeeping account at the firm's settlement bank. BRPAREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2019 2018
—g-hE —T-)\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Commodity inventories at fair value BRARBEFEZERTE 468,425 976,524

Commaodity inventories at lower of cost &2 A R A] B FEREETFE L
and net realisable value EmiEE 2,426,200 1,748,877
Raw materials JR¥} 4,847 12,187
Finished goods BIRK oh 13,208 18,094
2,912,680 2,755,682

Less: Allowance for inventory B REFERE
obsolescence (120) (120)
2,912,560 2,755,562
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWESIRE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —TNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Trade debtors and bills receivables at BEHENAFTENEWE SEBA
amortised cost, net of loss allowance IR R EWER - NREERE 1,217,570 2,346,960

Trade receivables containing provisional & AR EBEABZFIENEEY
pricing features, measured at FVPL REESFBNERE SRE 2,061,943 2,563,471
3,279,513 4,910,431
All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered TEHAFT A B E S IRIEAAN —F R o

within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables amounted to
HK$10,122,000, HK$2,860,000 and HK$2,061,000 (2018:
HK$9,919,000, HK$2,391,000 and HK$213,000), are due
from the Group’s associates, joint ventures and other
related parties, respectively.

B E 5 BRIE ()
RZBE—NF+_A=1+—H EKES
BRIAA#10,122,0007T * B %2,860,000
TN BH2,061,000 (= — N\F B
#9,919,0007T * B#2,391,0007T M 7 ¥
213,0007T) 7 Bl A FE YA &S BB = A F] -
GEPEREMBES ZFIE -

ARiR 0 AT

R|ERKR - HREZAHRLN
BEERBRAECREESES
AR K R R 18 2 B ik 0 A 40

(a) Ageing analysis (a)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables based
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as

follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$000
BT VBT T
0-90 days 0-90H 2,795,424 4,433,626
91-180 days 91-180H 391,558 316,368
181-365 days 181-365H 26,578 127,728
1-2 years 1-24F 63,156 10,351
Over 2 years 20 A 2,797 22,358
3,279,513 4,910,431

Further details of the Group's credit policy and RSB EERRLEREER
expected credit loss allowances are set out in Note B IEEE 2 E— P BEH RN
40(b). 40(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, ENRE  BRERHEMBEWRR

RECEIVABLES i}
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Bt BEFT JBEEF T
Assets held or segregated in LB RFPHRAER D EE
separate accounts (a) 4,612,401 3,521,306
Deposits and other receivables & R EH A FE W IR (b) 527,059 1,053,680
Amounts due from fellow FEUL[R) XY B A R 5k IE
subsidiaries (c) - 15,027
Amounts due from other related  FEUR E th B8 75 708
parties (d) 9,917 3,161
Loans to associates M E R ER (e) 1,355 5,385
Loans to joint ventures MAeEETEER (f) 60,950 =
Loans to non-controlling interests  [AIFEFE I HE25 & 3K (9) 3,862 16,087
5,215,544 4,614,546
Prepayment and deferred costs TEAT FRIA RIEIERL AR 318,884 232,396
5,534,428 4,846,942
Less: non-current portion R 3EmENE D (33,494) (70,815)
5,500,934 4,776,127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(9)

The balance included customers’ funds of
HK$3,363,932,000 (2018: HK$3,208,646,000) held by the
Group in respect of the Group’s commodity marketing
and financial services, which are required to be held
in segregated accounts by laws and regulations of the
Securities and Futures Act (“SFA") governed by Monetary
Authority of Singapore (“MAS"), the Commodities Trading
Act ("CTA") governed by International Enterprise Singapore
("IE Singapore”) and Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (“CFTC") in the USA. These customers’ funds
are included in “trade and other payables” (see Note 27(b)).

Deposits and other receivables included guarantee deposits
of HK$23,225,000 (2018: HK$40,988,000) placed at CME.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Amounts due from other related parties represented non-
trade amounts due from associates, joint ventures and
non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Loans to associates are unsecured and bear interest of
4.0% (2018: 2.28% to 4.0%) per annum. The Group has
given undertakings to the associates not to recall the loans
of within the next 12 months.

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, bear interest at 1.5%
and repayable on demand.

Loans to non-controlling interest are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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24. ANRE  BREREMBEKRK

5 (@)
(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

EHRPREAAEERAEEZ HRE
SGReMBBHFEZEFESEE
3,363,932,000 T (=ZF— N\F : B
3,208,646,0007T) @ ZEESIRIEH
mEsREER(HMESHEER])
FTEEzEHFRBER((BEZREE
ED C FMEBEERECERRERD (TH MK
BERCE(BRERDAMEE CERR S A
(BRXEBFEDEEEERHERFZ
S ((ERPERZEER)2EER
ER BBERBYNEFEAR c Z5RFP
B AENEZRBREMEMNK
TH | (R KIFE27(0) ©

EeREMERFBEEBEFEEN S XM
ZRIRIE £ B ¥23,225,0000 (— T —
J\EE : 5#40,988,0007T °

RHRRMBARFIAREERR 28

JRE M5 EL At B 5E 77 SRIR 4R FE R EE & R R
BECERIFERERS 2 IFEFFA -
AEER - 2R MIRERERE -

MBS NRBERBERT  WIERFEF
KA 0% B (ZFE—NF :2.28% =
4.0%) o NEBE D RBLEQRER 0 T
SRRKI12{E B REEEHEK -

AEBREERREER  21.5%
ARG B RAREREE -

FSEZERER 2 ERRERR 28R
IRRBRIER -



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

25. EHEEREGHNERE

The following table provides information about contract T%%@EF% BRIV AHNEHNEE
assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers. AHEE E’Jﬁﬂ °
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Non-current portion FRE G
Contract liabilities AHEE
— Golf club membership -mRXkeesk - (140,650)
Current portion mEEA
Contract assets BHEE 75,310 75,758
Contract liabilities aHEaRE
— Advance from customers - EREFFHIEA (120,133) (107,551)
— Golf club membership -mRXkees - (41,246)
(120,133) (148,797)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed at the
reporting date on logistics services. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group invoices
customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, opening contract
liabilities of HK$106,511,000 (2018: HK$331,320,000) were
recognised as revenue.

As at 31 December 2019, contract liabilities of the Group
primarily relate to advance non-refundable consideration
received from customers. Contract liabilities relating to golf
club membership is associated with the PRC Operation and
included within “liabilities associated with a disposal group
classified as held-for-sale”.

BHEEXTREAKRERYRRERN ®E
B STk (B i R A& A TRERKER
BN AR - ERMNKSEGER  0E
ERBBREREESERER BEALNEKE
AEPREEREEE -

HE_ZT—NWF+-_A=+—HLFE "
&S HaEEK106,511,0000(=ZF—
J\EE : B#331,320,0007T) EHER A& UL

N g
S o
Im

RZF-NF+ZA=1T—0 AKEZ
BHABEEHEBKRERPTAIRERER
HEM AHERBERREERZANAR
HEPBEEBER Y AIDBEARFED
EzhEMR 2 HBEREIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. RERREEEEBUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION ReREEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BRERRSEEEBEHZHEAMK -
2019 2018
—g-nE - NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash and bank deposits, representing R& MRTTER - EBRGE

cash and cash equivalents in the WERRER A RRES

consolidated statement of financial £EBH

position 1,262,861 1,724,847
Cash and cash equivalents included in st AP AR EREZ HE

a disposal group classified as HAlzBHe kIREE

held-for-sale EH 17,555 =
Less: VA
Bank overdrafts RITEX (4,927) (4,265)
Cash and cash equivalents in the R RETERZHEES R

consolidated statement of cash HeFEIER

flows 1,275,489 1,720,582
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing bank saving WIOEFREENTF0.01%E
deposits rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.58% (2018: 1.58%(ZF—NF :0.01% %
0.01% to 1.97%) per annum. 1.97%) 2 BRITIRITREE T RF R

E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

e M HRME

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. BeRBREEEBEBBUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREER®
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of loss for the year to cash (b) EEFEHEKLEEKRE (F
generated from/(used in) operations: RAREZHE:
2019 2018
—®E-nE —E)\F
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T JBEMF T
Loss for the year from REUTEEZEE
B8
Continuing operations B E TS (243,135) (123,444)
Discontinued operations B IEFETE 5 (308,167) (463,345)
Loss before taxation bRy AT ES IR (B IE
including discontinued B IEETE)
operations (551,302) (586,789)
Adjustments for: FEEESE
Income tax FriS i 12 (573) (344,456)
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE
plant and equipment 16 261,039 400,504
Amortisation of intangible B EEE
assets 18 54,718 61,225
Amortisation of land use o 3 {55 R AR A 5
rights - 44,062
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENTE
assets 17 506,719 -
Interest expenses and other FERTREMBEE
finance costs BA 790,424 724,916
Fair value loss/(gain) on: LWTIEE 22 EE
BB () -
Investment properties WEMZE 100,093 382,429
Financial instruments BAREBETEN
measured at fair value TETA 9 (17,626) (18,281)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of: HENTIEE 2
(Wz) /Ei8 -
Subsidiaries S =MNG] 325,661 (140,084)
Associates and joint BENRREELE
ventures - (160,311)
Property, plant and Y - BRE k&
equipment (3,750) (2,173)
Investment property TE Y - 662
Intangible assets mEE - 122
Financial assets measured REEX AT 2R
at amortised cost SREE - 8,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26.
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

CWT International Limited / 20194 4 #k

Reconciliation of loss for the year to cash

ReEkREFHERE UREAM

BHeEREER®

(b) FEBBREKEXBHRE (I

generated from/(used in) operations: RAREZHE: (B
(continued)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
kz3 BT T BT
Interest income FEHBA (179,920) (168,554)
Share of profit of associates DEEE R REEhE
and joint ventures gl (25,585) (40,000)
Dividend income from other HEMERMEEESD
financial assets AR S A (305) (12,223)
Impairment losses on: LATRIEE 2RERAE :
Intangible assets EREE 9 2,236 35,053
Property, plant and VI - BB R
equipment 9 1,356 16,742
Unrealised exchange loss REIRE N ES1E - 12,966
Operating cash flows before LEESEIHRILERS
changes in working capital e 1,263,185 214,686
(Increase)/decrease in RO,
inventories (176,697) 1,621,713
Decrease in trade and other FEURE 5 B8R 18 I E b UL
receivables and contract FBEREHEERD
assets 864,264 57,368
Decrease/(increase) in PTESRMIARY
derivative financial (38 )
instruments 835,241 (1,197,595)
Decrease in other EmmemEEREERZ
financial assets and LME® i
warrantable LME
commodities 45,343 41,073
(Decrease)/increase in trade B E S ER1E R E A E
and other payables and FEREHEE
contract liabilities CR ) /18N (1,930,923) 1,213,294
Decrease in & B
employee benefit (12,196) (11,708)
(Decrease)/increase in BECR ), /1 hn
provisions (4,489) 13,045
Cash generated from KEEBFB 2R e
operations 883,728 1,951,876




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. BeRBREEEBEBBUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HeEREER®
(continued)
(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) BMEETBELEGEHIER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TERFUAEEREBEEDNE
liabilities from financing activities, including both EED(BERERIFRLED) -
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from BEERPELNAR/ARSAERN
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows BENSE /ﬁiiﬂ‘%ﬁi\ﬁﬁg REm
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the EXTHEEARBERIREREZ
Group's statement of cash flows as cash flows from afE -
financing activities.
Amount Loans
due  from non-
Loans and Lease  torelated  controlling
borrowings liabilities parties interests Total
ERGBESF REFER
ERRER HERE RE EEZEX B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETrT  BEFT  BETT  A¥Tn BEFn
(Note 28)  (Note 31(a)) (Note 27) (Note 27)
(Hizt28)  (Hit31(a)) (Hit27) (Hzt27)
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—\ET-A=t—H 9668978 - 834 31,155 9,700,967
Impact of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 #IiAR A& B 755k 5 28
1652 HE (15,798) 3,834,406 - - 3818608
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—F—H 9,653,180 3,834,406 834 31,155 13,519,575
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREFELE :
New borrowings raised MER 14,787,107 - - - 14,781,107
Repayment of borrowings BEET \ (16,501,940) - (153) - (16,502,093)
Loan from non-controlling interests REFRRER ZER - - - 16,260 16,260
Capital element of lease payment MERFZEREH - (417,186) - - (417,186)
Total changes from financing cash flows ZBEAELHEE (1,714,833)  (417,186) (153) 16,260  (2,115,912)
Changes from operating cash flows: EER&FELE :
Interest paid BATFIE (524,085) (138,860) - - (662,945)
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERGEH HE
changes 62,904 10,145 - (1,590) 71,459
Other changes: Hith2g
Transferred from interest payable ERARENFE 25,851 - - - 25,851
New leases Mg - 45,730 - - 45,730
Lease modification and remeasurement  fEE155] K E3f:tE - (43,096) - - (43,09)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (773,978) - - - (773,978)
Transferred to disposal group classified EBREHEARELEL
as held-for-sale HEER (458,421) - - - (458,421)
Interest expense and other finance MERTREMRBERA
costs 651,564 138,860 - - 790,424
Total other changes BEMEY (554,984) 141,494 - - (413,490)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NETZA=t-H 6922182 3,429,999 681 45825 10,398,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. REekReEEERURHEM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION ReEREER®
(continued)
(¢)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBHELEBZIHE®)

financing activities (continued)

Amount Loans
due from non-
Loansand  Convertible torelated  controlling

borrowings bonds parties interests Total
ENBEER  REFER
ERRER  HRES FE  BRZEX aat

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT  EEFT  BETT EETT 0 EETT
(Note 28) (Note 30) (Note 27) (Note 27)
(H1i£28) (B1i£30) (Bit27) (Bit27)

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A—H 14,347,419 380,656 1819 13,034 14,742,928
Changes from financing cash flows: BEBSRERH
New borrowings raised TS 20,640,343 = = 19,130 20,659,473
Repayment of borrowings EEER (25,316,254) (404,560) (985) - (25,721,799)
Repayment of finance lease BERERERE
obligations (6,539) - - - (6,539)
Total changes from financing cash flows ZREARLHEEH (4,682,450) (404,560) (985) 19130 (5,068,865)

Changes from operating cash flows: E&REFELE :
Interest paid BRIFE (556,364 (32,365) = = (588,729)

Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERSE HE

changes (58,537) - = (1,009) (59,546)
Other changes: Hiv2s:
Transferred to interest payable BRERANE (62,818) - - - (62,818)
Interest expenses and other finance M HXTREMRBEKA

costs 668,647 56,269 - - 724,916
Business combination £5A0 13,081 = = = 13,081
Total other changes BEMEE) 618,910 56,269 = = 675,179
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+-A=t-H 9668978 - 834 31,155 9,700,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ENESRERHEMENSFIE
2019 2018
—E-nE  —F)\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BT B F T
Trade and bills payables EREZREREMARE
— measured at amortised cost — B KA 2 114,476 813,929
— containing provisional pricing - BEEFEEBRERIEAR
features and measured at BETAERTE
FVPL 1,049,516 894,559
(a) 1,163,992 1,708,488
Amount segregated for customers D FEF Z &5 (b) 4,353,542 4,855,765
Other payables and accruals H fh T3R8 R R IR B 1,440,461 2,280,110
Amount due to related parties FE{S A 5 IR (c) 681 834
Loans from non-controlling REFIERER 2 ER
interests (d) 45,825 31,155
7,004,501 8,876,352
Less: non-current portion R FEmENER D (20,058) (6,120)
6,984,443 8,870,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27. BERESREREMEMNKIE
(%)
Hiet -
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables (a) AT ABRREERE 2 EMNE SERBER
based on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting BREBHRED :
period:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BMEF T
0-90 days 0-90H 826,545 1,531,369
91-180 days 91-180H 229,751 78,795
181-365 days 181-365H 66,381 42,712
1-2 years 1-24F 23,851 16,778
Over 2 years 2F DA E 17,464 38,834
1,163,992 1,708,488
The average credit period for purchase of goods ranged BAEmZEAEEHRNFI0E180
from 90 to 180 days. The Group has financial risk H - RNEEREFVEERERER -
management policies in place to ensure that all payables RRGEERHEEBAZN2EEAR
are settled within the credit time frame. Ig
As at 31 December 2019, trade payables amounted to RZE—NF+=ZA=+—80  EFR
HK$764,000, HK$1,152,000 and HK$498,000 (2018: SEBENA  AECERHEMEAE
HK$1,080,000, HK$1,075,000 and HK$494,000), are due FZERNEBSRES B AE%764,000
to the Group's associates, joint ventures and other related JC 75 #1,152,0007T & &% 498,000
parties, respectively. T(ZZT—\F : 57 A&%E%1,080,000
JC ~ B#1,075,0007T KB # 494,000
JT) °
As at 31 December 2019, except for the amount of (b) RZZE—-—AF+=ZRA=+—8 KT
HK$989,610,000 (2018: HK$1,647,119,000) which were ARBEEEBEESRKRNZXATEIF
used to purchase quoted treasury securities and pledged ZIRFEE (RMiE21)7%8%989,610,000
as margin deposit with the CME (see Note 21), the T(ZE—/\F : B¥1,647,119,000
remaining balance of amount segregated for customers of TN BT E D FEEZERBE
HK$3,363,932,000 (2018: HK$3,208,646,000) were held by 3,363,932,000c(=ZZF—/)\F : B
the Group in segregated accounts (see Note 24(a)). 3,208,646,0007T) H AL B H B BR P
A (R E24() ©
Amounts due to related parties represented non-trade (c) EREES RIBREMNEG SR EREM
amounts due to joint ventures and other related parties REFZIIESEIA  BAEEKF - 28
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on RIRERKEE -
demand.
Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured and (d) REFERESZZERABERARS

(d)

interest-free. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, all the balances are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

28. BERRMEX

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ikz3 BEFT BT
Non-current FERE
MTN FEIEIR (a) - 581,308
Secured bank loans HIRFIRITERK (b) 1,134,889 1,129,596
Hire purchase and finance lease HELRHERSEAE
liabilities - 10,603
1,134,889 1,721,507
Current FED
MTN FEIER (a) 586,735 578,147
Perpetual notes KAEE (c) 358,492 360,309
Secured bank loans HERPIEITER (b) 88,252 1,278,662
Revolving short-term trade facilities fE3REHE FaE () 3,980,553 4,339,020
Hire purchase and finance lease HELRBEEEAE
liabilities - 5,195
The Extended Borrowing/ KGEERE TR HE R
The New Borrowing (e) 768,334 1,381,873
Secured bank overdrafts BEBIRITES (b) 2,090 1,460
Unsecured bank overdrafts EIMPIRITES (b) 2,837 2,805
5,787,293 7,947,471
Notes: Bt -
(a) The MTN are issued by CWT SG under its Multicurrency (a) FHIZE Ty HCWT SGIRBENR =T —

Debt Issuance Programme which was first established in
April 2013. As at 31 December 2019, the balance included
one tranche of MTN with aggregate principal amount
of S$100,000,000 issued on 18 March 2015 which are
interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 4.8% per annum and
matured on 18 March 2020. The interest is payable semi-
annually in arrear. The MTN have been redeemed in full on
18 March 2020.

“EMAYRBRIZ ZREBERET
B FUEIT - RZE—NAF+=RA=
+—0 #8®eER-_Z-—RF=A+
J\B 317K % 4% 4100,000,0005 71
W — P HERE S ZBRIREE
FRELI8%FTEEER T _ZTF =
A+ NBEIH - FI 8 FEFRHIAH—
ReHHEEENR-_E-_ZTF=A+ 1\
H28ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

Notes: (continued)

(b)

28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 28. ERRfER®
BteE - (&
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the secured bank loans (b) R-F—HhER—FT—N\E+-_A=+
and bank overdrafts were repayable as follows: —H - EEBRITERKRITBE S AR
AT ERBR B2 -
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT B FT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 93,179 1,282,927
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMEA 989,206 12,897
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERAFR 26,932 1,049,511
After 5 years hEE 118,751 67,188
1,228,068 2,412,523

(c)

(d)

Perpetual notes are issued by subsidiaries of the Company
in connection with acquisition of CWT SG. Perpetual
notes with aggregate principal amount of US$46,000,000
are guaranteed by HNA Group (International) Company
Limited. The notes are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable at the discretion of the Group, but redeemable
upon occurrence of subordination events (including but
not limited to liquidation of the note guarantor) as set out
in the notes’ subscription agreement. Since the liquidation
of the note guarantor is not controllable by the Group, the
perpetual notes is therefore classified as “current liability”
in accordance with the prevailing accounting standards.

Revolving short-term trade facilities of the Group relate to
short-term trade related self-liquidating facilities to finance
the Group’s commodity marketing business.
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(c)

AR AIHE R B 5B CWT SGETTK
AZEIE o A& % /346,000,000 T2
KAZEHEMEE(BR)BRAFE
®R o ZERBREER  RERALNE
EBIEEE  ERRBEZRBIHAAER
HEEH(BRETRRERERAB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) As disclosed in Note 2(b), the terms of the New Borrowing
have been modified during the year ended 31 December
2019 pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement. As at
31 December 2019, the balance is due for repayment in
August 2020, interest-bearing at 17.5% per annum. As at
31 December 2019, the Extended Borrowing is pledged
with the Group's assets as detailed below;

(i) all issued shares in HNA International Property
Investment Company Two Limited (“"HNA
Property Investment I1”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company;

(ii) inter-company loan made by HNA International
Property Investment Company One Limited (the
immediate holding company of HNA Property
Investment Il and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) to HNA Property
Investment II;

(iii) all issued shares in each of HNA Belt and Road
Investments Company Limited (“"HNA Belt &
Road”), HNA Belt and Road Investments (BVI)
Company Limited (“HNA Belt & Road BVI"),
HNA Belt and Road Investments (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (“"HNA Belt & Road Singapore”) and CWT
Pte. Limited ("CWT SG") (all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, which in
turn holds the group of entities engaging in the
following business segments of the Group: logistic
services, CM, ES and financial services);

28. ERKMER®
Kiat - (&

(e)

B A2 MEE - REE=ZE— 1
E+-_A=+—HILFE  FERZIE
RERBEHFTBRETER - RZT—
hWE+-_B=+—8 ##8BR_T—
TENADHEE  REME17.5%
B oRZE—NF+ZA=+—H &
EHE AR ER 2 EEERT - #15
U

(i) HNA International Property
Investment Company Two
Limited ([HNA Property
Investment IL)) (KA QA E#E 2
BEMBARMMAAED BHITR

5

(ii) HNA International Property
Investment Company One
Limited(HNA Property
Investment |IH) B R A A]
EARAGIEEZERBAR)M
HNA Property Investment |I{E
HRRARIBER

(iif) B RBBREESRA
al (M — % — 8 1) - HNA Belt
and Road Investments (BVI)
Company Limited([HNA Belt
& Road BVIJ) * HNA Belt and
Road Investments (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. ((HNA Belt & Road
Singaporel) LA CWT Pte.
Limited([CWT SG|) (5 B
RIZENBAR @ MARRE
EREBAEENTEBE DI H
ERSE  YWRRE  &H
B IERBREERSE S
B ENMBEDBITRG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 28. ERRfER®
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(e) (continued) (e) (88)

(iv) all issued shares in Hillview Golf Development (iv) B REMARERARAF K
Company Ltd. (which was an indirect wholly-owned RAIFEEEENE AR RH
subsidiary of the Company and a holding company %%%T@%Qﬁ(ﬁéﬂf?&% HH#
of the PRC Operation (this was released as at the ERBR)OMBEEETRG
date of this report));

(v) inter-company loans made by the Company to HNA (v) AR ARG — % — B &HNA
Belt & Road and HNA Belt & Road BVI; Belt & Road BVItE L A FIME

B

(vi) the assets of the Company; (vi) RARKEE

(vil  the assets of HNA Belt & Road, including a security i) B RHNEE - BEA
assignment in respect of the inter-company loan B8 — % — R MAHNA Belt &
made by HNA Belt & Road to HNA Belt & Road Road SingaporefE i A RIEE
Singapore; EE R

(vii)  the assets of HNA Belt & Road BVI, including (vii)  HNA Belt & Road BVIFEE
a security assignment in respect of the inter- B35 FIHNA Belt & Road BVI
company loan made by HNA Belt & Road BVI to [AIHNA Belt & Road Singapore
HNA Belt & Road Singapore; EE R A R B R e

Z
(ix) the assets of HNA Belt & Road Singapore; and (ix) HNA Belt & Road SingaporeH]
BE R

(x) certain shareholder loans made by HNA Group () B E (BB (B R mA
(International) (an immediate Shareholder) to the ARMEEMETRREER - H
Company which is reflected under equity (see Note PR 7 S i (R M RE35(c)(vi)) ©
35(c)(vi).

At the end of the reporting period, assets used to secure RIFERR - AFREHRRNEBERRER
the Group's loans and borrowings other than the Extended (FEIEHRBEFBRINEEMT ¢

Borrowing were as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hE  —TNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Investment property LB - 1,198,824
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R&E 2,009,124 2,149,792
Land use rights I Hb s A - 1,039,371
Pledged bank deposits BIKIRRITIER 145,999 13,119
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR T8 K HL 4th FE U SR IR 2,886,196 2,066,640
Inventories FE 2,836,873 2,709,235
7,878,192 9,176,981
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

29. TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT 29. FRREZEEKEFEERXR
SCHEDULE
The terms and conditions of outstanding loans and MAREEERRERZERREGINT

borrowings are as follows:

2019 218
“e-1f = St
Year of Nominal Carrying Year of Nominal Carrying
maturity interest rate amount maturity interest rate amount
HEER ZEHE FEE HBER ZEAE SaE
HKS$'000 HK$000
BETT BEFT
USD floating rate revolving shortterm  ETLF S EREHESHE 200 28%750% 3980553 019 260%750% 4,339,020
trade faciliies “E°%F “E-NE
USD perpetual note ETKARE N/A N/A 358,492 N/A N/A 360,309
TER NER TER NER
SGD floating rate loans HIBTERER 2020-2021  1.92%3.16% 1,049,719 2021 187%-2.33% 1,020,553
:g gii “EC-fF
7?7 ¢
SGD fixed rate MTN FME T B P ERE 2020 390%-4.80% 586,735  2019-2020  3.90%-4.80% 1,159,455
—%C% “3-NEE
“5-%F
GBP floating rate loans AETBEH N/A N/A - 2001 2.10%-2.41% 744,769
NER @A —E--f
GBP fixed rate loans RETEREN 2031 360% 5373 2031 360% 5,661
“B=-F “3=-F
RMB floating rate loans* AREZEER 2020-2023  7.65%-8.06% 458,421 2019—2023 7.65%-8.06% 481,270
3= *h nﬁ
_7— i —7— ¢
HKD fixed rate loans BEEREH 2019 175% 768,334 2019 1700% 1,381,873
“5-NE “5-NE
EUR floating rate loans BLZEER N/A N/A - 2007 0.88%-0.89% 12,253
MEF NEF it 2
EUR fixed rate loans BTEaER 2007 1.42%-2.40% 158165 20192007  142%-5.77% 133,132
“EtF “F-NEE
B E
TRY floating rate loans TEESNERER 2020 15.50%-34.00% 8,790 2019 16.00%-34.00% 9925
“5°%F “F-N0EF
INR fixed rate loans DEEHTEEER 2000 2022 8.30%-9.50% 376 2019—2021 8.65%-11.50% 40
21 I-NEZ
_;_ 3
LKR fixed rate loans HEFREHTEER 16.00% 557 N/A N/A =
TER NER
PHP fixed rate loans FRENZESER 2020-2021 10.65% 161 2020-2021 10.65% 275
:2 2 ES :2 2@1;
77— ﬁ 7?7 ¢
Hire purchase and finance RERBARESRE N/A N/A - 2018 2023 1.80%-19.00% 15,798
lease liabllities TR TR /\@E
Bank overdrafts BITEY 2020 11.50%-15.24% 4,927 2019 1150%-15.00% 4,265
“2°% “5-NF
7,380,603 9,668,978
& The RMB floating rate loans are associated with the o RZE—NF+ZA=+—H0 ' AR®K
PRC Operation and included within “liabilities associated /1@/\&\5143 BIX5HER - Wt AlD
with a disposal group classified as held-for-sale” as at 31 BARBELEZLEHERZEEAE]
December 2019. A e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 30. AMRKRESKMARNITETAR

DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS i)
ABREES 2 BB RITETARN (8
RERETETE  BFRFEAZRINE
EIRETETARSHERETETRLARE
ZE-N\F+ZA=+—RHILFEZEY
o H -

The movement of the debt component and the derivative
components (including conversion option derivative,
bondholder’s early redemption option derivative and
compulsory conversion option derivative) of the convertible
bonds for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out as
follows:

Debt Derivative

component  components

BRI TETAEDBH

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

(Note 40(e))

(Htat40(e))

At 1 January 2018 R_F—-—NF—H—H 380,656 41,988
Interest charge for the year FEMBRAXE 56,269 =
Gain on fair value changes ARBEEEZFS Ka - (41,988)
Repayment of principal amount BEXS (404,560) -
Coupon payment YHREL (32,365) -

At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=-A=+—H = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HE&EE
(a) The Group as lessee (a) AEEEREBEA

31 December 1 January 31 December

2019 2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF —E-N\F

+=HA=+—8H —fA—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000

BEFT BT BT

(Note) (Note)

(HaE) (Htat)

Lease liabilities HERE

Current BN HF 373,173 426,077 -

Non-current JERNER 3,056,826 3,408,329 -

3,429,999 3,834,406 -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Wit - AEBERBALETENEE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the RIERBENEREERIZE 16
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise 8 WRZ=ZZT—NF—H—H
lease liabilities relating to leases which were TR R A RER B L AT AR
previously classified as operating leases under BEASHENE1TRDER
HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative KERE HERRE HESR
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). & RIEZ A A WHEET|LL

BER - RIFE2(c) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

31.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

The Group as lessee (continued)

The Group mainly leases land and warehouses.
Land leases typically run for a period of 5 to 30
years of which some leases have option to renew
the lease. Warehouse leases typically run for a
period of 2 to 20 years of which some leases have
option to renew the lease. Lease payments are
renegotiated before the expiry of each lease. Some
leases provide for additional rent payments that are
based on changes in local price indices. For certain
leases, the Group is only allowed to enter into any
sub-lease arrangements for a prescribed percentage
of the leased assets. Some property leases contain
extension options exercisable by the Group up to
one year before the end of the non-cancellable
contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include extension options in new leases to provide
operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Group reassesses whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if
there is a significant event or significant changes
in circumstances within its control. The Group has
estimated that the potential future lease payments,
should it exercise the extension option, would result
in an increase in lease liability of HK$32,043,000.

The Group also leases some motor vehicles and
equipment under a number of leases which were
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17.

The Group leases some office equipment that are
low value items of which the Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for these leases. The Group has also elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases ending on or before 31 December 2019.
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31.

HEEE®

(a)

REBEEREEAE)
AEBFERETHREE o T
HERTE RHYSEI0F - HPE)
HERGEREER -RBEHER
FRH2E205F AP HOEERE
BREMEER HENKNEEAE
EEMAETENER - SHHEE
MEENEHEREHE DRI
HEeEfMfR -BETHEMS @ A&
EERENREANULNEEEE
RIMERDBELEE - MOMEHRE
BEAHARNKERTAIHESOH
B RATEMERE - KZ AT
H—%F - ER{THERT AKEF
BHHET RS T’ - ARHE
BEAMN - BAENTEHEETHA
SETE - MARHOBEATE -
AEBNEERG AHFHERS
BEEEGITREHME - TR E
AEFNEREHHIRENERE
B ARESENFEERLEAE
HEERITEZRERN - AKE R
&t MITEEREEIRE - RIVEERRAE
ENREEHREERBREMNER
32,043,0007T °

AEETREZREERRET A
BERRME MzSHEREEES
AHEAFI7TREY B AREME -

AR S T B EEE A o
TR - MAKBDRBTHES
MERREAEEERAGAE -
ARBETEBTHR = —NF+
A=t BRZAERNEER
REMEEERBEALM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) The Group as lessee (continued)

Information about leases for which the Group is a

lessee is presented below.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

rE B RS IR R M e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —L4FE+_H=+—HILFE
31. HEEGE®

(a) AEEEREEAGE

AEBERABANHENHRES
B2 -

REBuEERNEH

2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
BT
Leases under HKFRS 16 ERMBEREEAF16RETNHEE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGHNE (138,860)
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets R EMUW A 278 FEFEREEE
presented in ‘other income’ FIESTL N 126,913
Expenses relating to short-term leases R ERBEAX (111,210)
Expenses relating to leases of low-value KEBEEEHE(REEEENHNE
assets, excluding short-term leases of low- &K 4NHHRIFI 2
value assets (2,512)
2018
—FE-N\F
HK$'000
JBEMEF T
Leases under HKAS 17 EBEHERNE17HETNEE
Total minimum lease payments =IEEE RARRE (573,720)
Sub-lease rental income HHAEE KA 180,103
Total cash outflow for leases HEBRSRHESR
2019
=E-NF
HK$'000
BT
Within operating cash flows AARERERE 138,860
Within financing cash flows AFARERESRE 417,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

31.

32.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 31. HEAE®W
(b) The Group as lessor (b) AEEEBEBAA
The Group contracted out part of their leasehold REBRBYREOKEBHEE
buildings to clients under logistic contracts. The BFINETER - GHBEIL R
contracts typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15 BRI Z15%F - FEBHNRE - FIEFLL
years. Rates are revised at renewal of contract to B URBMSEFE - ZFE4
reflect market rate. None of the contracts include B BENANR - TAIBENEG
contingent payments. The non-cancellable contract AVEWCRIBLAT -
payments receivable are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 336,205 582,550
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZFRF(BEERE
M) 434,256 1,021,422
Over fifth year AR F 230,094 357,845
1,000,555 1,961,817
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 32. EERTF
2019 2018
—E-hAEF —E-N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETFT B F T
Non-current FERE
Defined benefit obligations FLTE fE AR 33 54,094 43,425
Other employee benefit liabilities ~ EfhE 2@ H & & - -
54,094 43,425
Current B
Other employee benefit liabilities ~ EfhE 2@ F & & - 13,253
- 13,253
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group had adopted a share option scheme (see Note
36) for the directors and employees.

(b) The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also contributes to various other defined
contribution retirement plans for eligible employees.
The plans are managed either by the government in the
countries where the employees are employed, or by
independent trustees. Contribution levels are determined
by the relevant laws and regulations concerned.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a pension plan for its employees of
a subsidiary in Switzerland whereby the plan participants
are insured against the financial consequences of old age,
disability and death. The pension plan is operated by an
independent, legally autonomous collective foundation of
an insurance company. Consequently the plan assets are
completely segregated from both the Group and the plan
participants.

The pension plan is funded by contributions from the Group
whereby funding is determined by the provisions stipulated
in The Swiss Federal Law on Occupational Benefit and
Disability Pension Plans and the Federal law on Vesting in
Pension Plans. The latest independent actuarial valuation
of the pension plan was at 31 December 2019 performed
by Mercer (Switzerland) SA, using the projected unit credit
method. Mercer (Switzerland) SA is an affiliate of Marsh &
McLennan Companies, Inc., a global professional services
firm headquartered in New York City. The actuarial valuation
indicated that the Group's obligations under the pension
plan is 58.9% (2018: 64.88%) covered by the plan assets
held by the insurance company.

32.

33.

EBEER @
Kiat -

(a) AEEEREERESRMNBRES
(RFEE36) °

(b) AEBRBEB R ATE S5 BED
REBRBIEOIFEETXEABELS
EREBAMBRAEREZEE RIS
HEAEES S ((RREEED) - @fa
BE B RREHFRAFE > ABULZ
FEABIT - REBRESE - BEXRE
BEXBAZESHEBKAZL%MZ
SHEERER - S AEBRALRSE
#30,0007T ° st EIHFHANERE

AEENRSAERERRNSAEMATE
HFRKRETEIHR - ZFHERERR
BREBERZBNXABILIZEAE
I8 o HFUKTHENBRER KRR GIE

.
E °

RERAERE
AEBRERR LT 2B ARRERIER
KETE > MEZE2SEARIERAZE
e BEMECHRZHBEE - RS
AElm—RERRARZEY - BAEEZ
SBECGEE - Ft - frEIEETES
VRAEBE RZFEZEA -

BRARSHEBAEBRHEFOEE - #HHR
15 3w o Bk B BBk 2 4w A AN G B A 51 81X
KB FR K 2 3% T 51 81AFT#R € 2 1671
EE  BAREHECEFTELBENE
R-ZFE—NAF+=A=+—HAEMercer
(Switzerland) SA{# T8 8 2@ F BE LA
#1717 o Mercer (Switzerland) SA&Marsh &
McLennan Companies, Inc. ZE¢B AR
Marsh & MclLennan Companies, Inc.Z #&
HUuREH™ B EEREEREA
Ao BEMMBTASERZRAKRSFE
T2 A ERRB AR IE 258 & E&
¥58.9% (ZF—/\FF : 64.88%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

33.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 33. SRERERIHAIE @)
The net defined benefit obligations recognised in the NiE A BTSSR AR NER Z A
consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting FERFAEFRENT ¢
date are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
HaF BT T BT T
Present value of funded obligations & ;& &EIRE 131,691 123,649
Fair value of plan assets FEIBEZAREBE (77,597) (80,224)
32 54,094 43,425
Details of the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FFEIEEMNAABEFFBHOT !
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BB F T
Cash and cash equivalents BeMkIReEEER 2,675 1,575
Equity instruments R E 1,170 2,368
Debt instruments* ERIRE* 57,632 58,804
Real estate EibE 12,756 11,799
Others EHAth 3,364 5,678
Assets held by insurance company REARBENEE 77,597 80,224
& Debt instruments have a credit rating of AAA to not rated. o B TENEETRBAAMERTH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) ~ 33.

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

REBRALE @
RIBAPORRZBENT :

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BEMTF T

Current service cost & H RIS A A 8,915 9,144
Interest cost F B 1,224 831

Interest income F B WA (828) (534)
9,311 9,441

Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
are as follows:

REMEEKET D RER BN

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BB F T
Remeasurements on changes in EFIERRE

assumptions 10,650 (2,556)

Return on plan assets (excluding FHE1& E R = (B EF B4
interest income) (1,144) (151)
9,506 (2,707)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)  33. S E & F & IE (@)

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are FREBMAEREZZHOT :
as follows:
2019 2018
=L B
HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BT T
Defined benefit obligations at 1 January R —A— B Z A ERFIHEE 123,649 118,549
Current service cost & ARG AA 8,915 9,144
Interest cost B 1,224 831
Remeasurements on changes in EHFETEREE
assumptions 10,650 (2,556)
Benefits paid BAEF (14,047) (1,609)
Exchange realignment P 5 R 1,300 (710)
Defined benefit obligations at R+t—A=+—BzATEREF
31 December HAHE 131,691 123,649
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit HE-_Z-—NF+_A=1+—8 " A%
obligations as of 31 December 2019 is 22 years (2018: 20.5 BRFERENEESFHAE2F(ZE—N
years). & 1 20.5%) -
Changes in the fair value of plan assets during the year are FRFTEEEAAREEEHNT :
as follows:
2019 2018
=L B
HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BT T
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January R—A—BZHEEEAAEE (80,224) (72,296)
Interest income FEHA (828) (534)
Employer contribution EEHK (8,765) (9,283)
Return on plan assets (excluding FHEIEER R CIEERBWA)
interest income) (1,144) (151)
Benefits paid B EF 14,047 1,609
Exchange realignment b 5 R (683) 431

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December HR+—-AZ=+—HZ:EEE
NREE (77,597) (80,224)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)  33. S E & F&IE (@)

The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows: FEBERRERAOT ¢
2019 2018

—E-hE —T—)\F

Mortality tables, actuarial statistics FRTEREK - BEHEEBUEE
(disability, mortality, etc.) HTE)

Discount rate AhIR = 0.35% 1.00%
Rate of salary increase HeTE 1.00% 1.00%
Rate of the projection of the saving capital f#%& & A8 8| & 0.35% 1.00%
Rate of pension increase RIKEFH IR 0.00% 0.00%
Turnover = 14.60% 13.20%
Sensitivities of significant actuarial assumptions FERERRZHBRE

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to
one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligations by the amounts shown below:

RBEBRH  ER-—BRABRERRZA
EU SR (HMRR I E) eFER TR
MESE - P REBIRAT ¢

Increase Decrease
B m
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2019 —E-hEF
Discount rate (0.25% movement) AR38 & (2 8)0.25%) 6,592 (7,133)
Future salary growth (0.25% movement) 7R ¥ &8 & (B 5)0.25%) 2,126 -
2018 —=-N\%
Discount rate (0.25% movement) B3R & (2 5)0.25%) (6,086) (6,569)
Future salary growth (0.25% movement) 7R ¥4 18 & (E$5)0.25%) 2,201 =

The above sensitivity calculations are based on one
assumption changing while others remain unchanged. In
practice, however, there are certain correlations between
the individual assumptions. The same method was used to
calculate the sensitivities and the defined benefit obligations
at the end of the financial year.

P gREFEDER -BBREGHME
RRAREAE - AW - BR EERIRR
ZEFES THERE - RPRFER

B E R RE AR A AERBER AR

At

5_0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

34. DEFERRED TAX 34. EEHIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) NTAERRAZEIBRELEHBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BE) UERERAFERBEFECEE)
prior years:
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) EEHBEER (BE)
Impact of Recognised
At1 initial Adjusted  Recognised  Disposal of in other At
January  adoption balance at inprofit interestsin  comprehensive  Translation 31 December
2019 of HKFRS 16 1 January 2019 orloss  subsidiaries income ~difference 2019
1w i
B OEEMBEE  ZE-nf il it i
ZE-nE OEHE6EC -A-AN B KEAE Efb2E ZE-nE

-R-H ¥8 3Rk RERR Bi hE®d  BEEE T-A=t-H
HKS00  HKS 000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
E¥fr  ERTR B8 ERTn B E¥fr  ERTr ERTR

(Note 2/c)) (Note 12)
(W21 (Wit12)
Property, plantand equipment 9% - BER&fE 312,408 - 312,408 (14,267) (34,189) - 33 264,288
Right-of-use assets FRELE - 62,017 62,017 (9,093) - - 400 53,324
Investment properties REN% 18,184 - 18,184 - (18.184) - - -
Land use rights TitfERE 250,08 - 250,028 (13305 (287,525) - 802 -
Contract liablites AhEE (45,325 - (45,325) 7930 36,662 - m -
Intangible assets ElEE 41,344 - 41,34 (12,569) - - (338) 28431
Inventories h& 7540 - 7,540 (7541) - - 1 -
Trade and other receivables EYESEER
AftredE 6,071 - 6,071 (8,420) - - 3 (2,346)
Trade and other payables ENE55ER
AfpfefiEE (4552) - (4552) 155 - - 8 (4.308)
Provisions i (4,006) (1,069) (5,075 (2,380 - - (26) (7481)
Lease liablties HEak - (62557) (62,557) 7,761 - - (414) (55,210)
Unutiised tax benefits RARBES (12.292) - (12.292) 1512 - - 1] (4787)
Others ity (5,132) - (5,132) (632) - (1632) (110) (7,506)
564,268 (1,609) 562,659 (44849)  (263216) (1632) 1,449 264,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEMBERRHE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ — & — 4+ _H="+—HIL#E
34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. BEEHIE®
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) NTAEBRAZEIBRELEHBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and E) UERHRAFERBAFEZE
prior years (continued): #B) :
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) FEEHEAE (BE)®
Impact on Recognised
At initial At Acquisition Recognised in other At
31 December adoptionof 1 January of  Translation in profit - comprehensive 31 December
2017 HKFRS9 2018 subsidiaries  differences orloss income 2018
Bt ERRMER i REfy —E-NE
TR BBHEEN TN\ i REB&ERA 2EhE t2f
=T-0 2MMFE -F-A  WEAA #EEE B i
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
A¥Tr  B¥fr  BETr B¥Tr BEFr BETx FEfr  EETR
(Note 12)
(Wit12)
Property, plant and equipment 0% BERGE 776,040 - TI6040 (116) (10,148 (453368) - 312408
Investment properties RENE 13,678 = 13,678 = 40 4,466 = 18,184
Land use rights THERE 271,982 - N - (13,600) (8,354) - 250,028
Deferred gains Btk (56,468) - (56468 = 2,569 8574 - (4530
Intangible assets EAE 61929 - 61929 - (1,019 (19,566 - 41,344
Financial assets SHEE (18) - (18) - - 18 - -
Inventories 75 7,586 = 7,586 = 2% (70) = 7,540
Trade and other receivables EWE SEERA
YA 10,257 (167 10090 (947) (382) (2,690) - 6,071
Trade and other payables EREARERL
Efi7A (5,669) - (5,669) 691 43 (29) 287 (4552)
Provisions B (4.892) - (4.892) - 201 685 - (4,006)
Unutiised tax benefits RYRHEES (15,622) - (15622 1,261 39 1673 - (1229)
Others K (4,793) - (4,793) - 2 (360) - (6,132)
1,054,010 (167) 1,063,843 889 (21463)  (469,288) 281 564,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. EERBIE(®)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) ELEBBEEE (BE)®
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a & EIE A T BV EARA 18 & /2= B B B 18
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against BEGHEKE  BREHIEY KR —&H
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to g ARERIERBEREE I BMHEIK
the same taxation authority. The amounts determined after o NBEEREEETE BT ATBER
appropriate offsetting are included in the statements of MFRA W

financial position as follows:

2019 2018
—E-AF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEMTF T
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 289,495 590,599
Deferred tax assets EETIEE E (25,084) (26,331)
Deferred tax liabilities, net ELEHIBARE  FE 264,411 564,268
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of WERBEWE 22 & & 5T R 5t T 5 E
the following items in accordance with accounting policies BHERELEHREEE
set out in Note 2(z):
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deductible temporary differences A =R 981,386 1,113,414
Unutilised tax losses AB)FAFIEEE 482,803 853,051
Unabsorbed wear and tear allowance DA D 2 FEIE R 2,594 1,649
1,466,783 1,968,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34, EZERBIE @)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) EEBBEEE (BE)®
At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of RZZE-—AF+ZA=+—0  x&EHE
approximately HK$482,803,000 (2018: HK$853,051,000) RE)ARIEEELE%482,803,0007T(=
which are available for offsetting against future profits. No T — \4 : B%853,051,0007T) © A AR
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the TR G - EZZE—NFR_ZT—N
tax loss due to the unpredictably of future profit streams F+ZA=+—H  BARKRKZ&EFHRIR
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. Except for below, other LATEET - MU AR IBE B ERE(E
losses can be carried forward indefinitely. ERIEEE © g NaiE RN - HMmEIER]
R HR AR -
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FT JBMEF T
Tax losses to be expired in RT3 B A ER 2 BB EE
-2019 -—ZE-NF - 44,350
-2020 -—_T-THF 7,881 7,917
-2021 - T4 37,522 37,747
-2022 S S = 6,381 -
—2023 -—E =4 32,702 38,816
—2024 - —ZE 4 10,501 -
94,987 123,330

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax
authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the
respective countries in which the subsidiaries operate. The
deductible temporary differences and tax losses, other than
disclosed above, do not expire under current tax legislation.

BEBRAGCHBEBRE - LETHE
NEREMEBRR 2 HYPOER - ATEME
51BN R R R (B L PR & SN
TEERITHOETRL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. EXKGHE
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) H=BHZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REE SN 2 FENRERE
balances of each component of the Group’s equity HEZHERANGEEREEHE
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes AR B FE Y R R E R 3 5
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FEFIBEIAT

individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Perpetual Share
Share Capital capital Translation option Accumulated
capital reserve instrument reserve reserve losses Total
XA

Bx  EARE EFIR  ENGHE BRERSE  RER ait
HKS'000  HKS000  HKSUOO  HKS000  HK$000 HKS'000  HK$ 000
E¥TT  E¥Tr BETn BRTn BRTn E¥Tn BT

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F—A—-AH 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) 19,912 (1,419,904) 5,242,822
Profit and total comprehensive FERFREAREEE
income for the year - - - - - 78,471 78,471
Share options lapsed/cancelled BIRELR/ - - - = (16,501) 16,501 =
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\E+ZAR
1 January 2019 =t-BRZZE-NF
—-A-H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) 3411 (1,324,932) 5,321,293
Loss and total comprehensive FEFRRZAKREE
income for the year - - - - - (1,127,774)  (1,127,774)
Share options lapsed/cancelled BREXM/ 8 - - - - (2,675) 2,675 =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-n%
+-A=t-H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) 736 (2,450,031) 4,193,519
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 35. EXRR@HE®
(b)  Share capital (b) MR
Number of
shares Amount
BEE ok |
HK$'000
BEEETF T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: B 217 M2 2 Z@A% :
At 1 January 2018, 31 December RZZE—-N\F—H—H-
2018, 1 January 2019 and —ET-N\&+=A

31 December 2019 =+—8 -ZF2—N&F

—A—BRZE-AF
+=—A=+—8H 11,399,996,101 4,731,480

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the excess
amount of the fair value of identifiable
net assets acquired in an acquisition of
subsidiaries in 2014 over the fair value of
consideration transferred and non-controlling
interest, which is considered as deemed
capital contribution from HNA Group and is
credited to capital reserve. The vendor of the
acquisition transaction is controlled by HNA
Group.

(i) Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from the functional
currency of the Company.

(c)

BIEEERFHEH 513505 -
AT BRI EMME -

A2

ERESEAGRERTEEIRZ
BB AERRARBKRE LIAE
BR—FETRR - WARBRIBE
EME - EEBBRALRS -

RELERAR

(i) BXEE
BEAmBEREN_F—MO
F U5 B BT B8 2 R BF BT U BB AT
BRI EEFEZ AR EBER
BEEEREIAABEMR
TR B HE 2R PR 1 2 E RE AN
BRREEMEEZRIET
& WEt ANBANHE - WiE
RHZEBETREFZEME

Elked | /NI

(i) EX#E
EXFRHEeERRRERINE
B(EDEERRARFZ
Wee BB AR BB HRKRE
HEZINEZRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedging instruments.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve mainly represent reserve
set aside by certain subsidiaries operating in
foreign jurisdictions where profits of these
subsidiaries are set aside according to local
legislations.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for share-based
payments transactions in Note 36 to the
financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share capital when
the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

Perpetual capital instrument

Perpetual capital instrument represents
a perpetual loan of S$316,000,000
(approximately HK$1,819,390,000) from
two shareholders of the Company, both of
which are affiliates of the HNA Group. The
Group has no contractual obligation to repay
any amount of the perpetual loan under
any circumstances and any repayment is
entirely at the discretion of the Company.
Consequently, the Directors are of the view
that the economic substance of the perpetual
loan is a non-reciprocal capital contribution
from HNA Group and credited directly to
reserve.
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35.

BARRG@#E®
EECERBAE®)

(c)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

HEE
HHREEHEEERRSRER T
TAZRFAAABEZEF
B2 BB

EEEE
AERBEEIERRNEINGDE
REEEETHIER B
ezl ZEMBRRAR
EE AP HER) o

BRERE

AN B 7 R 2R B R 36 DA
DEERZNRRSH 2R
BRE—FTHE - BRER
HRBEER LA RETE
BRECANEBE -EBH
BIREETE  ZemEE
BERA - inEe EEIRE
[EmsE R - BEBEER

B3 -

KAEAXT A
KABATEEREME
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 29 May 2012, the Company terminated the share
options scheme adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme") with effect from 25 May 2012. Under the
2012 Scheme, the Board of the Company may, subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of the 2012 Scheme
and the Listing Rules, grant share options to any eligible
participant to subscribe for shares in the capital of the
Company. The options granted under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid until those options lapsed on their expiry date.

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive), executive, officer, employee, shareholder of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the associated
companies or any of the jointly controlled entities and any
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent, partner or
business associate, who will contribute or has contributed
to the development and growth of the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from 25 May 2012.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to each eligible participant
under the 2012 Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue, as at the date of grant.

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised later than 10 years after it
has been granted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Same as the 2002 Scheme, HK$1 should be payable by
the grantee on acceptance of an offer by the grantee
under the 2012 Scheme. The exercise price per share in
relation to an option shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and shall be no less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date on which the option is offered to an eligible
participant; (b) the official average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of option to
an eligible participant; and (c) the nominal value of shares
of the Company on the date of offer of option to an eligible
participant. During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, no share option was granted under the 2012 Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme, share
options held by any eligible participants/qualifying
grantees will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant/qualifying grantee whose
employment was terminated during the year was extended
and approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme and 2012
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. URPABEBZHARRSZ @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The following tables disclose details and movements in TREBENBZE-Z—NEFR=Z—\F
share options under the 2002 Scheme during the years +ZA=+—HILFE  —ZTZT_F5rE
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018: HTzEREFERES) :
Number of shares under options
BREETZRABA
Adjusted Addition
exercise Lapsed/ after
Exercise price per Granted  Transferred Exercised cancelled  adjustment
Exercise price per  share due to At during during during during due to At
Category of grantees Date of grant period share  rights issue 1.1.2019 the year the year the year the year  rights issue 31.12.2019
Rt
HEZBR R-Z-NE ERiM/  EERET  R-E-AE
RRAZER REEH i ] BRAKE & -A-8 ERRL EREE ERfTR d# FEACPE tZAZt-B
Other participants 16122009  16122009-  HKS0596  HK$0582 8960000 = = - (8960,000) - -
Afppag 15122019 %0596 B%0.582T
14122010  14.12.2010- HK$0.420 HK$0.410 3,072,000 - - - - - 3,072,000
13122020  A¥0420m  EH0410T
12,032,000 = - - (8,960,000 S 3,012,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 3,072,000
RELAER
Weighted average exercise price per share HK$0.410

ERmETIRE #%0.4107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E - — W4+ _H=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LR AERERBZARRZ @)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Number of shares under options

BRERT L RAEA
Adjusted Addition
exercise Lapsed/ after
Exercise price per Granted  Transferred Exercised cancelled  adjustment
Exercise price per  share due to At during during during during due to At
Category of grantees Date of grant  period share  rights issue 1.1.2018 the year the year the year theyear  rights issue 31122018
RERET
RE2BR RZZ-N\E FRKY/  BfRET  RZT-NF
ERAZE5 izl g BROEE i -A-8 FERELL ErER Enfri i ABRIRE TZA=T-H
Directors 22.1.2008 22.1.2008 - HK$0.780 HK$0.762 17,203,200 - - - (17,203,200) - -
g% 2112018 EM0T80m  BH%0.7627T
Employees of the Group 212008 22.1.2008- HK$0.780 HK$0.762 20,480,000 - - - (20,480,000) - -
F5EES 2112018 A¥0T80T  A%0.762T
Other participants 22.1.2008 22.1.2008 - HK$0.780 HK$0.762 46,592,000 - - - (46,592,000) - -
Appag 2112018 EM0T80T %0762
16122009  16.12.2009- HK$0.596 HK$0.582 8,960,000 - - - - - 8,960,000
15122019 #%05%r %0582
14122010 14.12.2010- HK$0.420 HK$0.410 3,072,000 - - - - - 3,072,000
13122000  #¥0420m %0401
58,624,000 - - - (46,592,000) - 12,032,000
96,307,200 - - - (84,275,200) - 12,032,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 12,032,000
RELTTE
Weighted average exercise price per share HK$0.538
BRMETHTEE 70,5387
All share options are vested at the date of grant. FEBERENKLBEHEE -
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37.

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 37. BEREAE
2019 2018
—E-nE  —F)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFrT BT T
Capital expenditure in respect of the ERWEDHE BEREEZ
acquisition of property, plant and BRI A ERELR A M I®E
equipment contracted for but not FTIREME 2 B AR
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 72,820 101,513
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRBEDE BEREEZ
acquisition of property, plant and BEFREERITNZERAL
equipment authorised but not
contracted for 2,015 63,350

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and
arbitration matters in the normal course of business. The
Group vigorously defends against these claims and, in the
opinion of the management, the resolution of these matters
will not have a material effect on the financial position of
the Group.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as raising of new borrowings or redemption
of existing debt using cash flow generated from operating
activities and disposal of assets. As mentioned in Note
2(b), the Group defaulted payment of certain interest and
fees in relation to the New Borrowing on 3 April 2019 and
the Directors are undertaking the Debt Restructure Plan so
as to achieve the Group’s capital management objectives.
Other than this, the Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the year ended 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes loans and borrowings (excluding
collateralised short-term trade facilities) (Note 28) and lease
liabilities (collectively referred as “Total Debt”); net of
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents (“Net
Debts"”). Total capital of the Group comprising issued share
capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
and Total Debt (“Total Capital”).

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities for almost all leases previously accounted for as
operating leases as from 1 January 2019. This caused a
significant increase in the Group's total debt and hence the
Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio rose from 35.2%
t0 53.0% on 1 January 2019 when compared to its position
as at 31 December 2018.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of
the current and previous reporting periods and at the date

of transition to HKFRS 16 was as follows:

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

39. EXEE®)

AEERAFERREBERSHRAR
BREEFBYBREERIE 165 A HNHK
HEFEBERL TN

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—g-nE  —F-E  ZENF
+=RA=+—H —HA—H +=-—A=+—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT BT
(Note) (Note)
(Htat) (Hat)
Loans and borrowings* B RER* 28 6,922,182 9,653,180 9,668,978
Lease liabilities HEAE 31(a) 3,429,999 3,834,406 =
Less: collateralised B BERAEHES
short-term BbE
trade facilities 28 (3,980,553) (4,339,020) (4,339,020)
Total Debt HETS 6,371,628 9,148,566 5,329,958
Less: Pledged bank A BIEARITER
deposits (145,999) (13,119) (13,119)
Less: Cash and cash B RERREE
equivalents” BHE 26 (1,262,861) (1,724,847) (1,724,847)
Net Debts FE 4,962,768 7,410,600 3,691,992
Equity attributable to ZIN/NEIE S DN el
owners of the Company & 4,166,882 4,833,943 4,872,742
Total Debt HIETS 6,371,628 9,148,566 5,329,958
Total Capital BE R 10,538,510 13,982,509 10,202,700
Gearing ratio AR = 47.1% 53.0% 35.2%
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Wit - AEBERALBITRBPEENERS

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

* Loans and borrowings exclude those balance associated *
with disposal groups classified as held-for-sale of

HK$458,421,000 (2018: HK$NIil).

W Cash and cash equivalents exclude those balance W
associated with a disposal group classified as held-for-
sale of HK$17,555,000 (2018: HK$Nil) and include bank
overdrafts of HK$4,927,000 (2018:HK$4,265,000) which

were included in loans and borrowings.

B BHRELNFEI6% YR TN
F— A — A4 R AR R B 5T Al
REEFEESHENE1TRIBREE
HEHEFMZEERAE - REZS

& WESIILBRER - RHiEE2()

EXREERTREADBEARBED
ECEEHFBEANZSERABE
458,421,000L(ZE—N\F : BEZ
JT) ©

B RBESSEBETBEES B AR
EHEZ HEMRRIBBEZ ZEEHBE
17,555,0007C(ZZF— \£ : BEZT L)
BEFEIRITE X B%4,927,000T( =
—)\4F : B%4,265,0007T) GZ & Bt A
BRRER) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

39.

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

Collateralised short-term trade facilities are excluded from
the calculation of net debt to equity ratio due to its short
term highly liquid nature that is fully secured by liquid
assets such as cash and cash equivalents, inventories and
receivables.

Straits Financial LLC, Straits (Singapore) Pte. Ltd and Straits
Financial Services Pte. Ltd, incorporated in the USA, and
Singapore respectively, are subject to minimum capital
requirements pursuant to laws and regulations of the USA
and Singapore. Management has established controls
and policies to ensure that the subsidiaries comply with
the minimum capital requirements. The subsidiaries have
compiled with the minimum capital requirements pursuant
to laws and regulations of the USA and Singapore during
the year.

Other than disclosed above, the Company and its
subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Overview

The Group has a system of controls in place to
create an acceptable balance between the cost
of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the
Group's risk management process to ensure that
an appropriate balance between risk and control is
achieved.

The Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the
internal audit function. The internal audit function
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises
through its trade receivables and contract assets.
Concentration of credit risk relating to these trade
receivables and contract assets is limited due to
the Group’'s many varied customers, which are
internationally dispersed. Management reviews the
ageing of receivables monthly to ensure that the
Group's credit risk exposure is monitored regularly.
Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions, which are regulated. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has a credit policy in place whereby
new customers are subject to credit evaluations
based on available financial information and past
experiences. The Group has established credit
limits for customers and monitors their balances on
an ongoing basis. Certain sales by the commodity
marketing and financial services segments are
generally secured by letter of credit. The Group
generally does not require collateral for sales in
other segments. As at 31 December 2019, trade
receivables of the Group secured by letters of
credit amounted to HK$1,175,440,000 (2018:
HK$2,014,042,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, except for trade
receivables containing provisional features
with carrying amount of HK$2,061,943,000
(2018:HK$2,563,471,000), the Group measures loss
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. To measure
the ECL, trade receivables and contracts have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress and sales made but yet
to be invoiced as the final amount is not due until
pricing and assays are known. The contract assets
shared the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Except for amounts due from customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
that are assessed individually, impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date collectively using
a provision matrix. ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets with past write off history are based
on the historical credit losses experienced in the
last 5 years. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions. ECL for trade receivables
without past write off history are measured as
follows:

o Trade receivables with corporate credit
rating — applying Moody's credit rating or
match to Moody's equivalent credit rating to
the carrying amount and loss given default
("LGD") or

o Trade receivables without corporate credit
rating — applying industry probability of default
to the carrying amount and LGD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. SRERERE®

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ENEZRBERSHEEE)
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, RZE-—NF+-_A=+—H8Ek=
the loss allowance was determined as follows for Z-NF+-_A=+—H8 EKE
trade receivables and contract assets: SRENENEEZBIEREETE
R
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=—A=+—8
Individual assessment Collective assessment Total
BRI A a5t
Expected
Gross Gross Loss Gross
amount ECL amount Rate ECL amount ECL
4% RHEEEE 4y FHERE RECEER 48 RBHEERE
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AETr  BETT BEFn BEFL  BETT BETR
Not past due pinalii 17,305 - 765,636 05% (3852) 782,941 (3,852)
Past due 1-30 days AE1-308 1424 - 313,423 1.25% (3,920) 314,847 (3,920)
Past due 31-90 days A31-908 1423 - 136,347 1.61% (2,189) 131,710 (2,189)
Past due 91-180 days wH91-180H 4,690 - 15,061 13.8% (2,073) 19,751 (2,073)
Past due 181-365 days AH181-365H 1124 - 10,793 37.9% (4,088) 1917 (4,088)
Pastdue more than 1 year ~ BERBEI1E 42,291 (42291) 108,831 37.8% (41,089) 151122 (83,380)
68,257 (42291) 1,350,091 (67,211) 1,418,348 (99,502)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @& kB2 (&)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) FEERR®
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ENEZRERSHEEE)
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Individual assessment Collective assessment Total
ARl FATE @t
Expected
Gross Gross Loss Gross
amount ECL amount Rate ECL amount ECL
BE BHREER % BHEEX BHEEFE BB BHEERE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 % HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BEfr BT BEfn BEFT  BETT BB
Not past due bl 19,438 - 1930293 0.0% - 1949731 =
Past due 1-30 days @H1-30H 4,635 - 179,264 0.1% (155) 183,899 (155)
Past due 31-90 days AH31-90H 9,269 - 98,234 0.4% 420) 107,503 (420)
Past due 91-180 days HH91-180H 5,460 - 153,760 18.4% (28.293) 159,220 (28.293)
Past due 181-365 days #5181-365H 10,920 (6,952) 13,655 11.4% (1,552) 24,575 (8,504
Pastdue more than 1 year  HBHBEIE 43,034 (43,034 43,266 18.7% 8,103) 86,299 (51,137)
92,756 (49986) 2418471 (38523) 2,511,227 (88,509)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @l /E b B2 (@)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) FERESRBERANEEE)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRNEBEEREZFEERENEE
of trade receivables and contract assets during the MEERER ZEBNT
year is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BB F T
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2&8% 88,509 31,782
Amounts written off during the year ~ FAfHE 58 (8,618) (22,993)
Amounts recovered during the year FRUE©EE (2,086) (1,261)
Impairment loss recognised during FASERREERE
the year 25,906 81,612
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAR R (6,952) =
Exchange realignment & 5 A 2,743 (631)
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—Rz&#% 99,502 88,509
Derivatives PTET A
The derivatives are either standardised future METARRBERFMEEMIE

contracts that are traded on future exchanges or
entered into with bank and financial institution
counterparties, which are rated AA- to AA+, based
on Moody's credit ratings.

Debt investments

Impairment on debt investments have been
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis
and all of the Group’s debt investments measured
at amortised cost are considered to have low
credit risk. Management consider “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency. Other
instruments are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.

EHESOIHARRRRARITRE
RMEEXZETF (REBAGEER
RIERT RAA-EAA+)RTIL ©

EERE

B RERETIZ1218 A A EE
EEHE - MA KBRS HK A
ENMBBEFRREGWESEREE
R - EEERSLMEFMNNME
EERRIREL —RETEFRH
BORBEEFR - HMTARE
HREBEBIEAZETARENALR
REHETENR S REAIER
RRREEERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Debt investments (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of the Group's debt investments amounted to
HK$989,610,000 (2018: HK$1,647,119,000) and
the ECL on debt investments were considered
immaterial and thus the Group did not recognise any
loss allowance in respect thereof.

Assets held or segregated in separate accounts,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

These financial assets are mainly held with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which are rated
AA- to AA+, based on Moody's credit ratings. The
Group uses a similar approach for assessment of
ECL for these financial assets to those used for debt
investments. Impairment on these financial assets
have been measured on the 12-month expected
loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Group considers that these financial
assets have low credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
these financial assets amounted to HK$6,035,351,000
(2018: HK$5,259,272,000) and the ECL on these
financial assets were considered immaterial and thus
the Group did not recognise any loss allowance in
respect thereof.
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EEEREE®
(b) HEREE
ERRE ()

R-ZE—-hAhE+-_A=+—8 -
AEBEBERENKAEBEABE
989,610,000 (=& — )\ 4F : KK
1,647,119,0007T) © MEKEER
EHEEEERRATIEERX
AL B R Z S BB REER
Rl S8 -

REVIRFHEFERT R EE -
EREFHRITEAUARRERBEE
FEEE
HETMEETBRRTREHHE
BXZUF (REBBAGEETNE
AFRAA-ZAAL TR - AEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. @iEMERE @)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE)
Other financial assets measured at amortised BEBER AT ENAMEHEE
cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost REER AT ENHEMEMEEE
mainly comprised of amounts due from fellow ERRERKARMNB AR REES
subsidiaries and related parties, loans to associates FOA - AL RE MR ERE
and non-controlling interests and deposit and other RRFR L EAD Y KIE - R#
receivables. These financial assets at amortised HAATENZESHEE —RE
costs are generally considered to have low credit RAEFERBRESE ErEBEE
risk. In determining the ECL, management has EER  BEEECERERZIHTFH
taken into account the credit ratings, historical FEEFH BLEHLES KB
default experience and the financial position of Ao WRBEEHEARENEZRE
the counterparties, adjusted for factors, where TEALEFEITEN —REEARR
applicable, that are specific to the debtors and ETAZEWMER)  MEFESE
general economic conditions of the industry in which NEBFEREERAZENETE
the debtors operate, in estimating the probability of TREEMNELORE  UEKEES
default of each of these financial assets occurring ST R E LB -
within their respective loss assessment time horizon,
as well as the loss upon default in each case.
The following table shows these financial assets TRITHEEHEEZI12MEA
that were subject to a 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL TEHA{= B 18 o B (8 5 A HA A 78 AP
allowance and, in latter case, whether they were EEEBERENTE TR &S
credit impaired. AT EEEBREERE -
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL - not ECL-
credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
12EAEE ZBEBXEN BEFREHN
FEFR FUGEFE EHGEFE
-ECERE -EFERE -=BRHE st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
31 December 2019 ZB2-AFtZA=t+-8
Gross amount ek 614,285 - 55,773 670,058
ECL EHEEEE - - (52,825) (52,825)
Carrying amount, netof ECL  BREfE - MR AEHEEEE 614,285 - 2,948 617,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @& kB2 (&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE)
Other financial assets measured at amortised BEBEK AT ENE M HEE
cost (continued) (&)
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL - not ECL-
credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total

12EAEY EEFRHEN BEEAHN

FEFE BEHEEFER RECEER
-EBEERE - EEERE - EERE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT EETT BETT

31 December 2018 —E2-N\E¥+ZA=+-H
Gross amount k] 1,093,240 = 76,971 1,170,211
ECL HHEEER - - (76,971) (76,971)
Carrying amount, netof ECL  BREE - MGEHEEEE 1,093,240 = = 1,093,240
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FANREZECREENEEREE
of these financial assets during the year is as BREEIT -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&& 76,971 72,471
Amounts written off during the year — F A& 58 (45,020) (616)
Amounts recovered during the year FAKE SR - (1,446)
Impairment losses recognised during F A2 ERIBIEE B
the year 21,494 6,686
Exchange realignment M o R (620) (124)
Balance at 31 December Rt+-_A=+—HBz2&% 52,825 76,971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As mentioned
in Note 2(b), the Group is undertaking various
refinancing measures to meet its short term liquidity
requirements. The Group will continue to undertake
various measures in order to further improve its
liquidity position in the longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants.

40. £ RAE

(c)

B ()

REE SRR
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁgﬁ
ﬂ&i’&#””ﬁ]’lw{{ BeHE R
ReFBEIEBKTE - M@ﬁ$¢.
EBREES I/}E’Zfﬁ_ﬁiﬁiuwi/&
B 2 o KT EE2(b) N

%lELﬁyﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm*Mﬁ
REHEHRBHESHTKR - NEEHK
BRI Z IR M A E — SRR
REIRBE IR -

$EIWZMﬂ @ BYAAER

= =1
HegeBhe® @%i%gﬁ
Mﬁﬁ%%ﬁ% M 18 KR

= Hiﬂ}

BETIER W%K?%' AR
NEICEFTSHE - AEEZHBER
RERERAERBESHTRREE
STEREEZ BN

m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. EEiEAREE @)
FREE S B (5

T & 5 A&ERRE BE > IEHT
ESRABRITASRABIRT
AHBEER - ZEXBRBEAL
RUBEERE(BIENSOFE
HE RSN R MR AT -
AIRIBME HIR Y WITH KR E
RAEBATYNZ&E A5G
8o DM ABIENE 2 HEMT
BRA B BEHEBRESD -

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c)

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay. Liabilities associated
with a disposal group classified as held-for-sale are

excluded.
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANKERRETE
Within Total
1 year or 1-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
on demand years years  cash flows amount
-ERg KB
BEX -EhE AENE BEREBAE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2019 ZE-nE
Lease liabilities HEERE 497,055 1,400,182 2,687,660 4,584,897 3,429,999
Trade and other payables ENESREREMENE 6,984,443 20,058 - 7,004501 7,004,501
Perpetual notes KAZE 358,492 - - 358,492 358,492
Other loans and borrowings EEHRiET 5,555,323 1,050,292 124187 6729802 6,563,690
Other derivative financial instruments ~ EHATESBTA 540,667 46,167 - 586,834 586,834
13935980 2516699 2811847 19264526  17,943516
2018 ZE-)\E
Trade and other payables B Z0RE REMERTIE 8,870,232 6,120 - 8876352 8876352
Perpetual notes KARE 360,309 = = 360,309 360,309
Other loans and borrowings A ET kAT 8,130,376 1,737,306 70714 993839% 9,308,669
Other derivative financial instruments ~ Ef$i445TA 693,003 86,468 = 779,491 779,491
18,083,920 1,829,914 70714 19954548 19,324,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in equity prices,
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, will affect the Group’s income, or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

(i) Equity price risk
The Group hold listed and unlisted equity
securities which are measured at FVPL
totalling approximately HK$172,731,000
(2018: equity securities measured at FVPL
totalling HK$154,774,000) (see Note 21). A
10% increase or decrease in the underlying
equity prices at the reporting date with all
other variables held constant would have
decreased or increased the Group's loss
before taxation from continuing operations
by approximately HK$17,273,000 (2018:
HK$15,477,000).

40. SRERERE®

(d)

™ 35 & B

MR EREER - BmERE -
MERINEEREHEFEANEH
BREREFESRTAEEZRE
R o MGEAKREEZBERERY
ZEH|FrE R TS ERERER 2
BHER - AFEGRERDR -

(i) RERE
AEEFELEMEIELT
REAZFSH  EAREEER
ABRTEAENBE
172,731,000 (ZZE— N\
FRAAEBEFARR
ATERNBRAFESRA LB
154,774,0007C) (R B &
21) - FIBEEMESRIFR
- HEREERNSRSH
HA 38 A0 808 4 10 % #5m
LI MAEBEREFEL
BEBZBRBMAIBEOE
#17,273,000L(ZZF— N\
F : #B¥15,477,0007T) °

CWT International Limited / 2019 Annual Report

273




274

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Commodity price risk

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments such as commodity futures,
commodity option contract and commodity
swaps to hedge certain exposures. The
markets used are the London Metal Exchange
(“LME") for base metals, such as copper,
lead and zinc, the London Bullion Market
Association (“LBMA") for gold and silver,
and the Intercontinental Exchange (“NYSE:
ICE”) and the New York Mercantile Exchange
("NYMEX").

The following table presents the quantities by
commodity, to which the Group is exposed
to commodity price risk. Base metals, such
as copper, lead and zinc are shown as, metric
tons (mt), precious metals such as gold and

40. SRERERE®

(d)

™ 5 & B (&)
(i) i EEERE

AEBFNEBTESM TR
(M RHE  BREEs
AR g iR HR) E oA TR
b2 o XREMHEABHEBR
SET([LME]) (A& E -
i k) BBEEM
Bie(LBMAD (4 kA
R) - MBERSFT(INYSE:
ICE) RBHEBRRS A
(TNYMEX])

TREINEARDBLZH
B ERAKEHEERDME
RER o AR E (N -
By N ) R AR (RWE) 2751
mMELB(WMESMAR) K

silver are shown as ounces (0z) and gasoil is #AI(HEEDES - RH AR
shown as barrels (BBL). (275 »
Nickel/

Copper Lead Zinc Gold  Silver Aluminium Naphtha  TinOre  Gasoil Palm Qil
# # # B B R/8 RER SRR "R GER
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt mt mt BBL mt
M LK L B7 B4 L M LK # AW

2019 Z3-nE
Gross exposure aEk 103,198 6,040 (627) 109,761 2,034,590 196 - (27) 4398 8061
Hedges E0RE (103,375)  (5,975) 625 (108,239) (2,023,826) (198) - 25 (4398)  (8,061)
Net exposure FER (1m) 65 2 1522 10764 2) - 2) - -

Nickel/

Copper Lead Zinc Gold Siver Aluminium ~ Naphtha ~ TinOre  Gasoll
£ i £ & B B/8 EKh HRR MM
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt mt mt BBL
g g M A B M M 4 #

2018 “E-)N\E
Gross exposure &Rk 67361 6114 4286 116463 2465656 (1,042  (1439) 165 5705
Hedges EHRE (67325)  (62%5)  (4075) (113436) (2434561) 1,042 492 (1100 (6,000)
Net exposure FER 36 (121) 21 307 31,09 = (946) 55 (295

CWT International Limited / 20194 4 #k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Commodity price risk (continued)

Exposure to commodity prices is mostly
covered by derivatives and therefore,
changes in market prices are not expected
to significantly impact the Group's financial
performance. Changes in weight and content
of the metals within the concentrates can
impact the Group’s financial performance.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from loans and borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group may also enters into
interest rate swap to hedge its interest rate
risk if necessary.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s loans
and borrowings is disclosed in Note 28.

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased
or decreased the Group's loss before taxation
from continuing operations by approximately
HK$50,391,000 (2018: HK$66,279,000). This
sensitivity analysis excludes the impact from
cash and bank balances as the management
considers the impact to be insignificant
having regard to the stable trend in interest
rates and thus no material fluctuation is
anticipated in the near future.

40.

EHEMREE @

(d) TEERE)

(ii)

(iii)

A dn 1B 15 B g ()

EmERRERZHHEITET
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BRI U AEE 27
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BEEREEZ#CAIY
AEBZHBRREKT
@,

FIEm B
AEBzNERBREEESL
BERRER - RFERE
BRTZERERZED 5
HERRERENRER R
AREENEER - HEF
B REEJRAIR] L H R =
B - AR E A R o

AEEBZERRMERZFIE
AR A BT FE28H 55 o

RZE—NFT+A=+—
B - {fE R R — RIS s
DI100ME &R - MAEMB E
A SEEZEFTE 2ER
T REBIRERFELESE
75 2 B 56 i) 185 18 15 155 00 3Rk
L #) B #50,391,0007T (=
Z— )\ : #%66,279,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's loss
before taxation from continuing operations
that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's loss
before taxation from continuing operations
is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2018.

Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risks arising from
various currency exposures. \Where possible,
the Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposure in operations by matching
its exposure to foreign currency receivables
to its exposure to foreign currency payables.
The Group may also explore using derivatives
to hedge its foreign exchange risk.

The Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposures in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by repatriating
their earnings, where practicable. The
Group also requires the foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures to maintain their
borrowings in the relevant foreign currencies
which match their respective functional
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

40. SRERERE®
(d) TiEEEE)

(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv) E¥mp(E)
In respect of the other monetary assets and BAENREE BB 2 B
liabilities held in currencies other than the BEEEERBEMS @ °5%
functional currencies, the Group reviews B 7E B aREE - IR FE
the balances periodically to ensure the net PRARFFIE A B2 52 2 K ©
exposure is kept at an acceptable level.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, assets RZZBE-—NFRERZFT-NF
and liabilities related to a disposal group +ZA=+—RH ®H58EA
classified as held-for-sale are not exposed BERE 2 HEHEN @
to significant currency risks. The Group's BEFRBEMERRERE
significant exposures to foreign currencies BRER - AEBEREFEL
from its continuing operations are as follows: BEWR 2 EEZINER R
T
US  Singapore
Dollar Dollar Euro Renminbi GBP
EY Fmg B ARE it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2019 =l
Trade and other receivables ~ EME SREREM
R 562,555 31,807 51,361 623,753 61,331
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhAeSEEE 260,555 15,786 38,124 14,708 1
Trade and other payables ERESREREME
ft5R (736,569) (490,293) (60,185) (457,673) (102)
Loans and borrowings ERRER (73,932) (579,052) - - -
Current tax payables JEfENETE - (8,361) - - -
Gross exposure arising BRAEERERREE
from recognised assetsand ~ ZEREH
liabilities 12,609 (1,030,113) 29,300 180,788 61,230
Forward exchange contracts ~ BASNEAH) 29 - - - -
Net exposure ZER 12,638 (1,030,113) 29,300 180,788 61,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @& kB2 (&)

(d) Market risk (continued) (d) ™WEREREGE)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv) E¥mp(4E)

us Singapore

Dollar Dollar Euro Renminbi
e T BT ARE

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT  BEMTT  BEFT  RNTET

2018 —E-N\E
Trade and other receivables B E 5 ERIE R H A fE

WE 313,866 3,591,107 47,218 717,462
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EER 184,980 14,809 27,471 48,809
Trade and other payables BB SRERELME

(N (383,883) (4,381,408 (39,437) (539,731)
Loans and borrowings BERRER (443,975) (8,529) - (481,270)
Gross exposure arising ERALERERME

from recognised assets and £ ZEBREE
liabilities (329,012) (784,021) 35,252 (254,730)

Forward exchange contracts EHINES K (1,172) - (4,908) (135,114)
Net exposure FER (330,184) (784,021) 30,344 (389,844)
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the RZZE-NFRZZT—N\F
Singapore Dollar exposures arising from +=—A=+—8 - AEKE
trade and other receivables and loans and 5 BRIE K H Ath FE YR IE LA |
borrowings were mainly attributable from the B % 8 5K 2= A AT N3
intra-Group current accounts receivables and au e o = N/ B i
loans payables, which were denominated I TTEHE R & E A A R
in Singapore Dollar, of the Company with FREPFERWERR REMNE
functional currency of Hong Kong Dollar. o MARBNEEEE AE

R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
A 10% strengthening of the functional
currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries
against the following currencies at the
reporting date would positively/(negatively)
impact the Group’s operating result before
taxation by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

40. SRERERE®
(d) TiEEEE)

(iv)

B mg (&)

BB T

RBEBH - ARBHERQ
AlZEEEB LA TER
B10% 8 T XPIRBREL
6% [ B T A A 2028 ) 2 A
FE/(BE)FE - ZOM
SR EMEECLER
B2 e 355 T8 o

2019 2018
—E—hE T \F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

US Dollar ETT 1,264 33,018
Singapore Dollar s oo (103,011) 78,402
Euro BX 7T 2,930 (3,034)
Renminbi AR 18,079 38,984
GBP X 6,123 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @& kB2 (&)

(e)  Fair values (e} 2AAREHE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) RABEER
The table below analyses fair value TEANMEMEERESRE
measurements for financial assets and BzRAREBEE  RBREM
financial liabilities, by the levels in the fair EREZHBABES D 2R
value hierarchy based on the inputs to A EBEERKFERT) -

valuation techniques.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-1R Lt Y @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BYFrT EBETT BT BMTFR

Financial assets and liabilities BRAREBEIRZEHEE

carried at fair value R&afE
2019 —E-RE
Commodities futures B E 223,747 26,879 - 250,626
Commodities forward contracts EREHAL 3,335 2,444 - 5,779
Commodities swaps 7 An 2 A 9,213 - - 9,213
Currency forward contracts EREHAN - 29 - 29
Fair value gain on commodity AmeE K An BERE

contracts - 5,738 - 5,738
Equity warrants A REE - 86 - 86
Derivative financial assets THEEmEE 236,295 35,176 - 2n4an
Trade receivables containing BEEREEFBNEKE

provisional pricing features S55RE - 2,061,943 - 2,061,943
Other financial assets HihemEsE 2,008 170,723 - 172,731

238,303 2,267,842 - 2,506,145

Interest rate swaps M= 15 - (556) - (556)
Commodities futures BmiE (521,599)  (51,042) - (572,641)
Commodities forward contracts AREHAY (393) - - (393)
Commodities swaps Hmiz 8 (9,832) - - (9,832)
Currency forward contracts ERRBAEN - (2,322) - (2,322)
Fair value loss on commodity AmEKZ AR BERE

contracts - (1,090) - (1,090)
Derivative financial liabilities TEemBE (531,824)  (55,010) - (586,834)
Trade payables containing BEERTEEREMNEN

provisional pricing features E5KE - (1,049,516) - (1,049,516)

(531,824) (1,104,526) - (1,636,350)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  40. <& /@l /@ ke S (@)
(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) 2DAAEEG®
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AAREBEER(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—8 £ E=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFr  BEFT EEFT BETT
Financial assets and liabilities BAREEIIEZERMEE
carried at fair value ke
2018 —E-N\F
Commaodities futures ERiE 1,107,712 9,943 - 1,117,655
Commodities forward contracts ARERHEH = 3,937 = 3,937
Commodities swaps 78 mmis 146,258 = - 146,258
Currency forward contracts ERRBEN = 759 = 759
Fair value gain on commodity Hma Nz AnBERR
contracts - 39,781 - 39,781
Equity warrants AR = 638 = 638
Derivative financial assets TEEmEE 1,253,970 55,058 - 1,309,028
Trade receivables containing BEEREERENEKE
provisional pricing features SRR - 2,563,471 - 2,563,471
Other financial assets HiteRAEE 1,724 153,050 - 154,774
1,255,694 2,771,579 - 4,027,273
Interest rate swaps MEE - (339) - (339)
Commodities futures EmiE (578,038) (77,028) - (655,066)
Commodities options i m HE - (529) - (529)
Commodities swaps Hmiz 8 (68,310) - = (68,310)
Currency forward contracts ERRBAEH - (4,448) - (4,448)
Fair value loss on commodity BRANZAABEER
contracts - (50,799) - (50,799)
Derivative financial liabilities fTEEmas (646,348)  (133,143) - (779,491)
Trade payables containing BEERTERBNENE
provisional pricing features SR - (894,559) - (894,559)
(646,348) (1,027,702) - (1,674,050)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @& kB2 (&)

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) 2AAREBEGE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREBEERE)
The carrying amount of the Group's financial RZZBE-—NFRERZF-NF
assets and liabilities not carried at fair value +=—A=+—8" $’§II
are not materially different from their fair EBRAABEIEZECHE
values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. ERGEZEAERERAR
BETESEAEZER -
The following table shows the carrying TRINTEREECHMEEZ
amounts and fair values of significant non- Eﬁﬁfﬁ&’&ff BE  BEH
financial assets, including their levels in the RARBEERP 2KFE -

fair value hierarchy.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R et E Y @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
BT EBETT BRI BETFR

Non-financial assets measured  RAREBEHEZEER

at fair value BE
2019 —E-hE
Warrantable LME commodities BERZIMEAS 21,303 - - 21,303
21,303 - - 21,303
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—8 E=H F=H et

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
BT  BETT  EETT  BETFIL

Non-financial assets measured ~ RAREBEFEZEER

at fair value &
2018 —E-N\§
Investment properties BEME = - 2,039,237 2,039,237
Warrantable LME commodities BERZLMER R 67,322 = = 67,322

67,322 - 2,039,237 2,106,559
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. SRIEAREE@

DREEGE)

ARBENE
THRIRHELRIASE
—BRESRAAR BEBE
B EEEARERYE
KA ERE AR -

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e)
(ii) Measurement of fair value (i)
The following tables show the valuation
techniques used in measuring Level 2 and
Level 3 fair values of financial instruments,
as well as the significant unobservable inputs
used.

BAREEFEZEMTA

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type

i

Valuation technique

fhERE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBEBANE

Inter-relationship between

key unobservable inputs and
fair value measurement
IEFTERBARBRALERE
HEZEZEDEE

Commodities futures

AmiR

Commodities forward contracts
BRESAH

Interest rate swaps

kS

Market comparison technigue. Not applicable
The fair values are based onmonth ~~ MEf
end spot and forward prices
received from broker.
AT
MEETNEEARE ARR
ERHEERARE.

Market comparison technique: Not applicable
The fair values are based on TR
exchange or broker quotes.
Similar contracts are traded in an
active market and the quotes
reflect the actual transactions in
similar instruments.
LR -
MEETHRANIELNRER
EE - BYANNERTARS
BRERBENTAZER

Market comparison technigue: Not applicable
The fair values are based on market M
valug (MTM value] provided by
the bank.
TR -
M EETMBTRE M
EEIEREREE -

Not applicable
Byl

Not applicable
MR

Not applicable
iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & &EhE kB (@)

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) DAAEBEG®G
(i)  Measurement of fair value (continued) (i) AAEHEEGE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value AL EEGEZZHTA
(continued) (&
Inter-relationship between
key unobservable inputs and
Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs fair value measurement
IZTUREGARBELAEE
5 fhER % EXTABRBALE HEZEZEDEE
Currency forward contracts Market comparison technigue. Not applicable Not applicable
EREHAN The fair values are based on broker 7@ oyl

quotes. Similar contracts are trading
in an active market and the quotes
reflect the actual transactions in
similar instruments.

TEHEn T -

MMEBENERAREREE -
BUAONEETRRS - BaE
REBNIEZERR S8

Commodities options Market comparison technigue: Not applicable Not applicable
e The fair value are based on broker M@ T
quotes.
TRLERE:

MEENMELABREREE -

Trade receivables and payables Mearket comparison technigue: Not applicable Not applicable
containing provisional pricing The fair values are based onmonth & MR
features end spot and forward prices, until

BREREREHZENRENES prices are fixed for metals for
R weights and content of metals

hasis third party inspections/
certificates (if applicable).
TEHLERE:
RABENIAATERASERA
2% EESEESNIBNES
ERE=HRE/EE(WER)
THER -
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e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @l /E b B2 (@)

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) 2AAEBEGE
(ii)  Measurement of fair value (continued) (i) AAREEFEGE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value BArBEGTZECcHTA
(continued) (#)
Inter-relationship between
key unobservable inputs and
Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs fair value measurement
IEFTERBARBRANERE
oL ERE EXFURZEAE HEZHZEBRE
Embedded derivative component of Binomial method Not applicable The estimated fair value would
convertible bonds a3 TER increase/(decrease if the volatiity
ARRES < BAA TSR was higher/(lower.
fHRERR/ (BRE) - 327 EER
i/ (52 -
Non-current receivables Discounted cash flows. Risk-adjusted discount rate The estimated fair value would
ERBEWA ERREnE ElRERaRE increase/[decreasel if the risk -
adjusted discount rate was lower/
(higher).

HERBEERZRE,/ @) i
RABEREM/ (RY) -

MTN Market comparison technique. Not applicable Not applicable
HEED The fair value are based on bank INEE TER
quotes. The valuations are
calculated on the basis of
estimated mid-market levels.
TEHARE:
MEETURTRERRE  [4E
BEGRAMEKTHE -

Other fixed-rate loans and borrowings  Discounted cash flows. Discount rate The estimated fair value would
S ERRER ERRERE sk increaseldecrease) if the discount
rate was lower/(higher).
HRERE,/ (BR) EHAER
B/ () -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

40. SRERERE®
(e) AAREEEE

(i)  Measurement of fair value (continued) (i) AAREEFEGE)

Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

There were no transfers from Level 1 to Level
2 nor the opposite direction in the reporting
and comparative period.

Level 3 fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation for
Level 3 fair value:

FERBEE R B
WEE—MRALE _R2H
%’ AR SRS HE L & IR
EHRRTTRER -

E=MAK EE
TERITE=BALEEY
B85

Derivative component of
convertible bonds

ARRES 2 ITEBH
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
At 1 January n—H—H - 41,988
Gain on fair value changes DREBEEFZ K
(Note 30) (H1z£30) - (41,988)
31 December +=—A=+—~” - =

286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 40. & @l /E b B2 (@)

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) AAREE®
(iii)  Offsetting financial assets and liabilities (iii) HMETHEERERE

Gross amounts Net amounts of

of recognised financial

financial assets/

assets/ liabilities

liabilities presented

offset in the in the

Gross amounts  consolidated  consolidated

of recognised statement statement

financial assets/ of financial of financial
liabilities position position  Net amount

iy R&E

BHMRE  HHEHRRX

Bl H#HzERI EXip

SREE/  ¢REE/  ¢REE/
BEAE BEEE BERE B

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BEFT BYFT BRFL BEFT

2019 ZE-NE
Type of financial assets SREERY
Derivatives fTETA 1,600,038 (1,328,567) 271,41 211471
Type of financial liabilities tREeEER
Derivatives fTETA 1,915,401 (1,328,567) 586,834 586,834
2018 “E-N\%
Type of financial assets SREERR
Derivatives fTETR 3,766,165 (2,457,137) 1,309,028 1,309,028
Type of financial liabilities tHEERR
Derivatives fTETR 3,236,628 (2,457,137) 779,491 779,491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BAERIRS
Apart from the disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRiza I BmR MmO P REEIN - K
financial statements, the Group has the following related SECHEEARSAT

party transactions:

(a) Income (a) WA
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T JBEEEF T
Sales of goods and/or services to MESHAEEDRCEBHEE
entities in which directors have an &k, SR
interest 34,486 13,117
Sales of goods and/or services to Mg R RIHEE MR, X
associates AR 7% 72,627 65,139
Sales of goods and/or services to joint M& LS REMES RN
ventures i3 31,169 32,334
Interest income from associates REHE AR 2 FBWA 190 871
Interest income from joint ventures REGELFEZFBRA 1,000 871
Dividend received from joint ventures 2RE&&EZRE 10,765 18,131
Dividend received from associates REBERNTZRE 598 209
(b) Expense (b) BX
Purchase of goods and/or services MESREERCEREE
from entities in which directors have &5 &, sk R#
an interest 21,295 16,394
Purchase of goods and/or services MBS ARBEER LK
from associates AR 7% 32,348 28,070
Purchase of goods and/or services AAETEREER N
from joint ventures PR 75 24,749 23,627
(¢)  Guarantees and other securities (c) ERERHAMIKA
Certain security over the Extended Borrowing is KREAE R E TER T EEME
provided by HNA Group (International) Company B (B BRARI(RAR 2 BER
Limited (an immediate shareholder of the Company W) (R HfsE28(e)) 32t -

(see Note 28(e)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. BEAIRZ®

(continued)
(d) Remuneration of key management (d) FEEBAEZME
personnel
The remuneration of key management members, FEEBABEBIAEEES)FR
who are the Directors of the Group during the vyear, ZHEmT -
was as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JBEMETF T
Short term benefits ySEERER ] 11,106 13,182
Post-employment benefits B E A 280 326
11,386 13,508
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see T & BEER B TR A ABR (RK5E
Note 13). 13) °
The remuneration of executive directors is ATESHEeHFHEZESZREA
determined by the remuneration committee having KA KT BEET -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
(e) Details of balances with related parties of the (e) HEAEEBRESEBEIERFED

Group are set out in Notes 23, 24 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

R NER & M B A M523 ~ 24 1%
27 ¢

CWT International Limited / 2019 Annual Report

289




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. XATRFTEMBEARZF1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

ARAEENBAAR-F-NFR=F
—\E+Z A=+ -BZEEMT :

The Group's effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
REERALAREE
HMERL/ BRTRARRE/ BRIRA/
WEARER HMns /B IEEERY dftEx  ERMEAEEZERER  FELEEE
2019 2018
“E-AE T\
% %
CWT SG* Singapore Singapore 600,304,650 shares 100 100 Provision of warehousing
s s of $$0.29 each and logistics
600,304,6508% services, transportation
BREB0.29 services, import
byl <) and export services,
cargo consolidation
and freight forwarding
services, container
depot operations,
commodity marketing,
inventory management
services, engineering
services,
design-and-build of
logistics facilities and
financial services
RERFERMITRT -
BHRE - EHA
R - SRR
EERERE &%
BEHRER  Bm
85 BREERY -
TR - Minakie
LHARBERSR
TR
CWT Logistics Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 5,002,502 shares 100 100 Provision of warehousing
M oI of S$1 each and value added
5,002,502 logistics services
BREE REUEEEREEDR
G yd 3 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

42, KPR EMBRARZFHE®

The Group’s effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAAREE
ML,/ BRORBRRE/ BRIREK/
WEARER AMeE/Bx FEEEHY dfEx  ERMEFAEEzERER TELEXE
2019 2018
“E-0NE 2%
% %
Force 21 Equipment Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 2,000,000 shares 70 70 General importers and
G oI of S$1 each exporters, wholesale
2,000,000 trading, engineering and
SREE" manufacturing of safety
b a5 and protective products,
skills training services
and motivational course
providers
—RENFERE AR - #E%
8% w2 RhEEm
TRREE  Kassdl
% RABREHER
Indeco Engineers (Pte) Ltd* Singapore Singapore 600,146 shares 100 100  Engineering maintenance
AR g of $$3.43 each services, design &
600,146/ building services for
BRAE343 industrial properties,
IR 2 B fn facilities management
and special trade
services
TRRERE  T50%
AT MBERE - i
EERERE HRB
CWT Integrated Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 20,000,000 shares 100 100  Provision of container
G oI of S$1 each storage, repairs, servicing
20,000,000 and trucking, general
BiREE goods warehousing and
(Eipll: a3 distribution services and
undertaking of projects
logistics
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e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. ARAETEMBRARZFHE®

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The Group’s effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERARREE
ML,/ BRIRBRRE/ BRIREK/
HWEARER s/ Bx FEEEHY dfEx  ERMEAEEzERER  TELEXE
2019 2018
“E-0NE 2%
% %
CWT Globelink Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 800,000 shares 100 100  Provision of cargo
AR oI of S$1 each consolidation and sea
800,000 freight forwarding
BRER services
TR 2 RED RESHHERIMERE
T
Globelink-Trans (Tianjin) The PRC The PRC N/A 100 100 Provision of cargo
International Forwarding H i TER consolidation and sea
Co., Ltd* freight forwarding services
REARRREREERR REUSWHERIMERE
BRAR T
MRI Group Pte Ltd™ Singapore Singapore 131,588,000 shares 100 100 Physical trading and supply
AR G 1P of US$1 each chain management of
131,588,0001% non-ferrous hase metal
FREE1ZET and energy products
LR BEESBRERERL
ENZSRMRERER
MRI Trading AG* Switzerland Switzerland 115,933 shares 100 100 Physical trading and
It Int of CHF10 each supply chain
115,933 management of
FHAEE10 non-ferrous base metal
AR 2 B fn concentrates
FERCEREZEY
RARMEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. ARAETEMBRARZFHE®

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The Group’s effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAAREE
HMRL/ BRORBRRE/ BRIRA/
WEARER At /B IEEERY dfEx  ERMEFAEEzERER TELEXE
2019 2018
“E-0NE 2%
% %
Straits (Singapore) Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 13,000,000 shares 97.4 974 Toact as broker for trading
G oI of US$1 each of OTC derivatives,
13,000,000/ clearing of exchange-
ST EIENE listed OTC products,
LR interdealer broking and
trade services
BESIMIEERR S -
RS S EREE
BERZSERLEER
R5 K%
Straits Financial Group Pte Ltd*  Singapore Singapore 58,652,290 shares 97.4 974 Investment holding
AR il of US$0.96 each RAER
58,652,290
BREHEIET
bl 3
Straits Financial Services Pte Ltd*  Singapore Singapore 30,000,000 shares 974 974 Toact as brokers
M oI of US$1 each for trading in futures
30,000,0008% contracts and centrally-
SHRAEIET cleared OTC
a3 commodity derivatives
EEREENRHM
SHEENZNRS
BmiTEmmEL
Straits Financial LLC USA USA 30,000,000 shares 95.8 95.8  Provision of financial
e e of US$1 each brokerage services
30,000,000 RESBELRE
BREBIET
21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

42. ARTETEMB AR ZFHBE @

(continued)

The Group's effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAAREE
ML,/ BRIRBRRE/ BRAREK/
WEARER AMeE/Bx FEEENHY dfEx  EREFAEEzERER TELEXE
2019 2018
“E-0NE 2%
% %

CWT Commodities Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 2,000,000 shares 100 100 Investment holding
(now known as CWT G Eimib of S$1 each RERR
Commodity Logistics Pte. Ltd) 2,000,0008%

(278 ACWT Commodity BRER
Logistics Pte. Ltd.) (Eipll a3
CWT Europe B.V. Group* The Netherlands  The Netherlands 90,000 shares 100 100 Investment holding
et G of EURT each RERR
90,000/
BREEET
b))

Dongguan Hillview Golf Company  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 65 65  Operation of sport and
Limited*® H # USD34,060,000 leisure related facilities
RERRRAERAA HREX business

34,060,000% 7T BERE R BRERE
£

HNA International Property B.V.I UK 1 ordinary share of - 100 Property Investment
Investment Company Three ~ £BRZAEE  #EH US$1 MERE
Limited® \RERAEIZT

ZERR

HNA Newcastle Golf LLC® USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment

xH *E A NERE

HNA Trophy Lake Golf, LLC® USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment

%H %8 TiER NERE

HNA Redmond Ridge , LLC® USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment

xH *E A NERE

HNA Washington National Golf, ~ USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment
LLce *H %8 @R NERE

HNA Harbour Pointe, LLC® USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment

*H *H A NERE
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. ARREEMBARIZFE®
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
The Group’s effective
interest over nominal
Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAAREE
ML,/ BRORBRRE/ BRIREK/
WEARER AMeE/Bx FEEEHY dfEx  ERMEFAEEzERER TELEXE
2019 2018
“E-0NE 2%
% %
HNA Indian Summer Golf, LLC®  USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment
xH *H A NERE
HNA Hawks Prairie Golf, LLC® USA USA N/A - 100  Property Investment
%H %H TER WERE
HNA Plateau Golf, LLC® USA USA N/A - 100 Property Investment
xH *H A NERE
HNA Belt and Road Investments  Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited® Bk B HK$1 REER
- BRERRATE \REEEKT
TRk
HNA International Property Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited® ) 7 HK$1 REER
BRERNEBRA A 1REEEE T
LRk
HNA International Recreational ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100 100 Investment holding
Property Company Limited* &7 B HK$1 RERR
AR KEREFRA R \REEESIT
LRk
& Shares directly held by the Company & AARREEREA
# Audited by other member firms of KPMG International & KESRBEHEMK B BHAEZ
e The entities are classified under discontinued operations ® ZEBRESBERERIEEBINFEA
and disposed of during the year. WHE -
o The English name of the entity is for reference only. The * REBHANEZEERS2E  -ZEBY

official name of the entity is in Chinese.

during the year.

The entities are classified under discontinued operations

Save as disclosed in Note 28, none of the other subsidiaries
had issued any debt securities for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

CWT International Limited / 2019 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fale)

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

43. ARARHBARREK KRB

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 3,023 3,390
Investments in subsidiaries KRB REZI%E 158,100 158,100
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E S 4,842,247 9,987,137
Club debentures SES 700 700
Right-of-use assets for operating lease KEMEZEREEE 14,491 -
5,018,561 10,149,327
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIA ~ e KA M EWGIA
receivables 32,570 5,306
Bank balances and cash RITEF MRS 6,742 29,335
39,312 34,641
Current liabilities piE =R
Other payables, deposits received H R FIE - BEWRS RER
and accruals 5B 80,758 36,849
Lease liabilities HEaRE 8,794 =
Loan from subsidiaries KEMBARZER - 287,355
Amount due to related company FERT A& N R 5RIE 421 356
Borrowings (EE 768,334 1,441,862
858,307 1,766,422
Net current liabilities REEEFE (818,995) (1,731,781)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. ADE]MBARR R KRB @
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
2019 2018
—E-nE -T2 NF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BB F T
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABERS 4,199,566 8,417,546
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEaE 6,005 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 42 -
Loan from subsidiaries REKMBARZER - 3,096,253
6,047 3,096,253
Net assets EERE 4,193,519 5,321,293
Capital and reserves R R #
Share capital [ 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves 1 (537,961) 589,813
Equity attributable to owners of AREHEEABILESR
the Company 4,193,519 5,321,293
The Company's statement of financial position was KRR ZHBERRARER T _ZTFNHA
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors THNBESEESHEREERE - Wh
on 29 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: THEEREREE
Ding Lei Chen Chao
T& PR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
- -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

Bt 7 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # £ —F —A4F+ —H =1 —HILF &

44.

45.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 2(c).

The US Operation, the UK Operation, the PRC Operation
and the Energy and Refined Metals Trading Operation have
been included as discontinued operations during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (see Note 5). Accordingly, certain
comparative figures reflected in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been restated.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) On 15 January 2020, the Group has successfully
completed the disposal of the PRC Operation and
used the disposal proceeds to further partially repay
outstanding principal of the Extended Borrowing.

(b) On 18 March 2020, the Group has fully redeemed
the MTN of S$100,000,000 with its internal cash
resources.

(c) On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation
declared the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“Covid-19")
outbreak a pandemic. The spread of Covid-19 has
created a high level of uncertainty to the near-term
global economic prospects and caused disruptions
to various businesses. The Group is taking
precautionary measures to deal with the Covid-19
outbreak in accordance with guidelines provided by
the authorities in the respective countries the Group
operates in.

The Covid-19 outbreak is expected to have a
negative impact on the Group's operations and
trading results, the extent of which will depend
on how long the outbreak lasts. Management is
proactively managing the Group’s businesses,
maintaining vigilance and will take the necessary
actions to ensure their long-term sustainability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #E —~F — W41 —H=1—HILFE

46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 46.

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

BE—Z-NEFt+-A=1-—
BIEFECEMERRERZ
ERTAS ~ Fe] BRI R 2B ZE
ERE

BEZSVWBHRREMALY - ZESHED
AEEBMEZERBE_ZT-NAF+_-A
=t BAIEFERARERE HARRZEHT
BR P RN ST AR ER - F
BB RELRENTR - REEA - ZF
HREBEMEENREEANATEE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 H A% 1%
Fita 2 & a1 BifE 4 34

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

BEMBREENESR BN » FHEZEE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material
BEEGHEAE IR REASHLEUNESR BTN EXZEE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2020
—E-_FTF—H—H

1 January 2020
—E-_TF—-H—H

AEBEFEZEE AR ERERBE
ZEMEE - B2 BAAL  AKERR
RAZFEFT AT AR HRE MR
REEBAZE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBRE

RESULTS E 3

For the years ended 31 December

BE+-RA=1t-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“Z-A% “ERE —T—F —T-N\F —E-QEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BEFT BEFT BYEFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(=3 (&=5)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EAERA/ (FE)
Owners of the Company ARAEBA (213,810) (21,902) 204,478 (557,289) (597,557
Non-controlling interests RS (21,791) (37,938) 21,733 (29,500) 46,255
(235,601) (59,840) 226,211 (586,789) (551,302)
Eaming/(loss) per share SREF/ (&H8)
Basic (HK cents) ERCENM) (4.28) (0.19) 1.79 (4.89) (5.24)
Diluted (HK cents) b SiA ) (4.28) (0.40) 1.79 (4.89) (5.24)
Dividends [es = = = = -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE  BERFERES

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-h%F ZE-REF “E—+F —E-N\E —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT EETT EBETFT

Total assets BEE 6,429,176 6,421,122 31,181,703 25,811,560 24,020,577
Total liabilities BEE (2,472,863) (2,682,360)  (25,210,370)  (20,496,609)  (19,399,586)
3,956,313 3,738,762 5,971,333 5,314,951 4,620,991

Equity attributable to owners of A Al A AJEfR

the Company B 3,512,380 3,360,211 5,444,133 4,872,742 4,166,882
Non-controlling interests Eae £ 443,933 378,551 527,200 442,209 454,109
3,956,313 3,738,762 5,971,333 5,314,951 4,620,991
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